
  

[ ] Indicates Date of Previous Referenced Council Meeting                                                                         Posted:   9/24/2021 
 

 

THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Platteville 
shall be held on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at 7:00 PM in the Council Chambers at 75 North Bonson 
Street, Platteville, WI. 
*Please note - this meeting will be held in-person.  
The following link can be used to view the livestream of the meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89465034744 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II.    ROLL CALL 

 
III. PUBLIC HEARING  

1. Staff Presentation 5.    Public Statements in General 
2. Applicant Statement 6.    Council Discussion 
3. Public Statements in Favor 7.    Close Public Hearing 
4. Public Statements Against 8.    Common Council Action 

A. Preliminary Plat & Planning Map – Southwest Health Development [9/14/21] 
B. Ordinance 21-06 Rezoning – 860 Mason Street [9/14/21] 

 
IV. CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT CALENDAR – The following items may be approved on a single 

motion and vote due to their routine nature or previous discussion. Please indicate to the Council 
President if you would prefer separate discussion and action. 

A. Council Minutes – 9/14/21 Regular  
B. Payment of Bills 
C. Appointments to Boards and Commissions 
D. Licenses 

1. Temporary Class “B” to Serve Fermented Malt Beverages to Platteville Main Street 
Program at 170 W Main Street (Community First Bank) for Monthly Mingle from 4:00 
PM until 6:00 PM Wednesday, October 13 

2. One-Year and Two-Year Operator License to Sell/Serve Alcohol 
E. Permits 

1. Banner Permit – UW-Platteville Homecoming from October 3 to October 23 
2. Parade Permit – Platteville High School Homecoming on Friday, October 8 starting at 2:00 

PM 
3. Run/Walk Permit – Platteville Community Arboretum – Monster Dash on Saturday, 

October 16 starting at 10:00 AM  
F. Resolution 21-23 Proclaiming October 2021 as United Nations Month 
G. Halloween Trick or Treating Hours – Sunday October 31 from 4:00 to 8:00 PM 

 
V. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, OBSERVATIONS and PETITIONS, if any – Please limit comments to no more 

than five minutes. 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89465034744


  

[ ] Indicates Date of Previous Referenced Council Meeting                                                                         Posted:   9/24/2021 
 

 

 
 
VI. REPORTS  

A. Board/Commission/Committee Minutes (Council Representative) 
1. Commission on Aging (Kopp) 6/16/21, 7/21/21, 8/17/21 
2. Water & Sewer Commission (Daus, Kilian, Shanley) 7/14/21, 8/10/21 
3. Airport Commission (Kopp) 8/16/21 

 
VII. ACTION 

A. Ordinance 21-0т – Chapter 8 Sewer Service Revision [9/14/21] 
B. Resolution 21-24 - 2021 Sewer Rate Changes [9/14/21] 
C. Water Disconnection Policy [9/14/21] 
D. Subdivision Reimbursement Agreement [9/14/21] 

 
VIII. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION 

A. Commission on Aging Name and Constitution Proposed Changes 
B. Council Rules [9/14/21] 
C. Flag Raising Policy [9/14/21] 
D. Historic Preservation Commission Process 

 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 

  
 

*Please note - this meeting will be held in-person.  
 
Please click the link below to join the webinar to view the livestream: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89465034744 
or visit zoom.us, select "Join a Meeting" and enter the Webinar ID: 894 6503 4744 

Connect by phone: 
877 853 5257 (Toll Free) or 
888 475 4499 (Toll Free) 
Webinar ID: 894 6503 4744 

 
 

If your attendance requires special accommodation, write City Clerk, P.O. Box 780, Platteville, WI  53818 or 
call (608) 348-9741 Option 6. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89465034744
https://zoom.us/


THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
PUBLIC HEARING 
ITEM NUMBER:  
III.A. 

TITLE:   
Preliminary Plat – Southwest Health Development 
 

DATE:   
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY:  Joe Carroll, Community Development Director 

Description:   
Southwest Health Center has submitted a request for approval of a preliminary plat for a residential and 
commercial subdivision on approximately 27 acres of land adjacent to the hospital.  The plat would create five 
lots at this time, with the understanding that the larger lots would be further divided as needed when the land 
is developed.  The anticipated uses may include commercial office space, health-related business, elderly 
housing and residential care facilities.   
 
The five lots range in size from 1.36 acres to 11.23 acres.  Access to the development will come from Eastside 
Road and from new streets that will extend west and then branch to the north and south.  The proposed new 
street has a right-of-way width of 60’ which is typical for a City street.   Public water and sanitary sewer 
utilities are available in Eastside Road to serve the development, but they will need to be extended to serve 
the lots.  Storm water mains are also available along Eastside Road, which will be combined with on-site 
detention areas to serve the development.   
 
The development plan for the Lot 5 area is very conceptual and is likely to change as the development 
proceeds.  However, the proposed cul-de-sac has a length of approximately 800 feet, but Section 21.12(c)(6) 
of the subdivision ordinance requires a maximum length of 500 feet.  This area will need to be modified prior 
to the final plat being approved.  Staff would suggest having an additional street extension to the property line 
to the west to allow for further development of that area. 
 
Budget/Fiscal Impact:   
When developed, the project would result in an increase in property taxes.   
 
Recommendation: 
The Plan Commission considered this request at the September 7th meeting and recommended approval. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed preliminary plat for the Southwest Health Development with the 
condition that the design of the future street should be altered to reduce the length of the cul-de-sac and 
provide street connectivity to the west. 

Sample Affirmative Motion: 
“Motion to approve the proposed preliminary plat for the Southwest Health Development with the condition 
that the design of the future street should be altered to reduce the length of the cul-de-sac and provide street 
connectivity to the west.”   
 
Attachments:   

• Staff Report 

• Location Maps 

• Preliminary Plat Maps 













THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
PUBLIC HEARING 
ITEM NUMBER:  
III.B. 

TITLE:   
Rezoning – 860 Mason Street  
 

DATE:   
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY:  Joe Carroll, Community Development Director 

 
Description:   
The property at 860 Mason Street was formerly the Platteville Town Hall and shop building.  The building is 
now owned by the applicant and used for private storage.  The applicant is requesting a zoning change that 
would allow some residential use of the property, in addition to the storage use.    
 
The applicant has submitted a request to rezone the property to B-1 Neighborhood Business District from the 
current M-1 Heavy Commercial/Light Industrial District.  As the name implies, the B-1 district is intended for 
properties that are located in or near residential areas.  This district allows the basic retail/office/commercial 
uses of a business district, but also allows some residential uses.   The applicant is considering keeping the 
garage part of the building as commercial/storage but would like the option of using what was the Town Hall 
meeting area for residential.   
 
The purpose and intent of the B-1 Neighborhood Business District is to provide goods and services which are 
needed on a frequent basis in commercial areas that are conveniently located to serve residential 
neighborhoods.  The residential uses in this district would have the same regulations as the R-2 One & Two-
Family district.   
 
Budget/Fiscal Impact:   
None 
 
Recommendation: 
The Plan Commission considered this request at the September 7th meeting and recommended approval. 
 
In the opinion of Staff, the B-1 district is appropriate for this property based on the location, the surrounding 
land uses, and based on the current and proposed use of the property.  Staff recommends approval of the 
request to rezone the property at 860 Mason Street to B-1 Neighborhood Business. 

Sample Affirmative Motion: 
“Motion to approve the request to rezone the property at 860 Mason Street to B-1 Neighborhood Business.”   
 
Attachments:   

• Ordinance 21-06 

• Staff Report 

• Location Maps 

• Plat of Survey 

• Building Photo 
 



 

 Ordinance No. 21-06 
 
 ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP 
 WHICH IS PART OF THE OFFICIAL ZONING ORDINANCE 
  OF THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Platteville do ordain as follows: 
 
Section 1.  The Zoning Map, which is part of the Official Zoning Ordinance of the City of Platteville, is 
hereby amended as follows: 
 
The following described area which was zoned M-1 Heavy Commercial/Light Industrial district is hereby 
rezoned to B-1 Neighborhood Business District. 
 

Lots 4, 5 and 6, Block C of Mitchell’s Addition to the City of Platteville, being located in the 
Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 9, Township 3 North, Range 1 West, of the 4th 
P.M., City of Platteville, Grant County, Wisconsin. 
 
The above-described parcel contains 23,401 square feet and is subject to any and all easements of 
record and/or usage. 

   
The area to be rezoned has an address of 860 Mason Street. 
 
Section 2.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and publication as 
required by law. 
 

                                     
       Barbara Daus 
       Council President 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
                                     
       Candace Klaas 
       City Clerk 

















THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
CONSIDERATION OF 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
ITEM NUMBER: 
 IV. 

TITLE:  
Council Minutes, Payment of Bills, Appointment to Boards 
and Commissions, Licenses, Permit, Resolution 21-23, and 
Halloween Trick or Treating Hours 
 

DATE: 
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY: Candace Klaas, City Clerk 

 

Description:  
The following items may be approved on a single motion and vote due to their routine nature or previous 
discussion. Please indicate to the Council President if you would prefer separate discussion and action. 
 

Budget/Fiscal Impact:  
None 
 

Sample Affirmative Motion: 
 “I move to approve all items listed under Consent Calendar” 
 

Attachments:   

• Council Minutes 

• Payment of Bills 

• Appointment of Boards and Commissions 

• Licenses 

• Permits 

• Resolution 21-23 Proclaiming October 2021 as United Nations Month 

• Trick or Treating Hours 



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

PLATTEVILLE COMMON COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 

September 14, 2021 

 
The regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Platteville was called to order by Council 
President Barbara Daus at 7:00 PM in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present: Barbara Daus, Kathy Kopp, Isaac Shanley, Lynne Parrott, Jason Artz, Ken Kilian, and Eileen 
Nickels. 
Excused: None. 
 
PRESENTATION 
Executive Director Renee Krahenbuhl of Family Connections gave a presentation of the organization and 
their role within the community.  
 
Council President Daus took a moment to thank everyone involved with Dairy Days and acknowledged 
their involvement with various events.  
Council President Daus and City Manager Ruechel addressed the Residential Development Project 
Potential under Information and Discussion.  President Daus made the announcement that the developer 
was not going to be attending tonight and there would not be any new information shared. City Manager 
Ruechel provided a quick update. Ruechel explained after hearing feedback the developer is working with 
his engineers to come up with two different site plans. One would consist of the potential of a planned unit 
development. The other would be single family homes that are 100% within the ordinance. The developer 
would be looking to maximize the lot sizes within our ordinance and presenting that. The developer would 
be coming back to the next regular scheduled Council meeting, September 28, under information and 
discussion. After that the developer would then go before the Plan Commission to be reviewed. The Plan 
Commission typically meets the first Monday of each month at 7:00 PM.  
 
CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
Motion by Kilian, second by Nickels to approve the consent calendar as follows: Council Minutes – 8/19/21 
Special and 8/24/21 Regular; Payment of Bills in the amount of $3,334,477.93; Financial Report – August; 
Appointments to Boards and Commissions, Redevelopment Authority Mike Meyer and Trent Udelhoven; 
Temporary Class “B” to Serve Fermented Malt Beverages to Rountree Gallery at 120 W Main Street for 
Rand Atkinson Book Reading and Signing from 4:00 PM until 6:00 PM Saturday, September 25; Two Year 
Operator License, Alicia L Benson, Eliora J Klar, Emily A Olson, Todd L Skoien, and Heather L Youmara; 
Grant County Highway Construction Aids - 2022; Motion carried 7-0 on a roll call vote. 
 
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, OBSERVATIONS AND PETITIONS, if any.  
None. 
 
REPORTS 

A. Board/Commission/Committee Minutes – Historical Preservation Commission, Police and Fire 
Commission, Parks, Forestry, & Recreation Committee, Housing Authority Board and Library 
Board. 

B. Other Reports – Water and Sewer Financial Report – August, Airport Financial Report – August, 
Taskforce on Inclusion, Diversity, and Equity Update, and Department Progress Reports.  

 
INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION 

A. Residential Development Project Potential – This item was discussed in brief at the beginning of 
the meeting and will reappear at the next regularly scheduled Council Meeting.  

 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

B. Preliminary Plat & Planning Map – Southwest Health Development – Community Development 
Director Joe Carroll explained that Southwest Health Center has submitted a request for approval 
of a preliminary plat for a residential and commercial subdivision on approximately 27 acres of 
land adjacent to the hospital. The plat would create five lots at this time, with the understanding 
that the large lots would be further divided as needed when the land is developed. The anticipated 
uses may include commercial office space, health-related business, elderly housing and residential 
care facilities. The Plan Commission considered this request at the September 7th meeting and 
recommended approval. Staff recommends approval of the proposed preliminary plat for the 
Southwest Health Development with the condition that the design of the future street should be 
altered to reduce the length of the cul-de-sac and provide street connectivity to the west. Dan 
Dreessens from Delta 3 spoke as the engineer on this project.   

 
C. Rezoning – 860 Mason Street – Community Development Director Joe Carroll explained that the 

property was formerly the Platteville Town Hall and shop building. The building is now owned by 
the applicant and used for private storage. The applicant is requesting a zoning change that would 
allow some residential use of the property, in addition to the storage use. The Plan Commission 
considered this request at the September 7th meeting and recommended approval. Staff recommends 
approval of the request to rezone the property at 860 Mason Street to B-1 Neighborhood Business. 
Dan Dreessens from Delta 3 spoke as the engineer on this project.   

 
D. Subdivision Reimbursement Agreement – Council President Daus explained that after the last 

Council meeting there was some discussion as to the confusion of discussing the residential 
development and subdivision reimbursement agreement together. This has been separated out to be 
discussed properly as it applies to all developments. City Manager Adam Ruechel explained that 
within the City of Platteville’s 2021-2023 Strategic Plan there is the goal of seeking a partnership 
with a private developer to result in a new single family housing subdivision. In the past, the City 
has subsidized a portion of infrastructure costs for residential subdivisions to spur growth. Some 
examples of this are the Fox Ridge Development LLC, Prairie View Subdivision-Finance 
Agreement, and Oakhaven Residential Subdivision Infrastructure Subsidy Agreement. Council 
directed Staff to work with the City Attorney on the drafting of a Subdivision Reimbursement 
Agreement for consideration to be agreed upon with any developer looking to create a residential 
subdivision within the City of Platteville. The draft agreement was provided within the 9-14-21 
Council Meeting Packet. City Staff would encourage Council Members to review the proposed 
finance agreement and send any proposed changes/alterations to the City Manager. The intention 
would be to have this item back on the agenda on Tuesday, September 28th Common Council 
Meeting for potential council action.  
 

E. Ordinance 21-xx – Chapter 8 Sewer Service Revision – Director of Public Works Howard Crofoot 
explained that the City’s ordinance regarding sanitary sewer service was last revised in 1985. The 
Public Service Commission granted our request to remove the City’s sanitary sewer service from 
their authority to establish rates. Presented is a redlined version of items to add/change or delete 
from the current ordinance. The Water and Sewer Commission as well as Staff recommend 
approval.  

 
F. Sewer Rate Changes – Director of Public Works Howard Crofoot explained that the City has been 

working with Ehlers and MSA to develop sewer rates to commensurate with the actual costs and 
proposed CIP projects over the next few years. The Water and Sewer Commission recommended 
a 5% increase in both the meter charge and volume charges. Once the Sewer Ordinance revisions 
are adopted, this will be the authority for the Common Council to establish rates. Staff recommends 
approval.  

 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

G. Water Disconnection Policy – City Manager Adam Ruechel explained the purposed of the policy 
would be to establish guidelines that are to be followed in a uniform matter, exercised consistently, 
and in accordance with the rules of the Wisconsin Administrative Code, Chapter PSC 185. The 
Water and Sewer Commission as well as Staff recommend approval for adoption of the proposed 
policy.  

 
H. Council Rules – City Manager Adam Ruechel further reviewed Council rules five through eleven. 

Rule #5 was discussed by Council, and the consensus was to use the most updated version of 
Robert’s Rules. Rule #6 there are no changes to report. Rule #7 was discussed by Council, and the 
consensus was to add the verbiage ‘he or she’. Rule #8 there are no changes to report. Rule #9 was 
discussed by Council, and the consensus was to change Finance Director to Comptroller as the 
position title has changed and change Claims Committee to the appropriate committee, board, or 
commission. Rule #10 was not part of this discussion as this rule was repealed at a prior time. Rule 
#11 was discussed by Council, and the consensus was to add City Manager and City Staff to the 
potential list of presenters.  
 

I. Flag Raising Policy – The Common Council continues to review the proposed City of Platteville 
Flag Raising Policy after it was reviewed by the Taskforce for Inclusion, Diversity, and Equity for 
their recommendation. City Staff agrees the policy provides guidance for community members and 
staff on the necessary steps to request the raising of a flag.   
 

WORK SESSION 
Adoption of Comprehensive Capital Improvement Plan – City Manager Adam Ruechel presented the 2022-
2026 City of Platteville CIP. Adoption of the 2022-2026 City of Platteville Capital Improvement Plan by 
the Common Council will allow City Staff to plan to present Council Members with options and scenarios 
regarding funding availability for 2022 proposed projects during the October 5, 2021, Special Budget 
Meeting. Motion by Shanley, second by Kilian to approve adoption of the 2022-2026 City of Platteville 
Comprehensive Capital Improvement Plan. Motion carried 7-0 on a roll call vote.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Shanley, second by Artz to adjourn.  Motion carried 7-0 on a roll call vote.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 9:55 PM. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
  
       Candace Klaas, City Clerk  



9/10/2021 Schedule of Bills (ACH payments) 6283-6286 49,119.11$                      
9/10/2021 Schedule of Bills 72772-72774 743.76$                           
9/10/2021 Payroll (ACH Deposits) 160582-160721 181,380.93$                    
9/16/2021 Schedule of Bills (ACH payments) 6288 156,620.73$                    
9/17/2021 Schedule of Bills (ACH payments) 6287 785.05$                           
9/17/2021 Schedule of Bills 72775-72776 3,157.04$                        
9/22/2021 Void 6258 (368.42)$                         
9/22/2021 Schedule of Bills (ACH payments) 6289-6315 73,124.98$                      
9/22/2021 Schedule of Bills 72777-72824 1,560,459.56$                 

(194,605.67)$                  
(30,184.19)$                    

      Total 1,800,232.88$                 

___________________________________________Date___________ Nicola Maurer, Administration Director

SCHEDULE OF BILLS

MOUND CITY BANK:

(W/S Bills amount paid with City Bills)
(W/S Payroll amount paid with City Payroll)

The above listed bills are OK for payment and are thus recommended to the Council for payment.

___________________________________________Date___________ Sheila Horner, Comptroller



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     1

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

6258

09/21 09/22/2021 6258 MAURER, NICOLA TRAINING REIMBURSEM 08.11.2021 1 368.42- 368.42- V

          Total 6258: 368.42-

6283

09/21 09/10/2021 6283 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX  F PR0904211 1 12,166.85 12,166.85 M

09/21 09/10/2021 6283 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX  S PR0904211 2 10,624.51 10,624.51 M

09/21 09/10/2021 6283 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX  S PR0904211 3 10,624.51 10,624.51 M

09/21 09/10/2021 6283 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX   PR0904211 4 2,484.78 2,484.78 M

09/21 09/10/2021 6283 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX   PR0904211 5 2,484.78 2,484.78 M

          Total 6283: 38,385.43

6284

09/21 09/10/2021 6284 WI DEFERRED COMP BO DEFERRED COMPENSAT PR0904211 1 1,715.00 1,715.00 M

09/21 09/10/2021 6284 WI DEFERRED COMP BO DEFERRED COMPENSAT PR0904211 2 1,276.82 1,276.82 M

          Total 6284: 2,991.82

6285

09/21 09/10/2021 6285 WI DEPT OF REVENUE STATE INCOME TAX  STA PR0904211 1 7,685.45 7,685.45 M

          Total 6285: 7,685.45

6286

09/21 09/10/2021 6286 WI SCTF CHILD SUPPORT  CHILD  PR0904211 1 56.41 56.41 M

          Total 6286: 56.41

6287

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 1 7.98 7.98

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 2 22.99 22.99

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 3 11.97 11.97

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 4 5.99 5.99

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM CHARGES 08.30.2021 5 14.98 14.98

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM CHARGES 08.30.2021 6 3.40 3.40

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM DEPT CHARGE 08.30.2021 7 16.99 16.99

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM DEPT CHARGE 08.30.2021 8 25.98 25.98

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE MAINTANENCE DEPT CH 08.30.2021 9 10.77 10.77

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE STREET DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 10 47.83 47.83

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE STREET DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 11 161.56 161.56

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE STREET DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 12 28.99 28.99

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE CEMETERY CHARGES 08.30.2021 13 19.97 19.97

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM CHARGES 08.30.2021 14 16.76 16.76

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE PARK DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 15 36.02 36.02

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE PARK DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 16 66.67 66.67

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE PARK DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 17 95.07 95.07

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE WATER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 18 11.48 11.48

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE WATER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 19 25.58 25.58

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 20 36.15 36.15

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 21 69.97 69.97

09/21 09/17/2021 6287 HEISER HARDWARE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 22 47.95 47.95

          Total 6287: 785.05

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     2

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

6288

09/21 09/16/2021 6288 MOUND CITY BANK DEBT RESERVE FUND 09.14.2021 1 66,026.98 66,026.98 M

09/21 09/16/2021 6288 MOUND CITY BANK INTEREST L.T. NOTES 09.14.2021 2 45,296.87 45,296.87 M

09/21 09/16/2021 6288 MOUND CITY BANK INTEREST L.T. NOTES 09.14.2021 3 45,296.88 45,296.88 M

          Total 6288: 156,620.73

6289

09/21 09/22/2021 6289 CARDMEMBER SERVICE WATER DEPT CHARGES 07.28-8.26.2 1 20.87- 20.87- M

09/21 09/22/2021 6289 CARDMEMBER SERVICE WATER DEPT CHARGES 07.28-8.26.2 2 19.78 19.78 M

09/21 09/22/2021 6289 CARDMEMBER SERVICE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 07.28-8.26.2 3 57.16 57.16 M

09/21 09/22/2021 6289 CARDMEMBER SERVICE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 07.28-8.26.2 4 24.99 24.99 M

          Total 6289: 81.06

6290

09/21 09/22/2021 6290 ACCESS SYSTEMS COPIES - PD INV1056761 1 64.34 64.34

          Total 6290: 64.34

6291

09/21 09/22/2021 6291 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVI PROGRAM SUPPLIES 1CLC-RFNW 1 65.98 65.98

09/21 09/22/2021 6291 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVI CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 1R3X-RC4N- 1 71.08 71.08

09/21 09/22/2021 6291 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVI OPERATING SUPPLIES 1YNT-71GQ- 1 250.31 250.31

          Total 6291: 387.37

6292

09/21 09/22/2021 6292 BILLS PLUMBING & HEAT WATER MAIN PROJECT 39303 1 190.55 190.55

          Total 6292: 190.55

6293

09/21 09/22/2021 6293 CDW GOVERNMENT INC DATA PROCESSING K500760 1 216.81 216.81

          Total 6293: 216.81

6294

09/21 09/22/2021 6294 COMELEC SERVICES IN DOOR ACCESS PROBLE 0474651-IN 1 49.50 49.50

          Total 6294: 49.50

6295

09/21 09/22/2021 6295 COMPUNET INTERNATIO MAY - DEC 21 NETWORK/ 45738 1 18,016.00 18,016.00

          Total 6295: 18,016.00

6296

09/21 09/22/2021 6296 FIRE & SAFETY EQUIP III  FIRE EXTINGUISHER TE 68139 1 570.00 570.00

          Total 6296: 570.00

6297

09/21 09/22/2021 6297 HARLEYS CAR CARE & T TOW TO IMPOUND-PD 4324 1 90.00 90.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     3

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

          Total 6297: 90.00

6298

09/21 09/22/2021 6298 HAWKINS INC WWTP SUPPLIES 6017556 1 63.80 63.80

          Total 6298: 63.80

6299

09/21 09/22/2021 6299 INGERSOLL WINDOW WA PROFESSIONAL SERVIC 08.09.2021 1 800.00 800.00

          Total 6299: 800.00

6300

09/21 09/22/2021 6300 J & R SUPPLY INC WATER MAIN 2108785-IN 1 450.00 450.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6300 J & R SUPPLY INC PAINT 2108873-IN 1 96.00 96.00

          Total 6300: 546.00

6301

09/21 09/22/2021 6301 JOHNSON BLOCK & CO I AUDIT CHARGES-CITY 488727 1 5,100.00 5,100.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6301 JOHNSON BLOCK & CO I AUDIT CHARGES-WATER  488727 2 1,100.00 1,100.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6301 JOHNSON BLOCK & CO I AUDIT CHARGES-SEWER  488727 3 1,100.00 1,100.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6301 JOHNSON BLOCK & CO I AUDIT CHARGES-RDA FU 488727 4 250.00 250.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6301 JOHNSON BLOCK & CO I UPDATE FIXED ASSETS 488727 5 525.00 525.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6301 JOHNSON BLOCK & CO I GASB #75 CITY 488727 6 200.00 200.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6301 JOHNSON BLOCK & CO I GASB #75 WATER 488727 7 100.00 100.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6301 JOHNSON BLOCK & CO I GASB #75 SEWER 488727 8 100.00 100.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6301 JOHNSON BLOCK & CO I GASB #84 488727 9 100.00 100.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6301 JOHNSON BLOCK & CO I ASSIST MANAGEMENT D 488727 10 425.00 425.00

          Total 6301: 9,000.00

6302

09/21 09/22/2021 6302 MAURER, NICOLA TRAINING REIMBURSEM 08.11.2021 1 368.42 368.42

          Total 6302: 368.42

6303

09/21 09/22/2021 6303 MILESTONE MATERIALS WATER MAIN 3500240852 1 479.79 479.79

          Total 6303: 479.79

6304

09/21 09/22/2021 6304 MINERS DEVELOPMENT  AUGUST RENT-LIBRARY 08.01.2021 1 18,333.00 18,333.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6304 MINERS DEVELOPMENT  LIBRARY RENT 09.01.2021 1 18,333.00 18,333.00

          Total 6304: 36,666.00

6305

09/21 09/22/2021 6305 OREILLY AUTO PARTS TRUCK 30 2324-483294 1 32.99 32.99

09/21 09/22/2021 6305 OREILLY AUTO PARTS CEMETERY FUEL TANK 2324-483755 1 94.34 94.34

09/21 09/22/2021 6305 OREILLY AUTO PARTS CEMETERY FUEL TANK 2324-483758 1 37.97 37.97

          Total 6305: 165.30

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     4

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

6306

09/21 09/22/2021 6306 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMI WATER RATE CASE 2108-I-04700 1 388.27 388.27

          Total 6306: 388.27

6307

09/21 09/22/2021 6307 SOUTHWEST OPPORTU JANITORIAL SERVICES-P 23960 1 1,804.20 1,804.20

          Total 6307: 1,804.20

6308

09/21 09/22/2021 6308 STRAND ASSOCIATES IN RISK AND RESILIENCE A 0174759 1 825.76 825.76

          Total 6308: 825.76

6309

09/21 09/22/2021 6309 TEAM LABORATORY CHE MR. SLICK INV0027572 1 681.00 681.00

          Total 6309: 681.00

6310

09/21 09/22/2021 6310 TRICOM INC/RADIO SHA FD - OPERATING SUPPLI 10416627 1 43.96 43.96

          Total 6310: 43.96

6311

09/21 09/22/2021 6311 TRICOR INC REMOVE 2013 FORD INT 08.25.2021 1 621.00- 621.00-

09/21 09/22/2021 6311 TRICOR INC ADJUST MUSEUM BLDG  08.25.2021 2 617.00 617.00

09/21 09/22/2021 6311 TRICOR INC FOOTBALL LEAGUE ADD 08.25.2021 3 15.00 15.00

          Total 6311: 11.00

6312

09/21 09/22/2021 6312 VANDEVORT, SAMUEL L TRAINING REIMBURSEM 04.09.2021 1 68.08 68.08

09/21 09/22/2021 6312 VANDEVORT, SAMUEL L TRAINING REIMBURSEM 06.16.2021 1 14.22 14.22

09/21 09/22/2021 6312 VANDEVORT, SAMUEL L TRAINING REIMBURSEM 08.25.2021 1 40.11 40.11

09/21 09/22/2021 6312 VANDEVORT, SAMUEL L TRAINING REIMBURSEM 09.15.2021 1 178.40 178.40

          Total 6312: 300.81

6313

09/21 09/22/2021 6313 WALKERS CLOTHING & S UNIFORMS 1072 1 618.96 618.96

          Total 6313: 618.96

6314

09/21 09/22/2021 6314 WEA INSURANCE VISION INSURANCE PRE 967045 1 506.56 506.56

          Total 6314: 506.56

6315

09/21 09/22/2021 6315 WEBER PAPER COMPAN RESTROOM SUPPLIES D113482 1 189.52 189.52

          Total 6315: 189.52

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     5

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

72772

09/21 09/10/2021 72772 COLLECTION SERVICES  CHILD SUPPORT  CHILD  PR0904211 1 214.76 214.76

          Total 72772: 214.76

72773

09/21 09/10/2021 72773 VANTAGE TRANSFER AG ICMA DEFERRED COMP   PR0904211 1 25.00 25.00

          Total 72773: 25.00

72774

09/21 09/10/2021 72774 WPPA/LEER UNION DUES  POLICE U PR0904211 1 504.00 504.00

          Total 72774: 504.00

72775

09/21 09/17/2021 72775 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-CITY  09.17.2021 1 1,369.94 1,369.94

09/21 09/17/2021 72775 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-STR 09.17.2021 2 5.90 5.90

09/21 09/17/2021 72775 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-PAR 09.17.2021 3 585.26 585.26

09/21 09/17/2021 72775 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-POO 09.17.2021 4 32.65 32.65

09/21 09/17/2021 72775 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-EVE 09.17.2021 5 537.03 537.03

09/21 09/17/2021 72775 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-OE  09.17.2021 6 .70 .70

09/21 09/17/2021 72775 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC-WATER 09.17.2021 7 136.34 136.34

09/21 09/17/2021 72775 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L GAS/HEATING-WATER 09.17.2021 8 16.14 16.14

09/21 09/17/2021 72775 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC-SEWER 09.17.2021 9 46.88 46.88

          Total 72775: 2,730.84

72776

09/21 09/17/2021 72776 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FINE-CASSIE GUTIERRE 09.10.2021 1 162.70 162.70

09/21 09/17/2021 72776 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FINE-MATTHEW J KING 09.13.2021 1 263.50 263.50

          Total 72776: 426.20

72777

09/21 09/22/2021 72777 ALLEGIANT OIL LLC CEMETERY-GAS 260169 1 88.97 88.97

09/21 09/22/2021 72777 ALLEGIANT OIL LLC FD - PROPANE 30330 1 89.24 89.24

09/21 09/22/2021 72777 ALLEGIANT OIL LLC DIESEL FUEL 91202 1 2,021.00 2,021.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72777 ALLEGIANT OIL LLC GASOLINE 91203 1 2,909.73 2,909.73

          Total 72777: 5,108.94

72778

09/21 09/22/2021 72778 BAKER & TAYLOR ADULT FICTION 2036166590 1 474.76 474.76

09/21 09/22/2021 72778 BAKER & TAYLOR ADULT NON-FICTION 2036166591 1 17.12 17.12

          Total 72778: 491.88

72779

09/21 09/22/2021 72779 BARD MATERIALS WATER MAIN REPAIRS 480993 1 562.00 562.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72779 BARD MATERIALS WATER MAIN BREAK REP 481813 1 309.38 309.38

          Total 72779: 871.38

72780

09/21 09/22/2021 72780 BLACKSTONE PUBLISHI SWLS RESOURCE LIBRA 1242889 1 18.95 18.95

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     6

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

          Total 72780: 18.95

72781

09/21 09/22/2021 72781 BURBACH AQUATICS INC POOL CHEMICAL ROOM  8688 1 887.83 887.83

          Total 72781: 887.83

72782

09/21 09/22/2021 72782 CENTURYLINK ADMIN PHONE CHARGE 09.03.2021 1 263.89 263.89

09/21 09/22/2021 72782 CENTURYLINK POLICE DEPT CHARGES 09.03.2021 2 700.15 700.15

09/21 09/22/2021 72782 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-MUSE 09.03.2021 3 65.30 65.30

09/21 09/22/2021 72782 CENTURYLINK LIBRARY PHONE CHARG 09.03.2021 4 34.47 34.47

09/21 09/22/2021 72782 CENTURYLINK AIRPORT PHONE CHARG 09.03.2021 5 229.64 229.64

09/21 09/22/2021 72782 CENTURYLINK WATER DEPT PHONE CH 09.03.2021 6 275.79 275.79

09/21 09/22/2021 72782 CENTURYLINK SEWER DEPT PHONE CH 09.03.2021 7 207.36 207.36

          Total 72782: 1,776.60

72783

09/21 09/22/2021 72783 CIVIC SYSTEMS LLC JULY - DEC 2021 SUPPO CVC21121 1 5,107.00 5,107.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72783 CIVIC SYSTEMS LLC JULY - DEC 2021 SUPPO CVC21121 2 2,553.50 2,553.50

09/21 09/22/2021 72783 CIVIC SYSTEMS LLC JULY - DEC 2021 SUPPO CVC21121 3 2,553.50 2,553.50

09/21 09/22/2021 72783 CIVIC SYSTEMS LLC MIAP WORKFLOW LICEN CVC21124 1 5,500.00 5,500.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72783 CIVIC SYSTEMS LLC PO WORKFLOW LICENS CVC21124 2 2,500.00 2,500.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72783 CIVIC SYSTEMS LLC SETUP CVC21124 3 3,900.00 3,900.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72783 CIVIC SYSTEMS LLC TRAINING CVC21124 4 2,100.00 2,100.00

          Total 72783: 24,214.00

72784

09/21 09/22/2021 72784 CORE & MAIN LP METER SUPOPLY P521010 1 23.79 23.79

09/21 09/22/2021 72784 CORE & MAIN LP WATER MAIN P552640 1 260.00 260.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72784 CORE & MAIN LP HYDRANTS P557900 1 649.72 649.72

          Total 72784: 933.51

72785

09/21 09/22/2021 72785 CY & CHARLEYS FIREST TIRES-PD 1-401857 1 2,953.40 2,953.40

          Total 72785: 2,953.40

72786

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-CO 1648478 1 107.84 107.84

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-CIT 1662110 1 99.46 99.46

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-CO 1662110 2 111.78 111.78

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-CIT 1662110 3 158.62 158.62

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-AD 1662110 4 124.52 124.52

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-FIN 1662110 5 148.71 148.71

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-PO 1662110 6 2,259.99 2,259.99

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-FIR 1662110 7 144.22 144.22

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-BL 1662110 8 95.99 95.99

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-EN 1662110 9 50.51 50.51

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-ST 1662110 10 483.93 483.93

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-STA 1662110 11 11.18 11.18

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-ST 1662110 12 36.82 36.82

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     7

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-RE 1662110 13 173.26 173.26

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-CE 1662110 14 65.98 65.98

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-LIB 1662110 15 304.72 304.72

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-MU 1662110 16 62.46 62.46

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-PA 1662110 17 61.64 61.64

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-RE 1662110 18 16.22 16.22

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-PO 1662110 19 3.24 3.24

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-CO 1662110 20 156.49 156.49

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-TAX 1662110 21 5.59 5.59

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-WA 1662110 22 524.55 524.55

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-SE 1662110 23 685.63 685.63

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-EM 1662110 24 807.82 807.82

09/21 09/22/2021 72786 DELTA DENTAL OF WISC DENTAL INSURANCE-CO 1662111 1 107.84 107.84

          Total 72786: 6,809.01

72787

09/21 09/22/2021 72787 EASTMAN CARTWRIGHT  SIGN POSTS 3085 1 130.00 130.00

          Total 72787: 130.00

72788

09/21 09/22/2021 72788 ENTERPRISE FLEET MA WATER-SEWER VEHICLE  FBN4290000 1 277.66 277.66

09/21 09/22/2021 72788 ENTERPRISE FLEET MA WATER-SEWER VEHICLE  FBN4290000 2 277.65 277.65

          Total 72788: 555.31

72789

09/21 09/22/2021 72789 FIRST SUPPLY LLC-PLAT BUILDING 3200296-00 1 100.00 100.00

          Total 72789: 100.00

72790

09/21 09/22/2021 72790 GRAHAM, BRIAN MUSEUM STORE SUPPLI 09.21.2021 1 60.00 60.00

          Total 72790: 60.00

72791

09/21 09/22/2021 72791 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FINE - CHEYENNE MAPE 09.16.2021 1 263.50 263.50

09/21 09/22/2021 72791 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FINE - CHEYENNE MAPE 09.16.2021 2 162.70 162.70

09/21 09/22/2021 72791 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FINE - MAXWELL WEISBE 09.16.2021 3 10.00 10.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72791 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FINE-TIMOTHY LEE COO 09.17.2021 1 263.50 263.50

09/21 09/22/2021 72791 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FINE - ALEXANDER SER 09.22.2021 1 263.50 263.50

09/21 09/22/2021 72791 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FINE - SAMUEL C BUTI 09.22.2021 2 263.50 263.50

          Total 72791: 1,226.70

72792

09/21 09/22/2021 72792 GUNDERSEN HEALTH  S DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTI 4-3075 9/6/2 1 35.00 35.00

          Total 72792: 35.00

72793

09/21 09/22/2021 72793 IWI MOTOR PARTS SHOP SUPPLIES 1901913 1 53.48 53.48

09/21 09/22/2021 72793 IWI MOTOR PARTS MINI EXCAVATOR 1906383 1 24.73 24.73

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     8

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

          Total 72793: 78.21

72794

09/21 09/22/2021 72794 JEFFERSON FIRE & SAF FD - TURNOUT GEAR RE IN132906 1 364.56 364.56

          Total 72794: 364.56

72795

09/21 09/22/2021 72795 KIMBALL MIDWEST MARKING PAINT 9180223 1 217.25 217.25

          Total 72795: 217.25

72796

09/21 09/22/2021 72796 LV LABORATORIES LLC TESTING 17878 2021 1 1,757.00 1,757.00

          Total 72796: 1,757.00

72797

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  1 66.19 66.19

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  2 34.61 34.61

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  3 69.37 69.37

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  4 64.97 64.97

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  5 91.18 91.18

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  6 36.54 36.54

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  7 1,015.09 1,015.09

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  8 83.18 83.18

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  9 51.83 51.83

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  10 41.20 41.20

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  11 199.81 199.81

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  12 4.87 4.87

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  13 19.95 19.95

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  14 50.17 50.17

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  15 41.66 41.66

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  16 169.70 169.70

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  17 40.77 40.77

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  18 60.23 60.23

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  19 57.53 57.53

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  20 3.87 3.87

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  21 72.14 72.14

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  22 1.83 1.83

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  23 247.33 247.33

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 OCT  24 310.39 310.39

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 1 66.19 66.19

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 2 34.61 34.61

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 3 69.37 69.37

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 4 64.97 64.97

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 5 91.18 91.18

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 6 36.54 36.54

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 7 1,015.09 1,015.09

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 8 83.18 83.18

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 9 51.83 51.83

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 10 41.20 41.20

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 11 199.81 199.81

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 12 4.87 4.87

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 13 19.95 19.95

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     9

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 14 50.17 50.17

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 15 41.66 41.66

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 16 197.38 197.38

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 17 40.77 40.77

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 18 60.23 60.23

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 19 57.53 57.53

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 20 3.87 3.87

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 21 72.14 72.14

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 22 1.83 1.83

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 23 247.33 247.33

09/21 09/22/2021 72797 MADISON NATIONAL LIF DISABILITY INSURANCE- 019686 SEP 24 310.39 310.39

          Total 72797: 5,696.50

72798

09/21 09/22/2021 72798 MENARDS LANDSCAPING ROCK 89122 1 17.97 17.97

09/21 09/22/2021 72798 MENARDS SIGNS AND TOOLS 89449 1 85.45 85.45

09/21 09/22/2021 72798 MENARDS POOL REPAIR 89486 1 16.78 16.78

09/21 09/22/2021 72798 MENARDS CATCH BASIN CONCRET 89641 1 176.40 176.40

          Total 72798: 296.60

72799

09/21 09/22/2021 72799 MORRISSEY PRINTING I PRINTING 46450 1 42.00 42.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72799 MORRISSEY PRINTING I ADVERTISING AND PUBL 46564 1 8.62 8.62

09/21 09/22/2021 72799 MORRISSEY PRINTING I CHILDREN'S PROGRAM 46564 2 6.38 6.38

09/21 09/22/2021 72799 MORRISSEY PRINTING I TEEN PROGRAMMING 46564 3 15.00 15.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72799 MORRISSEY PRINTING I ADULT PROGRAMMING 46564 4 15.00 15.00

          Total 72799: 87.00

72800

09/21 09/22/2021 72800 MOUND CITY BANK 2013 FIRST COMMUNITY  09.30.2021 1 175,121.23 175,121.23

09/21 09/22/2021 72800 MOUND CITY BANK 2013 FIRST COMMUNITY  09.30.2021 2 8,910.77 8,910.77

09/21 09/22/2021 72800 MOUND CITY BANK 10.1.2021 2013B, 2017B 10.01.2021 1 61,918.75 61,918.75

09/21 09/22/2021 72800 MOUND CITY BANK 10.1.2021 2013A, 2017B 10.01.2021 2 42,612.50 42,612.50

09/21 09/22/2021 72800 MOUND CITY BANK 10.1.2021 2013A 10.01.2021 3 6,250.00 6,250.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72800 MOUND CITY BANK 10.1.2021 2013B, 2017B 10.01.2021 1 1 910,000.00 910,000.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72800 MOUND CITY BANK 10.1.2021 2013A, 2017B 10.01.2021 1 2 190,000.00 190,000.00

          Total 72800: 1,394,813.25

72801

09/21 09/22/2021 72801 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT AUTO SUPPLY 862582 1 54.10 54.10

09/21 09/22/2021 72801 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT BLUE DEF 862693 1 9.99 9.99

09/21 09/22/2021 72801 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT EQUIPMENT 862977 1 35.99 35.99

09/21 09/22/2021 72801 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT FD - VEHICLE REPAIRS 863272 1 50.14 50.14

09/21 09/22/2021 72801 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT FD - VEHICLE REPAIRS 863273 1 8.10 8.10

          Total 72801: 158.32

72802

09/21 09/22/2021 72802 PARROTT PRODUCTION AUDITORIUM RENTAL RE 09.14.2021 1 50.00 50.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72802 PARROTT PRODUCTION CITY HALL RENTAL REFU 09.14.2021 2 330.00 330.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     10

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

          Total 72802: 380.00

72803

09/21 09/22/2021 72803 PARTY JUMP INFLATABL BOUNCE HOUSES FOR J 298206 1 1,000.00 1,000.00

          Total 72803: 1,000.00

72804

09/21 09/22/2021 72804 PETTY CASH/TREASURE DISCREPANCY IN W/S C 09.16.2021 1 10.00 10.00

          Total 72804: 10.00

72805

09/21 09/22/2021 72805 PIGGLY WIGGLY MIDWES COUNCIL CHARGES 7655 1 22.36 22.36

          Total 72805: 22.36

72806

09/21 09/22/2021 72806 PLATTEVILLE REGIONAL  GIFT CERTIFICATES-SAN 1273 1 170.00 170.00

          Total 72806: 170.00

72807

09/21 09/22/2021 72807 PLATTEVILLE TOWNSHIP SEAL COATING 836535 1 2,433.00 2,433.00

          Total 72807: 2,433.00

72808

09/21 09/22/2021 72808 PLATTEVILLE UNITED ME CO-SPONSORSHIP OF F 09.17.2021 1 250.00 250.00

          Total 72808: 250.00

72809

09/21 09/22/2021 72809 SCHMIDT ELECTRICAL C LIFT STATION 3464 1 98.94 98.94

          Total 72809: 98.94

72810

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 1 12.84 12.84

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 2 3.74 3.74

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 3 14.49 14.49

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 4 15.14 15.14

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 5 9.59 9.59

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 6 14.26 14.26

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 7 166.95 166.95

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 8 15.27 15.27

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 9 1.13 1.13

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 10 26.96 26.96

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 11 38.46 38.46

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 12 .60 .60

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 13 12.24 12.24

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 14 6.64 6.64

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 15 4.02 4.02

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 16 70.78 70.78

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 17 10.77 10.77

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     11

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 18 10.58 10.58

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 19 16.92 16.92

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 20 6.77 6.77

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 21 1.58 1.58

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 22 40.33 40.33

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 23 .19 .19

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 24 102.13 102.13

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 25 107.95 107.95

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 26 190.71 190.71

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 27 441.47 441.47

09/21 09/22/2021 72810 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G LIFE INSURANCE PREMI 047102 OCT 28 126.00 126.00

          Total 72810: 1,468.51

72811

09/21 09/22/2021 72811 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE PEDIATRIC AED PADS-CI 220004 1 641.25 641.25

09/21 09/22/2021 72811 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE NEW HIRE TESTING-ENG 285937 8/15/ 1 23.00 23.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72811 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE NEW HIRE - SENIOR CEN 285937 8/15/ 2 23.00 23.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72811 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE NEW HIRE TESTING-OE  285937 8/15/ 3 23.00 23.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72811 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE NEW HIRE TESTING-POLI 286082 9/15/ 1 70.00 70.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72811 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE ALCOHOL LEGAL COLLE 286082 9/15/ 2 28.00 28.00

          Total 72811: 808.25

72812

09/21 09/22/2021 72812 SOUTHWEST WI LIBRAR OFFICE SUPPLIES 913 1 22.14 22.14

          Total 72812: 22.14

72813

09/21 09/22/2021 72813 SPEE-DEE SHIPPING 4312390 1 21.06 21.06

09/21 09/22/2021 72813 SPEE-DEE SHIPPING 4315740 1 26.75 26.75

          Total 72813: 47.81

72814

09/21 09/22/2021 72814 SW WI COMM ACT PROG  CDBG MONTHLY EXPEN 8467 1 42.46 42.46

          Total 72814: 42.46

72815

09/21 09/22/2021 72815 SYNCB/AMAZON SWLS RESOURCE LIBRA 09.10.2021 1 370.84 370.84

09/21 09/22/2021 72815 SYNCB/AMAZON BUILDINGS AND GROUN 09.10.2021 2 264.80 264.80

09/21 09/22/2021 72815 SYNCB/AMAZON OFFICE SUPPLIES 09.10.2021 3 11.29 11.29

09/21 09/22/2021 72815 SYNCB/AMAZON CHILDREN'S PROGRAM 09.10.2021 4 86.72 86.72

09/21 09/22/2021 72815 SYNCB/AMAZON ADULT PROGRAMMING 09.10.2021 5 73.15 73.15

09/21 09/22/2021 72815 SYNCB/AMAZON ADULT A/V 09.10.2021 6 13.99 13.99

          Total 72815: 820.79

72816

09/21 09/22/2021 72816 THE OASIS GROUP PROFESSIONAL SERVIC 4687 1 335.00 335.00

          Total 72816: 335.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     12

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

72817

09/21 09/22/2021 72817 THE SHOE BOX PAUL BOOTS 08.28.2021 1 147.70 147.70

          Total 72817: 147.70

72818

09/21 09/22/2021 72818 TOAD'L LANDSCAPING ROCK SCHOOL GRADIN 09.13.2021 1 880.00 880.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72818 TOAD'L LANDSCAPING ROCK SCHOOL GRADIN 09.13.2021 2 296.00 296.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72818 TOAD'L LANDSCAPING MUSEUM LANDSCAPING 09.21.2021 1 262.00 262.00

          Total 72818: 1,438.00

72819

09/21 09/22/2021 72819 US CELLULAR CELL PHONE CHARGES- 0461863167 1 14.76 14.76

09/21 09/22/2021 72819 US CELLULAR CELL PHONE CHARGES- 0461863167 2 14.76 14.76

09/21 09/22/2021 72819 US CELLULAR CELL PHONE CHARGES- 461151690 1 240.97 240.97

09/21 09/22/2021 72819 US CELLULAR CELL PHONE CHARGES- 461151690 2 240.97 240.97

09/21 09/22/2021 72819 US CELLULAR CELL PHONE CHARGES- 461151690 3 31.06 31.06

09/21 09/22/2021 72819 US CELLULAR CELL PHONE CHARGES- 461151690 4 31.06 31.06

09/21 09/22/2021 72819 US CELLULAR CELL PHONE CHARGES- 461151690 5 40.55 40.55

09/21 09/22/2021 72819 US CELLULAR CELL PHONE CHARGES- 461151690 6 164.56 164.56

09/21 09/22/2021 72819 US CELLULAR CELL PHONE CHARGES- 461151690 7 112.67 112.67

          Total 72819: 891.36

72820

09/21 09/22/2021 72820 WI STATE LAB OF HYGIE TESTING 686326 1 26.00 26.00

          Total 72820: 26.00

72821

09/21 09/22/2021 72821 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-POLI 09.22.2021 1 17.39 17.39

09/21 09/22/2021 72821 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-EME 09.22.2021 2 1.31 1.31

09/21 09/22/2021 72821 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-STR 09.22.2021 3 327.76 327.76

09/21 09/22/2021 72821 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-STR 09.22.2021 4 71.55 71.55

09/21 09/22/2021 72821 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-STO 09.22.2021 5 155.64 155.64

09/21 09/22/2021 72821 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-TRAI 09.22.2021 6 31.26 31.26

09/21 09/22/2021 72821 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-PAR 09.22.2021 7 184.70 184.70

09/21 09/22/2021 72821 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC-WATER 09.22.2021 8 39.80 39.80

09/21 09/22/2021 72821 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L GAS/HEATING-WATER 09.22.2021 9 65.79 65.79

09/21 09/22/2021 72821 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC-SEWER 09.22.2021 10 18.19 18.19

          Total 72821: 913.39

72822

09/21 09/22/2021 72822 IWI MOTOR PARTS FD - VEHICLE MAINTENA 15019544 1 19.87 19.87

          Total 72822: 19.87

72823

09/21 09/22/2021 72823 NAPA AUTO PARTS-PLAT FD - VEHICLE MAINTENA 862668 1 55.07 55.07

          Total 72823: 55.07

72824

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-CIT 9001069061 1 1,558.71 1,558.71

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     13

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-CO 9001069061 2 1,666.43 1,666.43

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-CIT 9001069061 3 2,593.03 2,593.03

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-AD 9001069061 4 2,444.66 2,444.66

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-FIN 9001069061 5 1,824.46 1,824.46

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-PO 9001069061 6 31,784.36 31,784.36

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-FIR 9001069061 7 2,241.06 2,241.06

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-BL 9001069061 8 1,735.40 1,735.40

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-EN 9001069061 9 928.03 928.03

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-ST 9001069061 10 5,700.36 5,700.36

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-STA 9001069061 11 166.64 166.64

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-ST 9001069061 12 701.05 701.05

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-RE 9001069061 13 2,582.96 2,582.96

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-CE 9001069061 14 1,074.56 1,074.56

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-LIB 9001069061 15 4,241.84 4,241.84

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-MU 9001069061 16 1,235.47 1,235.47

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-PA 9001069061 17 1,686.55 1,686.55

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-RE 9001069061 18 287.33 287.33

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-PO 9001069061 19 123.55 123.55

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-CO 9001069061 20 2,333.00 2,333.00

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-TA 9001069061 21 83.32 83.32

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-WA 9001069061 22 8,866.78 8,866.78

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-SE 9001069061 23 9,872.36 9,872.36

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-EM 9001069061 24 11,824.78 11,824.78

09/21 09/22/2021 72824 QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFI HEALTH INSURANCE-CO 9001069061 25 1,861.02 1,861.02

          Total 72824: 99,417.71

110012

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 1 7.98 7.98

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 1 7.98- 7.98- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 2 22.99 22.99

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 2 22.99- 22.99- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 3 11.97 11.97

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 3 11.97- 11.97- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 4 5.99 5.99

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE FIRE DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 4 5.99- 5.99- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM CHARGES 08.30.2021 5 14.98 14.98

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM CHARGES 08.30.2021 5 14.98- 14.98- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM CHARGES 08.30.2021 6 3.40 3.40

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM CHARGES 08.30.2021 6 3.40- 3.40- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM DEPT CHARGE 08.30.2021 7 16.99 16.99

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM DEPT CHARGE 08.30.2021 7 16.99- 16.99- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM DEPT CHARGE 08.30.2021 8 25.98 25.98

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM DEPT CHARGE 08.30.2021 8 25.98- 25.98- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MAINTANENCE DEPT CH 08.30.2021 9 10.77 10.77

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MAINTANENCE DEPT CH 08.30.2021 9 10.77- 10.77- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE STREET DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 10 47.83 47.83

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE STREET DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 10 47.83- 47.83- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE STREET DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 11 161.56 161.56

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE STREET DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 11 161.56- 161.56- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE STREET DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 12 28.99 28.99

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE STREET DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 12 28.99- 28.99- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE CEMETERY CHARGES 08.30.2021 13 19.97 19.97

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE CEMETERY CHARGES 08.30.2021 13 19.97- 19.97- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM CHARGES 08.30.2021 14 16.76 16.76

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE MUSEUM CHARGES 08.30.2021 14 16.76- 16.76- V

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     14

Check Issue Dates: 9/9/2021 - 9/22/2021 Sep 23, 2021  10:36AM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check

Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE PARK DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 15 36.02 36.02

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE PARK DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 15 36.02- 36.02- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE PARK DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 16 66.67 66.67

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE PARK DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 16 66.67- 66.67- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE PARK DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 17 95.07 95.07

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE PARK DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 17 95.07- 95.07- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE WATER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 18 11.48 11.48

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE WATER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 18 11.48- 11.48- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE WATER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 19 25.58 25.58

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE WATER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 19 25.58- 25.58- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 20 36.15 36.15

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 20 36.15- 36.15- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 21 69.97 69.97

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 21 69.97- 69.97- V

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 22 47.95 47.95

09/21 09/17/2021 110012 HEISER HARDWARE SEWER DEPT CHARGES 08.30.2021 22 47.95- 47.95- V

          Total 110012: .00

          Grand Totals:  1,843,641.81

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



 
 

 

 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS VACANCIES LIST    
As of 9/14/21 

 

Board of Appeals (ET Zoning) (3 year term ending 4/1/24) 
Board of Appeals (ET Zoning) Alternate (3 year term ending 4/1/22) 
Board of Appeals (Zoning) Alternate (partial term ending 10/1/21) 
Board of Appeals (Zoning) Alternate (3 year term ending 10/1/22) 
Board of Review (partial term ending after 2023 session) 
Community Development Board (2 - 3 year terms ending 10/1/22) 
Community Development Board (partial term ending 10/1/21) 
Community Safe Routes Committee (partial term ending 9/1/22) 
Historic Preservation Commission Alternate (3 year term ending 5/1/24) 
Plan Commission (partial term ending 5/1/22) 
Platteville Public Transportation Committee (partial term ending 9/1/21) 
Water & Sewer Commission (5 year term ending 10/1/26) 
Water & Sewer Commission (partial term ending 10/1/25) 
 
 
UPCOMING VACANCIES – October 2021 
Board of Appeals (Zoning) (2 – 3 year terms ending 10/1/24) 
Board of Appeals (Zoning) Alternate (3 year terms ending 10/1/24) 
 
 
Application forms for the City of Platteville Boards and Commissions are available in the 
City Clerk’s office in the Municipal Building at 75 N Bonson Street, Platteville, WI or online at 
www.platteville.org.  Please note that most positions require City residency. 

 
 

http://www.platteville.org/


PROPOSED LICENSES 
September 28, 2021 

 
Temporary Class “B” to Serve Fermented Malt Beverages  

- Platteville Main Street Program at 170 W Main Street (Community First Bank) for 
Monthly Mingle from 4:00 PM until 6:00 PM Wednesday, October 13 
 

One Year Operator License  
- David J Dean 
- Allison E Locy 
- Caroline N Norman 
- Parker J Reinhard 
- Mindy A Smits 

 
Two Year Operator License  

- Seth D Mertens 
- Rachael M Rees 
- Alexander J Wand 
- Kelly L Weede 

 
 



^Application for Temporary Class "B" / "Class B" Retailer's License //'^/-^/

See Additional Information on reverse side. Contact the municipal clerk if you have questions.

FEE $10.00 C.'^/I BACKGROUND CHECK $7.00 ,ea. Application Date: 09/09/2021

D Town D Village E City of PLATTEVILLE _ County of GRANT

The named organization applies for: (check appropriate box(es).)

L-d A Temporary Class "B" license to sell fermented malt beverages at picnics or similar gatherings under s. 125.26(6), Wis. Stats.

Q A Temporary "Class B" license to sell wine at picnics or similar gatherings under s. 125.51(10), Wis. Stats.

at the premises described below during a special event beginning (time) 4:00pm and ending 6:00pm _ and agrees

to comply with all laws, resolutions, ordinances and regulations (state, federal or local) affecting the sale of fermented malt beverages

and/or wine if the license is granted.

1. Organization 1'c/iecA-spp/-oprf'atebox^ ^ D Bona fide Club Q Church D Lodge/Society

D Veteran's Organization D Fair Association or Agricultural Society

Chamber of Commerce or similar Civic or Trade Organization organized under
ch. 181, Wis.^Stats,

(a) Name ^ \\\t\f\ [^U ^ fj'\^ ^f.^W-0 ^IVY
(b) Address _' /jjQ cs> ^-^ <S?T.

fs"'ee') / ../. ^ ' .D Town D ViNa9e ^S-City

(c) Date organized 0\ { 0 | / \(\(\(\
(d) If corporation, give date of incorporation

(e) If the najyfed organization is not required to hold a Wisconsin seller's permit pursuant to s. 77.54 (7m), Wis. Stats., check this
box:

(f) Names and addresses o( all o^icers:

President ^^ ^°\^ H-i^kl^^^ CiH
^ 0 ^>^K-^J-J^W. /1W
-h^C^lcQ </<? ^i-o^cL^/t

oijicers:_ _ _ ^ 11 ' i , . '.

Zz/^i^'^^^ ^V^ y1^^^^.Lf. 0^/
Vice President ~N ^ 7L^k/L^ ^ CCM f \^ ^7(9J t^^^/l4Jl/n- S ^.
Secretary __/V\IA^^ JJ^i C-/C U ^.f Q J^f-^c^tVt
Treasurer ' \l <-/ 11

(g) Name and address of manager or person in charge of affajr: ^l ^ (Y\ ^YI|

^^l W^n^Kc^J^T^:^ ^ 53/^7
2. Location of Premises Where Beer and/or Wine Will Be Sold, Served, Consumed, or Stored, and Areas Where Alcohol

Beverage Records Will be Stored:

(a) Street number 170 W Main Street

(b) Lot Block

(c) Do premises occupy all or part of building? all

(d) If part of building, describe fully all premises covered under this application, which floor or floors, or room or rooms, license is
to cover: event will either be held in the parking lot or on the first floor of the premises depending on weather.

3. Name of Event
(a) List name of the event Monthly Mingle

(b) Dates of event 10/13/2021

DECLARATION
An officer-ofthe organizatiwi^§clares under penalties of law that the information provided in this application is true and correct to the
best of his/her knowle(^andj^ief: Any person who knowingly provides materially false information in an application for a license
may be required to forfeit ny^mor^ th~^n $1,000.

Officer Plnik^l^M^t S^i ^ <,.
(Sfffnqlure I Dale) I ' (Name of Organization)

^/f&jsfDate Filed with Clerk I/ •^—/^v| _ Date Reported to Council or Board

Date Granted by Council License No.

AT-315 (R. 9-19) Wisconsin Department of Revenue





vinfieering the Good /,^

PLATTEVILLE
WISCONSIN

PARADE

•h ^[

PERMIT APPLICATION
I WALK D RUN D OTHER

DATE: ^ ^ ^- <?^/ 06 ^
EVENT FEE $50.00

3A

EVENT

Event Titleitle: P {a^T^Z\]\ 11 •€) Hyl^ S^k^ol U(^(LC£>t^(/\^ ?^(T<^J ^

|A/\

Date of Event: QcA^^C^ ^ ^OB-S

Route (or attach map): U0<-*^^\.

Assembly Area: C\\^ ?<>.<'

Estimated Number of Participants:

Start & End Time: c^-'<^O^Lv\ - S:^0p«^-i

^4r^^- /S^t^/tyCy ^ 61.^1 Pa^^

Disbanding Area: Doik S^r-^/^

INSURANCE

Name of Insurance Company:

Amount of Liability Insurance

:-<^^//£^
: ^?, ^0, €)^.

^

APPLICANT

Name of Organization: PloA'\r-(,i/(I/«. (4l^l\ ScVvo^S

Contact Name: fA^<-\\o^\ pol<A

Street Address: ^/0 £. M(SUJL^O^ S^.^

, State, & Zip: Pl^&t/;//^ , k^J: ^S^j^

Phone: ^0^-77?- ^5~<?-

City, State,

If you would like to request that the event fee be waived, please submit a reason in writing along with this application.

APPLICANT'S STATEMENT
/ hereby certify that the answers on this application are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I agree, in

consideration of the granting of this permit, to comply with the laws of the State of Wisconsin, and to the provisions of

Section 41.07 of the City of Platteville Municipal Code.

Signature Date ^7?^A<9>/

"I I"

^L ,^

Office Use Only:

Date Application Received: ;',

Date Liability Insurance Certificate Received:
Police Department Date: A or D
Council Action and Date: A or D

Date Issued: _ Issued by:

Receipt #:

Streets Department Date: A or D

License #:

_(City Clerk)



8/30/2021 City of Platteville Public CIS Viewer

City of Platteville Public GIS Viewer n ^ ^

This map is for advisory purposes only. The data provided in this online reference map is for informational purposes 01

information contained in this data. This reference map is not a legal survey nor is it intended to be used as such. This wi

property valuations. This web application is not to be used for legal documentation, boundary survey determinations, fi

i;'^i'iCvni;!fc!;..!;S..ll(.!W.'l^ Platteville Parks Platteville Parking

IHl'IMUJi'Ml

N^ J
'" •'i.'A"^»<r

t • -a"-

-90.470 42.734 Degrees

II

,^lv\ ^s^ bt^i^- ^1 <^ ^
^° }V^- lA<^l ^(-voof

https://platteville.maps.iu-cgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=8a64b665a33d4t'8d886d4t'4459e2eb65 1/1



8/30/2021 City ot'Platteville Public CIS Viewer

City of Platteville Public GIS Viewer n ^ ^

This map is for advisory purposes only. The data provided in this online reference map is for informational purposes 01

information contained in this data. This reference map is not a legal survey nor is it intended to be used as such. This w'

property valuations. This web application is not to be used for legal documentation, boundary survey determinations, fi

I^Hi^iilHk-N^t^'h'^ Platteville Parks Platteville Parking

IVi'ilJt'|q;(ill^

p^.::
ws/S

-90.471 42.734 Degrees

&%

e?|^^

https://platteville .maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html7appids8a64b665a33d4f8d886d4f4459e2eb65 1/1



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

9/20/2021

(608) 473-1176 1335

21415

Platteville School District
780 N 2nd St
Platteville, WI 53818

A 2,000,000

0B63102 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 300,000
5,000

2,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000

General Aggregate
2,000,000A

0E63102 7/1/2020 7/1/2021

5,000,000A
0Y63102 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 10,000,000

0
A

0H63102 7/1/2020 7/1/2021 100,000
100,000
500,000

City of Platteville
PO Box 780
Platteville, WI 53818

PLATSCH-01 LWEIGEL

TRICOR, Inc. - Platteville
1370 N. Water Street
Platteville, WI 53818

Lynn Weigel, CIC

lweigel@tricorinsurance.com

Employers Mutual Companies

X
X

X

X

X

X



^c^etinSthe Goo^L^

PLATTEVILLE
w i s c o N s i N

PERMIT APPLICATION
D PARADE B WALK B RUN D OTHER

DATE:
EVENT FEE $50.00

EVENT

Event Title: T^n.s+er T)^ ru^. I J^A\<

Date of Event: \0 f\^/3l Start & End Time: J 0 " } o?

Route (or attach map): ^Q'j,^ \ft^j ibfir^^ dFAVzJ 4TA'i1 /Cfo^ pAn.J ^iz.*^ rod^ ;><?C^ \r^\ ^ ^^

Assembly Area: 11l|Q(JT\(Wl^AJ

Estimated Number of Participants: \QO" \€>Q

Disbanding Area: V)o\iv\(1 \/^^/ ip^rK.
^ b»^

INSURANCE

Name of Insurance Company: "^t^'; (^<9^T

Amount of Liability Insurance: \ 000,(

APPLICANT

Name of Organization: Y \ (\^\T\ |L?_. \ JSWT^^\^\} ^.^'^

Contact Name: J^Q b _^3lL5uW)
t

Phone: ^Llr4if__OASl

Street Address: <^Q 1)5Q'/ 3(?3

City, State, & Zip:9^AVllk (_j7 6 3^T

If you would like to request that the event fee be waived, please submit a reason in writing along with this application.

APPLICANT'S STATEMENT
I hereby certify th^Hf\e answers^on this application are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. I agree, in

consideration of/the ^qnting (^f]this permit, to comply with the laws of the State of Wisconsin, and to the provisions of
Section 41.07 cfthe/^ity^P/i^fe^illeMimicipa! Code.

Signature

/
Date t-,/^/2^/

Office Use Only:

Date Application Received: <^' \^ -<9-| _ Receipt #:
Date Liability Insurance Certificate Received: c\-\ S^'o^l
Police Department Date: A or D

^^ /. ^h lo? i j^j'vr^ .c±

Council Action and Date: A or D
Date Issued:

Streets Department Date: A or D

License #:

Issued by: _(City Clerk)



^
0
_ ^ ^

' f '£» t
^ s c

_ t^ ^

^
s

c c ? c
» ^ c ^ L2 ^
0 3 -?

7 ^ ^ ^ ["
!>

"
c
.

~?

?̂

^
 
\

^
 ^

<
?
' 
^

•3
=> 7
> n :3 ^
2 ^ I, r
>

- ^ •
^

c g c
- <
<

» X
-

c^

?a 0— pL ?
<

J
' Q
—

a
-

-& --
A

-

s ^

?̂ ? (^
>

-
n

\

T
S <
.

r
- [
'^



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
CONSIDERATION OF 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
ITEM NUMBER: 
 IV.F. 

TITLE:  
Resolution 21-23 Proclaiming October as United Nations 
Month 
 

DATE: 
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY: Candace Klaas, City Clerk 

 

Description:  
October 24, United Nations Day, commemorates the United Nations Charter coming into force in 1945 and 
celebrates the work of this organization. 
 
As in past years, city residents Dick Rundell and Maggie Kleisath have requested to have the Council take 
action on the proposed resolution designing October 2021 as United Nations Month in the city of Platteville 
and to authorize the flying of the United Nations Flag above City Hall during the month of October 2021.  
 

Budget/Fiscal Impact:  
None 
 

Sample Affirmative Motion: 
 “I move to adopt Resolution 21-23 Proclaiming October 2021 as United Nations month as requested.” 
 

Attachments:   

• Draft Resolution 21-23 



 

 

RESOLUTION 21-23 

 

DESIGNATING OCTOBER 2021 AS UNITED NATIONS MONTH 

 
 
WHEREAS: the President of the United States and the Governor of Wisconsin have officially 
proclaimed October 24 as United Nations Day to commemorate the founding of the United 
Nations, 
 
WHEREAS: in areas of education, emergency relief for children, refugee assistance, agriculture, 
health and economic development, the United Nations commendably carries on its humanitarian 
activities, 
 
WHEREAS: the United Nations has created the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian 
Affairs to promote the preservation of human rights, 
 
WHEREAS: in the post-Cold war era the United Nations has come closer to working as its 
founders envisioned, and now faces new challenges, 
 
WHEREAS: because of the rapid and unsettling transition to a global community, the United 
Nations is developing the following governance systems: the active promotions of preventive 
diplomacy, peacemaking and peace keeping; the foundation for the rule of world law; the 
protection of human rights; and the placing of the suffering of people above national sovereignty, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Platteville 
hereby designate the month of October 2021 as United Nations Month, in the City of Platteville; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, to symbolize its decision, the Common Council authorizes 
the flying of the United Nations Flag above City Hall during the month of October 2021. 
 
 

PASSED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL on the 28th day of September, 2021. 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Barbara Daus, Council President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Candace Klaas, City Clerk 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
CONSIDERATION OF 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
ITEM NUMBER: 
IV.G.  

TITLE:   
Halloween Trick or Treating Hours 

DATE  
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Consent Calendar 
Item 

PREPARED BY: Chief of Police Doug McKinley 

 
Description:   
The Police Department is proposing that the annual Halloween Trick or Treating hours take place on Sunday, 
October 31, 2021, from 4:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.  Historically Platteville has had Trick or Treating take place on 
Halloween.  The hours are extended again this year and they will allow for some daylight activity and some 
during hours of darkness. 
 
In light of concerns related to the Coronavirus, the following safety measures are recommended: 

• At home, it is recommended that one designated person (best if an adult) hand out candy and do not 
leave the bowl out for kids to dig through. 

• All treats you plan to hand out should be individually wrapped and store bought. 

• Use hand sanitizer.  Whether handing out candy or going door to door for trick-or-treating, use hand 
sanitizer.  It is recommended to use it multiple times throughout the night. 

• Practice social distancing when possible. 
 

 
Budget/Fiscal Impact:  
There is no budget or fiscal impact. 
 
Recommendation:   
Staff recommends the City use the same date (10/31) for Trick or Treating as it has for over a decade and the 
hours of the event should be from 4:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
 
Sample Affirmative Motion:  
This is a Consent Calendar item, so no specific action is needed on this topic.  
 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
REPORTS 
ITEM NUMBER: 
 VI. 

TITLE:  
Board, Commission, and Committee Minutes 
 

DATE: 
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
None 

PREPARED BY:  Colette Steffen, Administrative Assistant II 

 

Description: 
Approved minutes from recent Boards and Commissions meetings. Council representative may give a 
summary of the meeting. 
 

Budget/Fiscal Impact:  
None 
 

Attachments:   

• Water & Sewer Commission 

• Commission on Aging 

• Airport Commission 
 



 

 

Commission On Aging 

June 16, 2021 – 9:30 a.m. 

PEAK, 155 W. Lewis Ave., Platteville, WI 

Present: Debara Browning, Bill Cramer, Jill Goffinet, Josephine Kischer, Kathy 

Kopp, Larry McReynolds, Ellen Stellpflug 

Absent: Ray Banfi, Joyce Bos  

Guest: Tami Enz, “Main Street” – Director 

I. Meeting is called to order at 9:33 a.m. 

II. Motion to approve Minutes of May 21, by Bill Cramer, second Debara 

Browning, all in favor, Minutes approved. 

III. Reports: PEAK - Jon Meidinger 

People are enthusiastic about being back at the Center. The month of 

July will be “Open House” month with programs and many activities. 

The City has purchased the O.E. Grey building from the School District. 

There should be no danger of displacement of the Senior Center. 

Kathy Kopp:  The City Council approved purchase of the building for 

$1.00.  On July 1st the building will be City property. The tenants’ leases 

will be extended for at least 1 year and open to a longer term. The 

Senior Center is high priority at the Council and it is agreed that this 

building is not going to be the Fire Station. 

The Chamber will have “Good Morning Platteville” on June 24th at 7:45 

a.m. here at the Center with a presentation on the new Fire Station. It is 

open to the public and it would be advantageous if many people who 

frequent the Senior Center were present at that meeting. 

Bill wants to know why we have to pay rent to the City. Kathy asks if 

taxpayer Dollars are used for the rent payments; the answer is no, PASS 

has taken on that responsibility. She asked Jon for a statement of the 

history of rent payments. Jon says he is very optimistic about the future 

of the Senior/Community Center. 

On June 23rd a determination will be made about the meal site openings. 

We expect to have the Van very soon and have an ad out for a driver.  



 

 

Jon asks Ellen to explain to Tami Enz the problems with accessibility at 

downtown stores and buildings. Tami has had discussions with AARP  

and expects that something can be done to address this. She would like 

input from COA when discussions about possible improvements start. 

Ellen explains that the DMV is a very difficult place to get into as the 

building is not ADA compliant. Debara suggests that Main Street 

consider publishing a map or newsletter showing where the 

handicapped accessible businesses are on Main Street. She asks why 

there is no bus stop on Main Street by Garvey’s at Bonson Street, which 

would also make it close to City Hall. She invites Tami to attend a 

meeting with COA and the Transportation Committee which will take 

place in September, date to be announced. Kathy will ask the hospital to 

have a representative present. We will have a list of questions and 

suggestions ready for that meeting.  Kathy suggests we send a reminder 

of that meeting to our city contact, Howard Crawfoot, in July so he will 

be aware of that date.  Debara asks if it is advisable to have two 

Transportation Committees, one of Students and one of Seniors. Kathy 

suggests that the Transportation Committee should be encouraged to 

add a bus stop at City Hall for Music in the Park on Thursdays. 

Tami asks how the food voucher program is working and Jill says it is 

working very well and vouchers have been distributed to Senior living 

facilities. We could use 5 more vouchers. ADRC vouchers are income 

based and will be given out between 10:30 and 11:30 on June 23rd by 

appointment only. 

Jill says Lisa Banfield from the Shopping News will feature the Senior 

Center the end of June. 

PASS:  Bill reminds us of the Brat Sale on Saturday, June 19th at Heiser’s 

Parking Lot. 

IV. Remember ‘Good Morning Platteville” on June 24th at 7:45 a.m. 

V. Next meeting will be on July 21 at 9:30 a.m. 

VI. Motion to adjourn Josephine, second Debara, meeting adjourns at 10:40  

 

 Submitted by Josephine Kischer, Secretary 



Commission On Aging 

July 21, 2021 – 9:30 a.m. 

PEAK, 155 W. Lewis Ave, Platteville  

Present: Ray Banfi, Joyce Bos, Debra Browning, Bill Cramer, Jill Goffinet, Josephine Kischer, 

Kathy Kopp, Larry McReynolds, Jon Meidinger  

Absent: New member Allyssa Shanahan 

I. Meeting is called to order at 9:36 a.m. 

II. Motion to approve Minutes of June 16th by Ray, second Joyce, all in favor, Minutes 

are approved. 

III. Reports: Jon Meidinger 

Fundraising for the Van has been successful. We can put an order in for the 2022 

model and maybe we will get one by the end of the year. We have a new driver, Ed 

Rink, who will also be able to help with some of the activities. Right now he is 

helping with Meals on Wheels but in the future this will be the responsibility of the  

ADRC. Meals on site started on Monday, July 17th and it looks like there will be a 

change of rules according to the new Meal site Manager. There is a chance that we 

will get a map with all the handicapped accessible areas in downtown Platteville in 

the next Newsletter. 

Jill Goffinet: 

The opening session of Free Bingo had a very good turnout. Tomorrow, July 22nd, will 

be Euchre and Pizza tournament including a 50/50 raffle. Saturday and Sunday (24th 

and 25th) will have Brat sales in City Park for Hometown Festival. Our Senior Picnic 

will be on August 18th at Evangelical Free Church. We could use volunteers to help 

serve. Pharmacist Brian Schobert will have a presentation on vaccines on August 

16th, his sister, Dietician Caitlyn, will give a presentation on coffee on August 5th.  

PASS:  Bill Cramer 

The Library has invited us to have a Brat sale in City Park on August 14th. 

The Shopping News has designated PASS the beneficiary of their Auction “Ladies’ 

Night Out” on Wednesday, October 6th. 



Council: Kathy Kopp 

She will follow up on the name change for the Commission as it has not been on the agenda 

yet. The name to be: Commission on Aging and Disability. Next week’s Council meeting will be a 

big one as Robin Klein stepped down; her term runs through April 2022. There are four 

candidates to replace her. For the budgeting schedule she is concerned with the issue of the 

rent and she suggests we make a real strong case for our budget with the items that we really 

need emphasized, as the Council doesn’t really understand the needs unless they are 

confronted with the needs for items that are not currently covered by our budget. It is 

important to present the needs in person at the council meeting and bring volunteers if 

possible. She suggests to call the City Manager to be put on the agenda for a council meeting. 

She also says to make sure to write a letter to be considered for the Thrift shop sales auction 

benefactor again. 

IV. Debra would like to have a meeting of the 5 year Committee on August 17th at 9:30 a.m. 

V. Next meeting August 17th, at 10:30 a.m. following the 5 year Comm. Meeting. 

VI. Motion to adjourn by Joyce, second Ray, meeting adjourns at 10:51 a.m. 

 

Submitted by Josephine Kischer 

Secretary 



Commission On Aging 

August 17, 2021 – 9:30 a.m. 

PEAK, 155 W. Lewis Ave, Platteville 

Present: Ray Banfi, Joyce Bos, Debara Browning, Bill Cramer, Jill Goffinet, 

Josephine Kischer, Larry McReynolds, Jon Meidinger, Allyssa Shanahan 

Absent: Kathy Kopp 

I. Meeting is called to order by Debara Browning at 9:30 a.m. 

We welcome new member Allyssa (Ally) Shanahan. 

II. Motion to approve Minutes of July 21st by Ray, second Joyce, all in favor, 

Minutes approved. 

III. Reports: PEAK – Jon Meidinger 

Jon reviews the Senior Center Budget and the City – Parks & Recreation 

Dept. – Budget; the numbers in the Center’s budget are not covered by 

the City approved budget. 

While discussing possible ways for revenue, Ally suggests to set up a 

Brat and/or Pizza stand somewhere on 2nd Street at the close of 

business, as the students will spend money at 2 a.m. before returning to 

their homes. 

PASS: Bill Cramer 

We have had 5 Brat Sales so far and one more to come on Aug. 28th at 

Heiser’s. The 21/22 Calendars are here and we will sell them for $10 

each. PASS is looking for more Board members and Ally suggests to 

approach the University Students; perhaps offering them seminars on 

“Resume Writing” or similar enticements.  

 

IV. Joyce makes motion to adjourn at 10:17 a.m. so we can proceed with 

the meeting of the 5 Year Plan Committee, second Josephine, all in 

favor. 

 

Submitted by Josephine Kischer 

Secretary 



WATER & SEWER COMMISSION MINUTES 
WEDNESDAY, July 14, 2021 

4:00 PM 
 
Water and Sewer Commission President Shanley called the Regular Meeting of the City of Platteville Water and Sewer 
Commission to order on Wednesday, July 14th at 4:00 pm. 
 
W/S Commission members present:  Isaac Shanley, Barb Daus, Bill Holder, Ken Kilian, Brian Laufenberg, Mark Meyers, Chris 
Wilson,  
W/S Commission members excused/absent:  
City Staff present:  Public Works Director - Howard Crofoot, Administration Director – Nicola Maurer, City Manager – Adam 
Ruechel 
City Staff excused:  Utility Superintendent – Irv Lupee, Comptroller – Sheila Horner 
Public present:  
Citizens’ Comments – Administration Director Maurer provided an update to the Commission on the utility bond issue which 
was presented to the Council by Ehlers on Tuesday, July 13th.  
 
The Consent Calendar was presented for consideration.  Motion by Daus, second by Holder to approve the Consent 
Calendar: June 9, 2021 Minutes, June Financial Report, June Bank Reconciliation and Investments Report, Payment of Bills 
(6/3/2021 – 7/7/2021).  Motion carried.   
 
ACTION ITEMS:    
None. 
 
ITEMS OF DISCUSSION:      
2021 CIP Updates – Crofoot reported that Dewey St water/sewer is complete from Elm to 4th St. Crews are currently working 
on sanitary sewer from Water St. west. Southwest Road is ongoing, having started a week ago. Anticipated completion is end 
of July. Commerce is scheduled for August after the completion of Southwest Road. The Aeration Basin Blower project is 
continuing. The blowers are installed. Electronic motor control panels have now been received. Completion target is prior to 
the start of school. City crews have installed new pipe at the Valley Rd ground storage water tank, and Baker ironworks is 
working on the tank floor.  
 
2022 Budget Timeline  – Discussion centered around CIP and the comprehensive plan CIP presentation that City Manager 
Adam Ruechel will be bringing to the Common Council on August 24th. It was suggested that all City commissions and 
committees be invited. City Manager Ruechel will bring the draft Water/Sewer CIP plan to the August Commission meeting. 
The Commission requested data on Knollwood and other sites which have had a higher incidence of water main breaks. 
Director Crofoot reminded the Commission that the DNR is pushing utilities to replace 4” water lines. The current timeline 
for Platteville is complete replacement by 2027. 
 
Sewer Ordinance  – City Manager Ruechel explained that the City sewer ordinance will need to be updated before sewer rate 
increases can be implemented. Staff will bring the proposed changes to the August Commission meeting.  
 
Motion made by Holder, second by Laufenberg to adjourn.  Motion carried. 
Meeting adjourned at 5:10 pm.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Nicola Maurer 
Administration Director 



WATER & SEWER COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, August 10, 2021 

4:00 PM 
 
Water and Sewer Commission President Shanley called the Regular Meeting of the City of Platteville Water and Sewer 
Commission to order on Tuesday, August 10th at 4:00 pm. 
 
W/S Commission members present:  Isaac Shanley, Barb Daus, Ken Kilian, Brian Laufenberg, Mark Meyers  
W/S Commission members excused/absent: Bill Holder, Chris Wilson 
City Staff present:  Public Works Director - Howard Crofoot, Administration Director – Nicola Maurer, City Manager – Adam 
Ruechel, Comptroller – Sheila Horner 
City Staff excused:  Irv Lupee 
Public present:  
Citizens’ Comments –  
 
The Consent Calendar was presented for consideration.  Motion by Daus, second by Kilian to approve the Consent Calendar: 
July 14, 2021 Minutes, July Financial Report, July Bank Reconciliation and Investments Report, Payment of Bills (7/8/2021 – 
8/4/2021), June Water Quality Report, July Water Quality Report.  Motion carried.   
 
ACTION ITEMS:   None 
 
ITEMS OF DISCUSSION:      
2021 CIP Updates – Crofoot reported that Dewey Street sanitary sewer mains are complete, and the water mains are nearly 
complete. SW Road work is complete except for the pavement. Commerce Street work has started – sewer work is nearly 
complete and work on water will be starting this week. Wastewater plant project is progressing.  
 
Policy on Water Disconnects - City Manager Ruechel presented a proposal for the implementation of an official policy for 
water disconnects created by the staff. Commission discussion focused on the structure of Deferred Payment Agreements in 
the policy and on the possibility of landlords co-signing a DPA in the circumstance of an exception to the policy. Staff will 
review Public Service Commission guidance for the next Commission meeting and bring an updated policy for action on the 
September agenda 
 
Sewer Ordinance – Public Works Director Crofoot presented a revised proposal of the City’s Sewer Ordinance. Crofoot also 
provided examples from Monroe and Seymour, WI for comparison as these municipalities have similar communities with an 
Emmi Roth plant.  Updates to the policy included a change in the maximum temperature allowed. Commission consensus 
was for a temperature of 145 degrees. This item will be under action on the September agenda. 
 
2022 Budget Timeline – City Manager Ruechel presented the 2022-2026 CIP Plan for Water & Sewer. This item will be under 
action on the September agenda. 
 
Motion made by Laufenberg, second by Kilian to adjourn.  Motion carried. 
Meeting adjourned at 5:35 pm.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Sheila Horner 
Comptroller 



 

 

Approved Minutes of August 9th, 2021 
Submitted by Doug Stephens, September 13th, 2021 
 

Airport Commission Meeting 
August 16th, 2021, 6:00 pm 

Meeting held in‐person at the Platteville Airport 
 

I.    Commission Meeting Call to Order: by Cooley, Chairman @ 6:00 pm 
 

a. Quorum achieved. 
b. Attendance, Commission Members: Dennis Cooley (P), Doug Du Plessis (A), Kathy Kopp (P, City 

of Platteville Common Council, Airport Representative) (P), Chuck Runde (A), Joe Sener (P), Doug 
Stephens (P), Danny Xiao (P). Others: Alaine Olthafer‐Lange and Andy Lange (A&A Aviation, 
Airport Management), Nicola Maurer (City of Platteville Administrative Director), Brandon 
Herbert (Strand), Mike Dmyterko (President, Coffman Associates). 

c. Cooley requested that Agenda Items IV and VIII be re‐arranged to place the Coffman 
presentation near the top of the agenda for the sake of Dmyterko’s travel schedule this evening. 
The Commission agreed to this, and the meeting proceeded accordingly. 

 
II.   Approval of Minutes, July 12th, 2021: Cooley, Chair  

a. Motion by Sener to approve the minutes, 2nd by Stephens. Passes unanimously. 

 
III.   Citizen’s Comments, Observations and Petitions: Cooley, Chair 

a.   None. 

 

IV. Airport Master Plan Presentation: Mike Dmyterko, Coffman Associates 
a.    Mike Dmyterko, President of Coffman Associates Airport Consultants, presented the Airport 

Master Plan Phase 2 Draft. The Draft was Prepared for the City of Platteville, by Coffman 
Associates Airport Consultants, dated August 2021. 

b.    Dmyterko spoke about the Master Plan, Noting the justification for the runway expansion and 
that the plan looks beyond the 5‐year scope, and instead looking out 20‐years. We are in the 
alternatives phase. Looking at the forecast: base year, short term (1‐5 years), intermediate term 
(6‐10 years), long term (11‐20 years). Based on aircraft, annual operations, annual 
instrumentation approaches, and peak characteristics. 

c.    Coffman Associates drilled down into the subset data, then outlined the needs of the Airport. 
d.    Master Plan Exhibit M ‐ Historical Turbo Prop and Jet Operations was cited. The FFA 90/10 

formula was mentioned. Platteville’s critical service is the B2 design, which is a 12,500 lb. 
aircraft (turbo prop and most of the Citation aircraft). One goal may be for Platteville to be the 
best B2 Airport it can be. 

e.    Exhibit A ‐ WI was referenced, regarding crosswind components. The FAA is in the mode of 
closing most of the crosswind runways at airports across the United States. The purpose is to 
reduce the amount pavement inventory at the 3,300 airports the FAA supports. Both Platteville 
runways are eligible for funding, but that is not to say the FAA would fund both. Platteville has 
justification for both runways being here.  

f.     Exhibit B ‐ Existing/Ultimate Safety Areas was referenced and helped illustrate the potential 
future safety areas required should the runways expand. Spoke about Runway Protection Zone 
(RPZ) as runways potentially expand. A direct access runway is no longer allowed. FAA wants 



 

 

pilots to turn at least once from the apron before they enter a wait line. Hold aprons are no 
longer allowed. There are 33 crosswind runways being closed in Wisconsin, out of a total of 99 
crosswind runways that exist in the state, but if the crosswind runway is in good condition, 
airports don’t have to decommission it yet. We are expected under grant assurances to provide 
a safe airport. FAA wants to force airports into land use assurances. 

g.    Exhibit C ‐ Airside Facility Requirements was presented. The Platteville Airport should look at a 
5,000 ft or 5,500 ft runway. Our parallel taxiway dimensions are too narrow.  

h.    Exhibit D ‐ Landside Facility Requirements was presented. We are more flexible with what we 
can do with landside improvements, compared to airside improvements. Airside is much more 
specific and technical. The Platteville Airport is OK with a two‐week fuel supply unless a supply 
issue arises. 

i.     Exhibit E ‐ Airfield Alternative 1 was presented. Extension of Runway 15/33 is more feasible than 
the other. 

j.     Exhibit F ‐ Airfield Alternatives F2 through J5 were presented. Platteville’s real choice for 
expansion is runway 15/33, if we do Coffman’s recommended impacts out 500’ on each side of 
the runway centerline. Any of the Exhibit Options could be customized.  FAA policy is no new 
pavement. An expansion construction project would be 3 to 8 years out from the point in time 
that we first can justify the need for expansion. The FAA doesn’t prohibit airports from doing 
things with the airports or community’s own money. The obvious expansion candidate would be 
15/33. Our next step would be writing a Runway Expansion Needs thesis. 

k.    Exhibit K – Landside Development Alternatives: Alternatives 1, 2, 3 were discussed. Dmyterko 
stated that he came to Platteville for a site visit to make sure that the recommendation is 
Platteville’s and not Coffman’s. Dmyterko recommended that Commission Members review the 
whole draft and then comment. FAA wants to take the crosswind runways of their ledger, so 
they can better manage their budgets. FAA hates it when Airports pursue what they want 
through a political route, but 90% of Airports get what they want politically. Coffman 
recommends that Platteville stay in touch with their legislators. The Cares Act was very political, 
and different airports received vastly different amounts of Cares Act funding. Olthafer‐Lange 
asked about a new airport Fixed‐base Operator (FBO) building. The timeline is to get information 
back to Coffman by the next Commission meeting (September 13th). The goal is for Coffman to 
complete the report by mid‐November to mid‐December. 

l.    Cooley asked about the financial model. We are seen as an “Airport with a farm”, and because of 
the farmland lease income, the Platteville Airport is only one of two financially self‐supporting 
airports in the state, and the Platteville Airport is much more than this. Dmyterko stated that 
the economic potential of the Platteville Airport is tremendous. There are a lot of companies 
that do economic studies of airports, and an economic impact study would be beneficial. The 
airport is an asset to the City of Platteville.  

m.  Kathy Kopp, at 7:35 pm, noted that she needed to leave the meeting now for another   
       engagement. 

 

V.  Broadband Fiber Discussion with County: Cooley, Chair 

a.   The broadband fiber run will include the Airport. Bill Kloster (previous Airport Chair) was at the 

recent Platteville Community Area Network (PCAN) meeting and noted the Airport connection is 

needed. Cooley said that the Airport should be part of the grant. Connection redundancy is 

wanted. Cooley stated that he hopes all 314 airports in the state can get linked in. The strong 

fiber ring operates on a fiber map (11‐tower system). Platteville, Lancaster, Muscoda, and 



 

 

Wisnet will get pulled in. People are working together, and saving costs, but not a 5‐figure cost. 

The fiber is coming in on Pleasant Valley Road. 

 

VI. Treasurer’s Report, July 31, 2021: Du Plessis, Treasurer. Report read by Cooley, Chair 

a. Monthly Income, from Financial Report:      $123,259.37 

b. Monthly Expense, from Financial Report:     $17,462.21 

c. Monthly Invoice Payments:           $86,873.86 

d. Maurer noted that the Cares Act Funding reimbursement of A&A management cost will remain 

$0 for 2021 but is credited in 2020 for $30,000.  Because the Cares Act Funding was booked as 

revenue for 2020, it is a little choppy to follow, but this is how the bookkeeping worked out.  

e. Olthafer‐Lange mentioned $32,000 of ARP funding, and that Josh Holbrook had advised her to 

write a request for the funding.  Cooley stated that Josh Holbrook and Mark Graczykowski (both 

are Airport Development Engineers at the Bureau of Aviation (BoA)) have been great to work 

with. 

f. Expenditures run rate is at 38.7%. Maurer noted that the most‐recent fuel purchase expenditure 

has not shown up yet. Olthafer‐Lange stated that $60,000 of fuel inventory is now in the tanks. 

g. Motion by Cooley to approve the Treasurer’s Report and pay the vouchers. 2nd by Sener. Passes 

unanimously.  

 

 VII. Manager’s Report: A&A Aviation Manager 

a. General Airfield Operations: 

 Olthafer‐Lange stated that July was a great month, and we set an all‐time record high for 

monthly fuel sales. The attributing factor was record fuel sales to crop dusters. Lange did a 

great job for his work in building relationships with crop dusters. Crop dusting activity has 

been very busy. 

 Avfuel (fuel supplier) was slow in getting the fuel invoice to us.  

 Have approx. 8,000 gallon of Jet‐A fuel, and 6,000 gallon of AV gas (100LL fuel) 

 Maurer stated that the gas received has not been paid for yet, that is why we are seeing an 

uptick in cash. 

 Lange stated that is a good thing that the price of corn is up (land lease rate is indexed to 

the price of corn). 

 Hangar Status: Full, 2 on waiting list. 

 FVT Meeting end of August, Business After Hours will be rescheduled (no date set yet but 

will probably be early September). The Business After Hours will help show the economic 

impact of the Airport. 

 Lange stated that we have received the snow removal equipment, the manufacturer is 

Caterpillar. We have not received the brush attachment yet, but it should be here in a few 

weeks. 

 We were going to have a meeting with Fox Valley at the end of this month, and they are 

feeling the pain of losing flight training instructors to industry. The meeting will be Tuesday, 

Sept. 28th, 10:00 am – noon. 



 

 

 Xiao recommended better collaboration/partnership with University of Dubuque and 

others. 

 Pancake breakfast was a huge success in terms of attendance. 

 Olthafer‐Lange performed an aircraft short takeoff and landing (STOL) demonstration at 

the Oshkosh FAA, and it was very successful. 

 Herbert received an email from a potential construction bidder, Tricon Construction, asking 

if it was possible to request an extension to the hangar completion deadline from May 15th 

to June 15th, based on concern for steel availability. The Commission informed Herbert no. 

 

b. Flight Operations:  

Flight Activity July 2021  Flight Activity July 2020 

Total Flights 1998  Total Flights 2342 

Personal       332  Personal        302 

Business        262  Business        352 

Instruction 1404  Instruction 1688 

 

c. Fuel Sales: 

Fuel Sales July 2021  Fuel Sales for July 2020 

100LL 6421 Gallons  100LL 5299 Gallons 

JetA    5524 Gallons  JetA    6373 Gallons 

 

d. Fuel Purchased and Current Price (July 2021): 

Fuel Type  Quan. Purchased   Current Price 

100LL  7868  $4.35 

JetA  7445  $3.75 

 

VIII. Legislative Relationship Building: Cooley, Chair 

       a.   Cooley stated that a lot people want to land more at the Platteville Airport, noting that  

             Newt Gingrich had wanted to land at Platteville but could not because the runway was not long  

             enough. Governor Walker had also wanted to visit Platteville more frequently, but could not  

             because the runway was not long enough. 



 

 

b.  The legislative approach to pursuing airport project financial support is the way to go because 

FAA does not hold the use of the political route against airports anymore. 

c.  Holbrook stated that Strand needs to set up data points/shots yet and will work on the Airport 

Layout Plan (ALP) soon, as part of the schedule this fall. The ALP will be detailed enough. 

d.  Hangar bids are due August 19th. Holbrook noted that there will be at least two bids received. 

Erect‐A‐Tube was mentioned. Bid opening will be at the BoA Headquarters. The Platteville Airport 

could still go design‐build if that is what is desired in the end. 

 
IX. Adjournment: Cooley, Chairman 

a. Motion to adjourn by Xiao, 2nd by Sener. Passes unanimously. Adjourned at 8:19 PM 
 
 
 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
ACTION 
ITEM NUMBER:  
VII.A. 

TITLE:   
Revision of Chapter 8 – Sewer Service  
 
 

DATE 
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY:  Howard B. Crofoot, P.E., Director of Public Works 

 

Description: 

The City of Platteville’s Ordinance regarding sanitary sewer service is Chapter 8 in the Municipal Code.  It has 
served us well since its last revision in 1985.  The Public Service Commission granted our request to remove 
the City’s sanitary sewer service from their authority to establish rates.  The Ordinance has been updated to 
show that the Water and Sewer Commission will recommend rates to the Common Council for adoption. 

 

Enclosed is a redlined version of items to add/ change or delete from the current Ordinance.  Items added 
include the ability to charge industrial users for wastewater components other than Biologic Oxygen Demand 
(BOD) or Total Suspended Solids (TSS).  We now charge for nitrogen and phosphorous.  Staff updated the 
penalties section to increase the forfeitures to be more in line with today’s costs. 
 

Budget/Fiscal Impact:  
This will provide the authority to increase sewer rates in a subsequent action. 
 

Recommendation: 
The Water and Sewer Commission and Staff recommend approval. 
 

Sample Affirmative Motion: 
“I move to approve Ordinance 21-07 the enclosed revision to the Platteville Municipal Code, Chapter 8, Sewer 
Service.” 
  

Attachments:   

• Ordinance 21-07 

• Proposed Chapter 8 Sewer Service 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 21-07 

 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE USE OF PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SEWERS AND 

DRAINS, PRIVATE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL, THE INSTALLATION AND 

CONNECTION OF BUILDING SEWERS, AND DISCHARGE OF WATERS AND 

WASTES INTO THE PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM(S): 

AND PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF:  IN THE 

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 

 

The Common Council of the City of Platteville do ordain as follows: 

 

SECTION 1: Chapter 8, of the Municipal Code of the City of Platteville is hereby revoked and 

recreated as follows, excluding rules and regulations: 

 

(1) Definitions:  Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the meaning of terms used 

in this ordinance shall be as follows: 

 

“Approving Authority” shall mean the Director of Public Works of the City of Platteville, 

or a duly authorized deputy, agent or representative. 

 

“BOD” (denoting Biochemical Oxygen Demand) shall mean the quantity of oxygen utilized 

in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard laboratory procedure in 

five (5) days at 20 degrees C., expressed in milligrams per liter (mg/L).  Quantitative 

determination of BOD shall be made in accordance with procedures set forth in 

Standard Methods. 

 

“Building Drain” shall mean that part of the lowest horizontal piping of a drainage system 

which receives the discharge from soil, waste, and other drainage pipes inside the 

walls of the building and convey it to the building sewer, beginning five (5) feet (1.5 

meters) outside the inner face of the building wall. 

 

“Building Inspector” shall mean the building inspector of the City of Platteville or said 

person’s appointed assistant, agent, or representative. 

 

“Building Sewer” shall mean the extension from the building drain to the public sewer or 

other place of disposal. 

 

 “Chlorine requirement” shall mean the amount of chlorine in milligrams per liter, which 

must be added to sewage to produce a specified chlorine content in accordance with procedures set 

forth in Standard Methods. 

 

“City” shall mean the City of Platteville, Wisconsin. 

 

 

“Combined sewer” shall mean a sewer receiving both surface run-off and sewage.  A 

Combined Sewer is illegal in the City of Platteville. 



 

 

 

“Commission” or “Water and Sewer Commission” shall mean the Water and Sewer 

Commission of the City of Platteville or said commission’s appointed agent or 

representative. 

 

“Debt Service” shall mean costs to the sewer department for the retirement of debts incurred 

in the provision of wastewater facilities, including both principal and interest. 

 

“Floatable Oil” is oil, fat, or grease in a physical state such that it will separate by gravity 

from wastewater in an approved pretreatment facility.  A wastewater shall be 

considered free of floatable oil if it is properly pretreated, and the wastewater does not 

interfere with the collection system. 

 

“Garbage” shall mean solid wastes from the domestic and commercial preparation, cooking, 

and dispensing of food, and from the handling, storage, and sale of food products and 

produce. 

 

 “Industrial User” shall mean: 

 

(a) Any non-governmental, non-residential user of a publicly owned treatment works 

which discharges more than the equivalent of 25,000 gallons per day (gpd) of sanitary 

waste and which is identified in the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Manual, 

US Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration, as 

amended and supplemented under one of the following divisions: 

 

  Division A. Agriculture, Forestry, and Fishing. 

 

  Division B. Mining. 

 

  Division D. Manufacturing. 

 

Division E. Transportation, Communications, Electric, Gas and Sanitary Services. 

 

  Division I. Services. 

 

(1) In determining the amount of a user’s discharge, the city will exclude domestic 

waste or discharges from sanitary conveniences. 

 

(2) After applying the sanitary waste exclusion in subparagraph (1) of this 

paragraph, discharges in the above divisions that have a volume exceeding 

25,000 gpd or exceeding the weight of biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), 

or total suspended solids (TSS), or Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN), or Total 

Phosphorous (TP) equivalent to that weight found in 25,000 gpd of sanitary 

waste are considered industrial users.  Sanitary waste, for purposes of this 

calculation of equivalency, shall be wastes of Normal Concentration as 

defined in this Ordinance. 



 

3 

 

(b) Any non-governmental user who discharges wastewater to the City’s sewers, which 

wastewater contains toxic pollutants or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases in sufficient 

quantity either singly or by interaction with other waste, to contaminate the sludge of 

the municipal sewer systems, or to injure or to interfere with any sewage treatment 

process, or which constitutes a hazard to humans or animals, creates a public nuisance, 

or creates any hazard in or has an adverse effect on the waters receiving any discharge 

from the treatment works. 

 

 “Industrial Wastes” shall mean wastes discharged by “Industrial Users”. 

 

 “May” is permissive (see “Shall”, below). 

 

“Natural Outlet” shall mean any outlet into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake or other body 

of surface or ground water. 

 

 “Normal Concentration” shall mean: 

 

 (a) 5-day 20-degree C., BOD of not more than 250 mg/L. 

 

 (b) A TSS content of not more than 250 mg/L. 

 

 (c) A TKN of not more than 40 mg/L 

 

 (e) TP of not more than 7 mg/L 

 

“Normal Wastewater” shall mean wastewater in which BOD or TSS, or TKN or TP 

concentrations do not exceed normal concentrations. 

 

“Operation and Maintenance” shall mean costs to the sewer department for the provision 

of labor, utilities, supplies, equipment maintenance, and other normal costs necessary 

for the provision of sewage service.  Operation and maintenance include replacement. 

 

“Person” shall mean any individual, firm, company, municipal or private corporation, 

association, society, institution, enterprise, governmental agency or other entity. 

 

“pH” shall mean the logarithm (base 10) of the reciprocal of the hydrogen ion concentration 

expressed in moles per liter as determined by “Standard Methods”. 

 

“Phosphorous” shall mean the total phosphorous which is all of the chemical element 

phosphorous present in a sample, regardless of form, expressed in milligrams per liter.  

Quantitative determination of phosphorous shall be made in accordance with Standard 

Methods. 

 

“Properly Shredded Garbage” shall mean the wastes from the preparation, cooking and 

dispensing of food that have been shredded to such a degree that all particles will be 



 

4 

carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in public sewers, with no 

particle greater than one-half (1/2) inch (1.27 centimeters) in any dimension. 

 

“Public Sewer” shall mean any sewer provided by or subject to the jurisdiction of the City.  

The term “public sewer” shall also include sewers within or outside of the City 

sanitary sewer system, even though those sewers may not have been constructed with 

City funds. 

 

“Replacement” shall mean expenditures for obtaining and installing equipment, accessories, 

or appurtenances which are necessary to maintain the capacity and performance 

during the service life of the treatment works for which such works were designed and 

constructed. 

 

“Sanitary Sewer” shall mean a sewer that carries liquid and water-carried wastes from 

residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions together with 

minor quantities of ground, storm, and surface waters that are not admitted 

intentionally. 

 

“Sewage” is the spent water of a community.  The preferred term is “wastewater”. 

 

“Sewer Utility” or “Utility” shall mean the Platteville Municipal Water and Sewer Utility. 

 

 “Sewer” shall mean a pipe or conduit for carrying wastewater. 

 

 “Shall” is mandatory; “May” is permissive. 

 

“Slug” shall mean any discharge of water or wastewater which in concentration of any given 

constituent or in quantity of flow exceeds for any period longer than fifteen (15) 

minutes more than five (5) times the average twenty-four (24) hour concentration or 

flows during normal operation and shall adversely affect the collection system and/or 

performance of the wastewater treatment works. 

 

 “Standard Methods” shall mean the procedures and methods described in the most current 

edition of “Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater” as approved by the 

Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 

 

“Storm Sewer” as defined in Chapter 48 of the City of Platteville Municipal Code. 

 

“Suspended Solids (SS)” shall mean total suspended matter that either floats on the surface 

of, or is in suspension in water, wastewater, or other liquids, and that is removable by 

laboratory filtering as determined by Standard Methods and referred to as 

nonfilterable residue.  Also, may be expressed as Total Suspended Solids (TSS). 

 

“Unpolluted Water” is water of quality equal to or better than the effluent criteria in effect 

or water that would not cause violation of receiving water quality standards and would 



 

5 

not be benefited by discharge to the sanitary sewers and wastewater treatment 

facilities provided. 

 

“User Charge” (or Wastewater Service Charge) shall mean a charge levied on users of 

wastewater treatment works and the sanitary sewer system for the cost of operation 

and maintenance and debt service for such facilities.  The term operation and 

maintenance include Replacement. 

 

“Wastewater” shall mean the spent water of a community.  From the standpoint of sources, 

it may be a combination of the liquid and water-carried wastes from residences, 

commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions, together with any ground 

water, surface water, and storm water that may be present. 

 

“Wastewater Facilities” shall mean the structures, equipment, and processes required to 

collect, carry away, and treat domestic and industrial wastes and dispose of the 

effluent. 

 

“Wastewater Treatment Works” shall mean an arrangement of devices and structures for 

treating wastewater, industrial wastes, and sludge.  Sometimes used as synonymous 

with “waste treatment plant” or “wastewater treatment plant” or “water 

pollution control plant”, or “water resource recovery facility”. 

 

“Watercourse” shall mean a natural or artificial channel for the passage of water either 

continuously or intermittently. 

 

(2) User Charges 

 

(a) Normal Sewage Service Charge:  There is hereby levied and assessed upon each lot 

or parcel of land with a building having a lateral available to discharge normal sewage 

to the public sewer system, a wastewater service charge based upon rates established 

by the Water and Sewer Commission and approved by Resolution of the Common 

Council. Said charges shall be assessed and collected monthly. 

 

 The Wastewater service charges taxed or levied pursuant to this Ordinance shall be 

collected by the Utility at the Municipal Building.  The Commission shall make and 

enforce such bylaws and regulations as may be deemed necessary for the safe, 

economical and efficient operation, management and protection of the City sewer 

system, the wastewater treatment plant and the Utility. 

 

 If commercial or industrial customers obtain all or any part of their water from sources 

other than the Platteville Municipal Water Utility, all or any part of which is 

discharged into the public sewers, the customer shall be required to have a water meter 

or meters installed for the purpose of determining the volume of water obtained from 

these other sources.  Should the Commission determine that the water usage is too 

small to justify a meter, the Commission shall have the authority to waive this 

requirement and a flat rate shall be charged based on estimated water usage and the 



 

6 

metered rate schedule.  The water meters shall be furnished by the Utility and installed 

by the Utility.  All other costs in connection with the water meter installation shall be 

at the expense of the customer.  The Utility will charge for each meter at the rate of 

fifty (50) percent of the basic monthly water rate set for the size meter to compensate 

for furnishing, reading, and servicing the meter This charge shall be in addition to the 

Wastewater Service Charge. 

 

 If residential customers obtain all or part of their water from sources other than the 

Platteville Municipal Water Utility, all or any part of which is discharged into the 

public sewers, a flat rate charge shall be paid for Wastewater Service.  Should the 

Commission determine that the minimum flat rate charge is less than the charge would 

be on a metered basis, the Commission shall have the authority to set a higher rate 

based on estimated total usage and the metered rate schedule.  Should the residential 

customer request it, a water meter shall be installed, and the customer shall be charged 

on the same basis as commercial or industrial customers having private water supplies. 

 

(b) Minimum Charge:  The “minimum” monthly wastewater service charge shall be 

established by the Water and Sewer Commission and approved by Resolution of the 

Common Council and shall be consistent with the Utility’s User Charge System as 

approved by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. 

 

(c) Volume Charge:  In addition to the minimum charge, there shall be a charge for all 

flow based on water usage as determined by the Water Utility.  The rate of volume 

charge shall be established by the Water and Sewer Commission and approved by 

Resolution of the Common Council and shall be consistent with the Utility’s User 

Charge System as approved by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. 

 

 (d) Industrial and Commercial Charges for Other Than Normal Wastewater: 

 

1. Charges for wastewater other than Normal Wastewater shall be based on 

Flow, BOD, TSS TKN, TP, and such other constituents which affect the cost 

of collection and treatment.  Charges shall be made in accordance with rates 

established as set forth in Section 1(2)(d)3 below. 

 

2. All persons discharging wastes into the public sewers are subject to a 

surcharge, in addition to any other wastewater service charge, if their 

wastewater has a concentration greater than “normal” concentrations (see 

definition).  The volume of flow used for computing waste surcharges shall be 

the metered water consumption, subject to adjustments as otherwise herein 

provided, or the actual volume of waste as determined by an industrial waste 

metering installation.  The amount of surcharge shall reflect the cost incurred 

by the Utility in removing BOD, Suspended Solids, and other pertinent 

constituents. 

 

3. Rates of Surcharge.  The rates of surcharge for each of the aforementioned 

constituents shall be as ordered by the Common Council and shall be 



 

7 

consistent with the Utility’s User Charge System as approved by the 

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. 

 

4. In addition to the above surcharges, the Utility’s costs of sampling and 

analyzing industrial wastes shall be charged to the applicable industry. 

 

5. Where industrial wastes are of such a strength or magnitude or are delivered 

over such a period of time that the above surcharges do not reflect the actual 

cost of treatment to the Utility, the Utility shall have the right to establish a 

special charge for handling the waste.  That portion of the charge related to 

capital investment shall be based on the design capacity required for the 

particular waste.  In no event shall the charges be less than those charges 

determined by applying the above surcharge. 

 

(e) Industrial Waste Pretreatment:  In the event the Utility provides pretreatment of 

industrial wastes, the entire cost of such pretreatment shall be charged to the person 

producing the industrial wastes.  The costs shall include but not be limited to capital 

expenditures, operation and maintenance expenses, labor, chemicals, heat and power. 

 

(f) Contract Basis:  Nothing in this Ordinance shall prohibit the City from providing 

wastewater services to persons outside the corporate limits of the City under mutually 

agreeable conditions. 

 

(g) Remedies from Failure to Pay Service Charges:  Each Wastewater service charge 

levied by or pursuant to this Ordinance is hereby made a lien upon the corresponding 

lot, land, or premises served by a connection to the sanitary sewer system of the City 

and if the same is not paid within the period allotted for such payment, said charge 

shall constitute a lien on the property served and be inserted in the City tax roll as 

provided in Section 66.076(7) of the Wisconsin Statutes in the same manner as water 

rates are taxed and collected under the provisions of Section 66.069(1) or 66.071(1)(e) 

of the Wisconsin Statutes as same has been, and from time to time may be amended 

or recreated, so far as applicable. 

 

(h) Annual Audit:  An audit of the Utility’s financial standing shall be made annually.  

This audit will be used to review the adequacy of the extra existing rates and said rates 

shall be adjusted if necessary to provide sufficient revenues to adequately finance the 

Utility’s operation in accordance with the original intent of the rate structure. 

 

 The annual audit and review shall also be used to ensure that each recipient of sewage 

service (or user class) is charged in proportion to the cost of providing said recipient 

(or user class) with sewage service.  Excess revenues collected for Operation and 

Maintenance from a class of users shall be applied to the costs of Operation and 

Maintenance attributable to that class for the next year and the rates shall be adjusted 

accordingly. 

 



 

8 

(i) Late Payment Charge:  All charges under this Ordinance which are not paid within 20 

days of billing date are subject to a late payment charge of three percent of the net 

billing, such charges shall be placed in the operation, maintenance and replacement 

account. 

 

(j) Replacement Fund:  Annual income from the Wastewater Service Charges which 

constitute funds required for “Replacement” shall be separately accounted for and 

shall not be utilized for any purposes other than Replacement. 

 

(k) Notification:  Each billing shall identify the amount billed which is attributable to 

sewer service. 

 

(3) Use of Public Sewers Required 

 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to place, deposit, or permit to be deposited in any 

unsanitary manner on public or private property within the City or in any area under 

the jurisdiction of said City, any human or animal excrement, garbage or other 

objectionable waste. 

 

(b) It shall be unlawful to discharge to any natural outlet within the City, or in any area 

under the jurisdiction of said City, any wastewater or other polluted waters, except 

where suitable treatment has been provided in accordance with subsequent provisions 

of this Ordinance. 

 

(c) Except as hereinafter provided, it shall be unlawful to construct or maintain within the 

City any privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool, or other facility intended or used for 

the disposal of sewage. 

 

(d) The owners of all houses, buildings, or properties used for human occupancy, 

employment, recreation, or other purposes where sewerage facilities would be 

required, situated within the City and abutting on any street, alley, or right-of-way in 

which there is now located or may in the future be located a public sanitary sewer of 

the City, are hereby required at their expense to install suitable toilet facilities therein, 

and to connect such facilities directly with the proper public sewer in accordance with 

the provisions of this Ordinance within ninety (90) days after date of official notice to 

do so. 



 

9 

(4) Private Wastewater Disposal 

 

(a) Where a public sanitary sewer is not available to structures covered by Section 3(d), 

and with a favorable recommendation of the Commission, the Common Council may 

allow such structures to be connected to a private wastewater disposal system 

complying with the provisions of this section. 

 

(b) Before commencement of the construction of a private wastewater disposal system or 

additions to an existing private wastewater disposal system within the City, the owner 

shall first obtain a written permit from the office of the City Building Inspector. 

 

(c) The type, capacity, location, and layout of a private wastewater disposal system shall 

comply with all requirements of the Wisconsin Department of Health and Social 

Services. 

 

(d) The owner shall operate and maintain the private wastewater disposal facilities in a 

sanitary manner at all times, at no expense to the City. 

 

(e) No statement contained in this section shall be construed to interfere with any 

additional requirements that may be imposed by the City Health Officer or by any 

other laws, ordinances or codes. 

 

(f) At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property served by a private 

wastewater disposal system the building sewer shall be connected to said sewer within 

ninety (90) days and the private wastewater disposal system shall be cleaned of sludge 

and filled with sand, gravel, or similar material. 

 

(5) Building Sewers and Connections 

 

(a) No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any connections with or opening into, 

use, alter or disturb any public sewer or appurtenances thereof without first obtaining 

a written permit from the City Building Inspector. 

 

(b) There shall be two (2) classes of building sewer permits:  1) for residential and 

commercial, and 2) for service to establishments producing industrial wastes.  In either 

case, the owner or the owner’s agent shall make application for a permit on a form 

furnished by the City.  The application shall be supplemented by any plans, 

specifications, or other information considered pertinent by the Commission.  A 

permit and inspection fee as established by the Commission shall be paid to the Utility 

at the time the application is filed. 

 

(c) All costs and expenses incident to the installation and connection of the building sewer 

shall be borne by the owner.  The owner shall indemnify the City and Utility from any 

loss or damage that may directly or indirectly be occasioned by the installation of the 

building sewer. 

 



 

10 

(d) A separate and independent building sewer shall be provided for every building 

intended for human habitation or occupancy. 

 

(e) Old building sewers may be used in connection with new buildings only when they 

are found on examination and test by the Building Inspector to meet all requirements 

of this Ordinance. 

 

(f) The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of a building sewer, and the 

methods to be used in excavating, placing of the pipe, jointing, testing, and back filling 

the trench, shall all conform to the requirements of the building and plumbing code 

and other applicable rules and regulations of the City. 

 

(g) Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be brought to the building at an elevation 

below the basement floor.  In all buildings in which any building drain is too low to 

permit gravity flow to the public sewer, sanitary sewage carried by such building drain 

shall be lifted by an approved means and discharged to the building sewer at the 

owner’s expense. 

 

(h) Roof-leaders, swimming pool drains, surface drains, ground water drains, foundation 

footing drains, and other clear water drains shall be connected wherever possible with 

a storm sewer, but they shall not be connected to a building sewer which discharges 

into a sanitary sewer or private wastewater treatment plant.  All connections to a 

sanitary sewer or private wastewater treatment plant existing at the time of passage of 

this Ordinance shall thereafter be illegal.  If storm water or clear water is being 

discharged into a sanitary sewer, the Commission shall give the offending person 30 

days notice to disconnect.  Failure to disconnect after such notice shall authorize the 

Commission to cause disconnection and assessment of the costs of such disconnection 

against the property involved.  The Commission may, in alternative, institute action 

for violation of this subsection. 

 

(i) The connection of the building sewer into the public sewer shall conform to the 

requirements of the building and plumbing code and other applicable rules and 

regulations of the City. 

 

 Further, all sewer laterals which are defective shall, upon the written direction of the 

Director of Public Works, be promptly repaired or replaced by the owner of the lot in 

which such lateral is located and if such defective laterals are not promptly repaired 

or replaced after written notice by the Director of Public Works that official may have 

such work performed and cost of such work shall be assessed against the property on 

which such lateral is located. 

(j) The applicant for the building sewer permit shall notify the Building Inspector when 

the building sewer is ready for inspection and connection to the public sewer.  The 

connection shall be made under the supervision of the Building Inspector or his 

representative. 

 



 

11 

1. All excavations for building sewer installations shall be adequately guarded 

with barricades and lights so as to protect the public from hazard. 

 

2. Streets, sidewalks, parkways, and other public property disturbed in the course 

of the work shall be restored in a manner satisfactory to the City. 

 

(6) Use of the Public Sewers 

 

(a) No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any storm water, surface water, 

ground water, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, unpolluted cooling water, swimming 

pool water or unpolluted industrial process waters to any sanitary sewer. 

 

(b) Storm water and all other unpolluted drainage shall be discharged to such sewers as 

are specifically designated as storm sewers, or to a natural outlet approved by the 

Commission and other regulatory agencies.  Industrial cooling water or unpolluted 

process waters may be discharged, on approval of the Commission and other 

regulatory agencies having jurisdiction, to a storm sewer or natural outlet. 

 

(c) No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following described 

waters or wastes to any public sewers: 

 

1. Gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil or other flammable or explosive liquid, 

solid, or gas. 

 

2. Any waters or wastes containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or gases in 

sufficient quantity, either singly or by interaction with other wastes, to injure 

or interfere with any wastewater treatment process, constitute a hazard to 

humans or animals, create a public nuisance, or create any hazard in the 

receiving waters of the wastewater treatment plant. 

 

3. Any waters or wastes having a pH lower than 5.5 or higher than 10.0 or having 

any other corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazard to 

structures, equipment, and personnel of the wastewater works. 

 

4. Solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size capable of causing 

obstruction to the flow in sewers, or other interference with the proper 

operation of the wastewater facilities such as, but not limited to ashes, bones, 

cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, plastics, 

wood, unground garbage, whole blood, paunch manure, hair and fleshings, 

entrails, paper dishes, cups, milk containers, sanitary napkins, etc., either 

whole or ground by garbage grinders. 

 

(d) The following described substances, materials, waters, or waste shall be limited in 

discharges to concentrations or quantities which will not harm either the sewers, 

wastewater treatment process or equipment, will not have an adverse effect on the 

receiving stream, will not result in violation of the City’s WPDES permit, or will not 



 

12 

otherwise endanger life, health, public property, or constitute a nuisance.  The 

Commission may set limitations lower than any limitations established in the 

regulations below if, in the Commission’s opinion, more severe limitations are 

necessary to meet the above objectives.  In making this determination, the 

Commission shall give consideration to such factors as the quantity of subject waste 

in relation to flows and velocities in the sewers, materials of construction of the 

sewers, the wastewater treatment process employed, capacity of the wastewater 

treatment plant, degree of treatability of the waste in the wastewater treatment plant 

and other pertinent factors.  The limitations or restrictions on materials or 

characteristics of waste or wastewaters discharged to the sanitary sewer which shall 

not be violated without approval of the Commission are as follows: 

 

1. Wastewater having a temperature higher than 145 degrees Fahrenheit (62 

degrees Celsius). 

 

2. Wastewater containing more than 25 milligrams per liter of petroleum oil, 

non-biodegradable cutting oils, or product of mineral oil origin. 

 

3. Wastewater from industrial plants containing oils, fat, grease, wax, or any 

other similar substance which float or solidify in the wastewater facilities. 

 

4. Any garbage that has not been properly shredded.  Garbage grinders may be 

connected to sanitary sewers from homes, hotels, institutions, restaurants, 

hospitals, catering establishments, or similar places where garbage originates 

from the preparation of food in kitchens for the purpose of consumption on 

the premises or when served by caterers. 

 

5. Any waters or wastes containing aluminum, cadmium, copper, lead, mercury, 

selenium, silver, chromium, zinc, and similar objectionable or toxic 

substances. 

 

  6. Any waters or wastes containing odor-producing substances. 

 

7. Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or concentration as may 

exceed limits established by any State or Federal regulations. 

 

8. Quantities of flow, concentrations or both which constitute a “Slug” as defined 

herein. 

 

9. Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to treatment 

or reduction by the wastewater treatment processes employed or are amenable 

to treatment only to such degree that the wastewater treatment plant effluent 

cannot meet the requirements of other agencies having jurisdiction over 

discharge to the receiving waters. 

 



 

13 

10. Any water or wastes which, by interaction with other water or wastes in the 

public sewer system, release obnoxious gases, form suspended solids which 

interfere with the collection system or create a condition deleterious to 

structures and treatment processes. 

 

(e) If any waters or wastes are discharged or are proposed to be discharged to the public 

sewers, which waters contain the substances or possess the characteristics enumerated 

in Subsection (d) of this Section, and which in the judgment of the Commission, may 

have a deleterious effect upon the wastewater facilities, processes, equipment, or 

receiving waters, or which otherwise create a hazard to life or constitute a public 

nuisance, the Commission may: 

 

  1. Reject the wastes, 

 

2. Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the public 

sewers, 

 

  3. Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge, and/or,  

 

4. Require payment to cover added cost of handling and treating the wastes not 

covered by existing user charges under the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

 When considering the above alternatives, the Commission shall give consideration to 

the economic impact of each alternative on the discharger.  If the Commission permits 

the pretreatment or equalization of waste flows, the design and installation of the 

plants and equipment shall be subject to the review and approval of the Commission. 

 

(f) Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the 

Commission, they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing 

floatable grease or other substances specified in Subsection (d)3, or any flammable 

wastes, sand, or other harmful ingredients, except that such interceptors shall not be 

required for private living quarters or dwelling units.  All interceptors shall be of a 

type and capacity approved by the Commission and shall be located as to be readily 

and easily accessible for cleaning and inspection.  In maintaining these interceptors, 

the owner(s) shall be responsible for the proper removal and disposal by appropriate 

means of the captured material and shall maintain records of the dates and means of 

disposal which shall be subject to review by the Commission.  Any removal and 

hauling of the collected materials not performed by owner(s)’ personnel must be 

performed by currently licensed waste disposal firms.  Means of disposal shall also be 

subject to review by the Commission. 

 

(g) Where pretreatment or flow-equalizing facilities are provided or required for any 

waters or wastes, they shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory and effective 

operation by the owner(s) at his expense. 

 



 

14 

(h) When required by the Commission, the owners of any property serviced by a building 

sewer carrying industrial wastes shall install a suitable structure together with such 

necessary meters and other appurtenances in the building sewer to facilitate 

observation, sampling and measurement of the wastes.  Such structure, when required, 

shall be accessible and safely located and shall be constructed in accordance with 

plans approved by the Commission.  The structure shall be installed by the owner at 

his expense and shall be maintained by him so as to be safe and accessible at all times. 

 

(i) The Commission may require a user of sewer services to provide information needed 

to determine compliance with this Ordinance.  This information may include: 

 

1. Wastewater discharge peak rate and volume over a specified time period. 

 

  2. Chemical analyses of wastewaters. 

 

3. Information on raw materials, processes, and products affecting wastewater 

volume and quality. 

 

4. Quantity and disposition of specific liquid, sludge, oil, solvent, or other 

materials important to sewer use control. 

 

5. A plot plan of sewers for the user’s property showing sewer and pretreatment 

facility location. 

 

  6. Details of wastewater pretreatment facilities. 

 

7. Details of systems to prevent and control the losses of materials through spills 

to the municipal sewer. 

 

(j) All measurements, tests and analyses of the characteristics of waters and wastes to 

which reference is made in this Ordinance shall be determined in accordance with the 

latest edition of “Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater”, 

published by the American Public Health Association.  Sampling methods, locations, 

times, durations and frequencies are to be determined on an individual basis subject 

to approval by the Commission. 

 

(k) No statement contained in this section shall be construed as preventing any special 

agreement or arrangement between the City and Commission and any industrial 

concern whereby an industrial waste of unusual strength or character may be accepted 

by the City for treatment subject to payment therefore at rates established by the 

Commission in this Ordinance. 

 

(l) Accidental Discharges.  The accidental discharge of any prohibited waste into any 

sewer shall be reported to the Commission by the person responsible for the discharge 

or by the owner or occupant of the premises where the discharge occurs immediately 



 

15 

upon obtaining knowledge of the fact of such discharge so that steps may be taken to 

minimize its effect on the treatment plant. 

 

(m) Exemption Meters.  If an industrial user discharging wastes into the public sewers 

produces evidence satisfactory to the Commission that significant amounts of the total 

annual volume of water used for all purposes does not reach the sanitary sewer, the 

customer may be permitted to have an exemption water meter(s) installed.  Said 

meter(s) shall be furnished by the Sewer Department and installed by the Sewer 

Department. 

 

 All other costs shall be at the expense of the customer requiring the meter(s), including 

any piping revisions required to ensure that only water not reaching the sanitary sewer 

is metered by the exemption meter.  The Commission will charge for each meter at 

the rate of fifty (50) percent of the basic monthly water rate set for that size meter to 

compensate for furnishing, reading, and servicing the meter unless otherwise ordered 

by the Public Service Commission.  This charge shall be in addition to the wastewater 

service charge.  The amount of exemption water metered shall be subtracted from the 

total amount of water used by the person to determine the applicable wastewater 

service charge. 

(n) Industrial users shall be prohibited from discharging more than 450 pounds per day of 

BOD or Suspended Solids determined on a monthly average basis without the 

approval of the Commission. 

 

(7) Protection From Damage 

 

 No unauthorized person shall maliciously, willfully, or negligently break, damage, destroy, 

uncover, deface, or tamper with any structure, appurtenance or equipment which is a part of 

the wastewater facilities. 

 

(8) Powers and Authority of Inspectors 

 

(a) The Commission and other duly authorized employees of the City bearing proper 

credentials and identification shall be permitted to enter all properties at reasonable 

times for the purposes of inspection, observation, measurement, sampling and testing 

pertinent to discharge to the sewer system in accordance with the provisions of this 

Ordinance. 

 

(b) The Commission or duly authorized employees are authorized to obtain information 

concerning industrial processes which have a direct bearing on the kind and source of 

discharge to the wastewater collection system.  The industry may withhold 

information considered confidential.  The industry must establish that the revelation 

to the public of the information in question might result in an advantage to 

competitors. 

 



 

16 

(c) While performing the necessary work on private properties referred to in Section 8(a) 

above, the Commission or duly authorized employees of the City shall observe all 

safety rules applicable to the premises established by the company. 

 

(d) The Commission and other duly authorized employees of the City bearing proper 

credentials and identification shall be permitted to enter all private properties through 

which the City holds an easement for the purposes of, but not limited to, inspection, 

observation, measurement, sampling, repair, and maintenance of any portion of the 

wastewater facilities lying within said easement.  All entry and subsequent work if 

any, on said easement, shall be done in full accordance with the terms of the easement. 

 

(9) Penalties 

 

(a) Any person violating any provision of this Ordinance except Section (7) shall be 

served by the Utility with written notice stating the nature of the violation and 

providing a reasonable time limit for the satisfactory correction thereof.  The offender 

shall, within the period of time stated in such notice, permanently cease all violations. 

 

(b) Any person who shall continue any violation beyond the time limit provided for in 

Subsection (a) shall, upon conviction thereof, pay a forfeiture in the amount not less 

than $100.00 and not more than $5,000.00 for each violation.  Each day in which any 

such violation shall continue shall be deemed a separate offense.  This is in addition 

to any forfeiture imposed by other State and Federal agencies. 

 

(c) Any person violating any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall become liable to 

the City and others, as their interests may appear, for any expense, loss, or damage 

occasioned the City or others by reason of such violation, including any costs in 

connection with repairing damages to the wastewater facilities or any downstream 

user or facilities damaged as a result of a prohibited discharge or any other violation 

of this Ordinance.  Said person shall also be liable to the City to reimburse any Federal 

or State forfeitures imposed upon the City for violations of Federal and State permits 

if the violation can be directly attributable to that person. 

 

(10) Validity 

 

(a) Any ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Platteville Municipal Code in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

(b) The invalidity of any section, clause, sentence, or provision of this Ordinance shall 

not affect the validity of any other part of this Ordinance which can be given effect 

without such invalid part or parts. 

 

SECTION 2: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after passage and publication 

and for all billings for wastewater discharge dated after November 1, 2021 

 

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of Platteville, on the 28th day of September, 2021. 



 

17 

 

 

        (Signature) 

        ___________________________ 

        Barbara Daus, Council President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

(Signature) 

______________________________ 

Candace Klaas, City Clerk 

 

 

 



CHAPTER 8 
 

SEWER SERVICE 
 
8.01 SEWER SERVICE RULES ADOPTED.   
 
(a) The Common Council, having authorized the preparation of revised rules and 
regulations for the sewer utility of the City of Platteville, designated “Platteville Water and 
Sewer Utility Rules and Regulations – Sewer”, as part of the Code of general ordinances 
of the City of Platteville and a part of the Municipal Code thereof, which ordinance is in 
booklet form and which has been on file in the office of the City Clerk for more than two 
weeks, the printed copy of such ordinance in booklet form on file in the office of the City 
Clerk is hereby adopted as part of the general ordinances of the City of Platteville as a 
revision of Chapter 8 of the Municipal Code thereof and same shall have the force of law 
upon publication of this ordinance. 
 
(b) Such ordinance shall be published in booklet form suitable for public distribution 

and a copy thereof shall remain permanently on file in the office of the City Clerk 
where it shall be available for public inspection. 

 
  



 
 
 

 

SEWER ORDINANCE 
 

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
 
 
 

ADOPTED:  September 27, 1983 
 
 
 

AMENDMENT ADOPTED:  May 21, 1985 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Printed February 8, 1989 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
            Page 
 
SECTION 1 
 
(1) Definitions  ........................................................................................................1 
(2) User Charges ........................................................................................................5 
 (a) Normal Sewage Service Charge ...............................................................5 
 (b) Minimum Charge........................................................................................6 
 (c) Volume Charge ..........................................................................................6 
 (d) Industrial and Commercial Charges for Other Than 
  Normal Wastewater ...................................................................................6 
 (e) Industrial Waste Pretreatment ...................................................................7 
 (f) Contract Basis ............................................................................................7 
 (g) Remedies from Failure to Pay Service Charges ........................................7 
 (h) Annual Audit ...............................................................................................7 
 (i) Late Payment Charge ................................................................................8 
 (j) Replacement Fund.....................................................................................8 
 (k) Notification .................................................................................................8 
(3) Use of Public Sewers Required ............................................................................8 
(4) Private Wastewater Disposal ................................................................................9 
(5) Building Sewers and Connections ........................................................................9 
(6) Use of the Public Sewers ......................................................................................11 
(7) Protection From Damage ......................................................................................16 
(8) Powers and Authority of Inspectors ......................................................................16 
(9) Penalties  ........................................................................................................16 
(10) Validity  ........................................................................................................17 
 
SECTION 2 
 
Ordinance Amending Chapter 8(5)(i) ...............................................................................18 



AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE USE OF PUBLIC AND 
PRIVATE SEWERS AND DRAINS, PRIVATE WASTEWATER 

DISPOSAL, THE INSTALLATION AND CONNECTION OF 
BUILDING SEWERS, AND DISCHARGE OF WATERS AND 

WASTES INTO THE PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM(S): 
AND PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF:  IN 

THE 
 

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of Platteville do ordain as follows: 
 
SECTION 1: Chapter 8, of the Municipal Code of the City of Platteville is hereby revoked 
and recreated as follows, excluding rules and regulations: 
 
(1) Definitions:  Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the meaning of 

terms used in this ordinance shall be as follows: 
 

“Approving Authority” shall mean the Director of Public Works of the City of 
Platteville, or a duly authorized deputy, agent or representative. 

 
“BOD” (denoting Biochemical Oxygen Demand) shall mean the quantity of oxygen 

utilized in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard 
laboratory procedure in five (5) days at 20 degrees C., expressed in 
milligrams per liter (mg/L).  Quantitative determination of BOD shall be made 
in accordance with procedures set forth in Standard Methods. 

 
“Building Drain” shall mean that part of the lowest horizontal piping of a drainage 

system which receives the discharge from soil, waste, and other drainage 
pipes inside the walls of the building and convey it to the building sewer, 
beginning five (5) feet (1.5 meters) outside the inner face of the building wall. 

 
“Building Inspector” shall mean the building inspector of the City of Platteville or 

said person’s appointed assistant, agent, or representative. 
 

“Building Sewer” shall mean the extension from the building drain to the public 
sewer or other place of disposal. 

 
 “Chlorine requirement” shall mean the amount of chlorine in milligrams per liter, 
which must be added to sewage to produce a specified chlorine content in accordance 
with procedures set forth in Standard Methods. 
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold



“City” shall mean the City of Platteville, Wisconsin. 
 

 
“Combined sewer” shall mean a sewer receiving both surface run-off and 

sewage.  A Combined Sewer is illegal in the City of Platteville. 
 
“Commission” or “Water and Sewer Commission” shall mean the Water and 

Sewer Commission of the City of Platteville or said commission’s appointed 
agent or representative. 

 
“Debt Service” shall mean costs to the sewer department for the retirement of 

debts incurred in the provision of wastewater facilities, including both 
principal and interest. 

 
“Floatable Oil” is oil, fat, or grease in a physical state such that it will separate by 

gravity from wastewater in an approved pretreatment facility.  A wastewater 
shall be considered free of floatable oil if it is properly pretreated and the 
wastewater does not interfere with the collection system. 

 
“Garbage” shall mean solid wastes from the domestic and commercial 

preparation, cooking, and dispensing of food, and from the handling, 
storage, and sales of meat, fish, fowl, fruits, vegetables and condemned 
food.sale of food products and produce. 

 
 “Industrial User” shall mean: 
 

(a) Any non-governmental, non-residential user of a publicly owned treatment 
works which discharges more than the equivalent of 25,000 gallons per day 
(gpd) of sanitary waste and which is identified in the Standard Industrial 
Classification (SIC) Manual, , 1972, Office of Management and BudgetUS 
Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Administration, as 
amended and supplemented under one of the following divisions: 

 
  Division A. Agriculture, Forestry, and Fishing. 
 
  Division B. Mining. 
 
  Division D. Manufacturing. 
 

Division E. Transportation, Communications, Electric, Gas and Sanitary 
Services. 

 
  Division I. Services. 
 

(1) In determining the amount of a user’s discharge, the City will exclude 
domestic waste or discharges from sanitary conveniences. 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

3 

 
(2) After applying the sanitary waste exclusion in subparagraph (1) of this 

paragraph, discharges in the above divisions that have a volume 
exceeding 25,000 gpd or exceeding the weight of biochemical 
oxygen demand (BOD), or total suspended solids (TSS), or Total 
Kjeldahl Nitrogen (TKN), or Total Phosphorous (TP)  equivalent to 
that weight found in 25,000 gpd of sanitary waste are considered 
industrial users.  Sanitary waste, for purposes of this calculation of 
equivalency, shall be wastes of Normal Concentration as defined in 
this Ordinance. 

 
(b) Any non-governmental user who discharges wastewater to the City’s 

sewers, which wastewater contains toxic pollutants or poisonous solids, 
liquids, or gases in sufficient quantity either singly or by interaction with other 
waste, to contaminate the sludge of the municipal sewer systems, or to 
injure or to interfere with any sewage treatment process, or which constitutes 
a hazard to humans or animals, creates a public nuisance, or creates any 
hazard in or has an adverse effect on the waters receiving any discharge 
from the treatment works. 

 
 “Industrial Wastes” shall mean wastes discharged by “Industrial Users”. 
 
 “May” is permissive (see “Shall”, below). 
 

“Natural Outlet” shall mean any outlet into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake or 
other body of surface or ground water. 

 
 “Normal Concentration” shall mean: 
 
 (a) 5-day 20 degree C., BOD of not more than 250 mg/L. 
 
 (b) A suspended solidsTSS content of not more than 250 mg/L. 
 
 (c) A TKN of not more than 40 mg/L 
 
 (e) TP of not more than 7 mg/L 
 

“Normal Wastewater” shall mean wastewater in which BOD or suspended 
solidsTSS, or TKN or TP concentrations do not exceed normal 
concentrations. 

 
“Operation and Maintenance” shall mean costs to the sewer department for the 

provision of labor, utilities, supplies, equipment maintenance, and other 
normal costs necessary for the provision of sewage service.  Operation and 
maintenance includes replacement. 

 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

4 

“Persons” shall mean any individual, firm, company, municipal or private 
corporation, association, society, institution, enterprise, governmental 
agency or other entity. 

 
“pH” shall mean the logarithm (base 10) of the reciprocal of the hydrogen ion 

concentration expressed in moles per liter as determined by “Standard 
Methods”. 

 
“Phosphorous”  shall mean the total phosphorous which is all of the chemical 

element phosphorous present in a sample, regardless of form, expressed in 
milligrams per liter.  Quantitative determination of phosphorous shall be 
made in accordance with Standard Methods. 

 
“Properly Shredded Garbage” shall mean the wastes from the preparation, 

cooking and dispensing of food that have been shredded to such a degree 
that all particles will be carried freely under the flow conditions normally 
prevailing in public sewers, with no particle greater than one-half (1/2) inch 
(1.27 centimeters) in any dimension. 

 
“Public Sewer” shall mean a sewer in which all owners of abutting properties have 

equal rights, and is controlled by public authority.any sewer provided by or 
subject to the jurisdiction of the City.  The term “public sewer” shall also 
include sewers within or outside of the City sanitary sewer system, even 
though those sewers may not have been constructed with City funds. 

 
“Replacement” shall mean expenditures for obtaining and installing equipment, 

accessories, or appurtenances which are necessary to maintain the capacity 
and performance during the service life of the treatment works for which 
such works were designed and constructed. 

 
“Sanitary Sewer” shall mean a sewer that carries liquid and water-carried wastes 

from residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions 
together with minor quantities of ground, storm, and surface waters that are 
not admitted intentionally. 

 
“Sewage” is the spent water of a community.  The preferred term is 

“wastewater”. 
 

“Sewer Utility” or “Utility” shall mean the Platteville Municipal Water and Sewer 
Utility. 

 
 “Sewer” shall mean a pipe or conduit for carrying wastewater. 
 
 “Shall” is mandatory; “May” is permissive. 
 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

5 

“Slug” shall mean any discharge of water or wastewater which in concentration of 
any given constituent or in quantity of flow exceeds for any period longer 
than fifteen (15) minutes more than five (5) times the average twenty-four 
(24) hour concentration or flows during normal operation and shall adversely 
affect the collection system and/or performance of the wastewater treatment 
works. 

 
 “Standard Methods” shall mean the procedures and methods described in the 
most current edition of “Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater” 
as approved by the Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 
 

“Storm Sewer” shall mean a sewer which carries storm and surface waters and 
drainage, but excludes wastewater and industrial wastes, other than 
unpolluted cooling water.as defined in Chapter 48 of the City of Platteville 
Municipal Code. 

 
“Suspended Solids (SS)” shall mean total suspended matter that either floats on 

the surface of, or is in suspension in water, wastewater, or other liquids, and 
that is removable by laboratory filtering as prescribed in “Standard 
Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater”determined by 
Standard Methods and referred to as nonfilterable residue.  Also may be 
expressed as Total Suspended Solids (TSS). 

 
“Unpolluted Water” is water of quality equal to or better than the effluent criteria in 

effect or water that would not cause violation of receiving water quality 
standards and would not be benefited by discharge to the sanitary sewers 
and wastewater treatment facilities provided. 

 
“User Charge” (or Wastewater Service Charge) shall mean a charge levied on 

users of wastewater treatment works and the sanitary sewer system for the 
cost of operation and maintenance and debt service for such facilities.  The 
term operation and maintenance includes Replacement. 

 
“Wastewater” shall mean the spent water of a community.  From the standpoint of 

sources, it may be a combination of the liquid and water-carried wastes from 
residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions, together 
with any ground water, surface water, and storm water that may be present. 

 
“Wastewater Facilities” shall mean the structures, equipment, and processes 

required to collect, carry away, and treat domestic and industrial wastes and 
dispose of the effluent. 

 
“Wastewater Treatment Works” shall mean an arrangement of devices and 

structures for treating wastewater, industrial wastes, and sludge.  
Sometimes used as synonymous with “waste treatment plant” or 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

6 

“wastewater treatment plant” or “water pollution control plant”, or 
“water resource recovery facility”. 

 
“Watercourse” shall mean a natural or artificial channel for the passage of water 

either continuously or intermittently. 
 
(2) User Charges 
 

(a) Normal Sewage Service Charge:  There is hereby levied and assessed 
upon each lot or parcel of land with a building having a lateral available to 
discharge normal sewage to the public sewer system, a wastewater service 
charge based upon rates established by the Public Service Commission, 
State of Wisconsin.  by the Water and Sewer Commission and approved by 
Resolution of the Common Council. Said charges shall be assessed and 
collected monthly. 

 
 The Wastewater service charges taxed or levied pursuant to this Ordinance 

shall be collected by the Utility at the Municipal Building.  The Commission 
shall make and enforce such bylaws and regulations as may be deemed 
necessary for the safe, economical and efficient operation, management and 
protection of the City sewer system, the wastewater treatment plant and the 
Utility. 

 
 If commercial or industrial customers obtain all or any part of their water from 

sources other than the Platteville Municipal Water Utility, all or any part of 
which is discharged into the public sewers, the customer shall be required to 
have a water meter or meters installed for the purpose of determining the 
volume of water obtained from these other sources.  Should the Commission 
determine that the water usage is too small to justify a meter, the 
Commission shall have the authority to waive this requirement and a flat rate 
shall be charged based on estimated water usage and the metered rate 
schedule.  The water meters shall be furnished by the Utility and installed by 
the Utility.  All other costs in connection with the water meter installation shall 
be at the expense of the customer.  The Utility will charge for each meter at 
the rate of fifty (50) percent of the basic monthly water rate set for the size 
meter to compensate for furnishing, reading and servicing the meter unless 
otherwise ordered by the Public Service Commission.  This charge shall be 
in addition to the Wastewater Service Charge. 

 
 If residential customers obtain all or part of their water from sources other 

than the Platteville Municipal Water Utility, all or any part of which is 
discharged into the public sewers, a flat rate charge shall be paid for 
Wastewater Service.  Should the Commission determine that the minimum 
flat rate charge is less than the charge would be on a metered basis, the 
Commission shall have the authority to set a higher rate based on estimated 
total usage and the metered rate schedule.  Should the residential customer 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

7 

request it, a water meter shall be installed and the customer shall be 
charged on the same basis as commercial or industrial customers having 
private water supplies. 

 
(b) Minimum Charge:  The “minimum” monthly wastewater service charge shall 

be established by the Water and Sewer Commission and approved by 
Resolution of the Common Council as ordered by the Wisconsin Public 
Service Commission and shall be consistent with the Utility’s User Charge 
System as approved by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. 

 
(c) Volume Charge:  In addition to the minimum charge, there shall be a charge 

for all flow based on water usage as determined by the Water Utility.  The 
rate of volume charge shall be established by the Water and Sewer 
Commission and approved by Resolution of the Common Council as 
ordered by the Wisconsin Public Service Commission and shall be 
consistent with the Utility’s User Charge System as approved by the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. 

 
 (d) Industrial and Commercial Charges for Other Than Normal Wastewater: 
 

1. Charges for wastewater other than Normal Wastewater shall be 
based on Flow, BOD, TSSSuspended Solids, TKN, TP, and such 
other constituents which affect the cost of collection and treatment.  
Charges shall be made in accordance with rates established as set 
forth in Section 1(2)(d)3 below. 

 
2. All persons discharging wastes into the public sewers are subject to a 

surcharge, in addition to any other wastewater service charge, if their 
wastewater has a concentration greater than “normal” concentrations 
(see definition).  The volume of flow used for computing waste 
surcharges shall be the metered water consumption, subject to 
adjustments as otherwise herein provided, or the actual volume of 
waste as determined by an industrial waste metering installation.  The 
amount of surcharge shall reflect the cost incurred by the Utility in 
removing BOD, Suspended Solids, and other pertinent constituents. 

 
3. Rates of Surcharge.  The rates of surcharge for each of the 

aforementioned constituents shall be as ordered by the Wisconsin 
Public Service CommissionCommon Council and shall be consistent 
with the Utility’s User Charge System as approved by the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources. 

 
4. In addition to the above surcharges, the Utility’s costs of sampling 

and analyzing industrial wastes shall be charged to the applicable 
industry. 

 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

8 

5. Where industrial wastes are of such a strength or magnitude or are 
delivered over such a period of time that the above surcharges do not 
reflect the actual cost of treatment to the Utility, the Utility shall have 
the right to establish a special charge for handling the waste.  That 
portion of the charge related to capital investment shall be based on 
the design capacity required for the particular waste.  In no event 
shall the charges be less than those charges determined by applying 
the above surcharge. 

 
(e) Industrial Waste Pretreatment:  In the event the Utility provides pretreatment 

of industrial wastes, the entire cost of such pretreatment shall be charged to 
the person producing the industrial wastes.  The costs shall include but not 
be limited to capital expenditures, operation and maintenance expenses, 
labor, chemicals, heat and power. 

 
(f) Contract Basis:  Nothing in this Ordinance shall prohibit the City from 

providing wastewater services to persons outside the corporate limits of the 
City under mutually agreeable conditions. 

 
(g) Remedies from Failure to Pay Service Charges:  Each Wastewater service 

charge levied by or pursuant to this Ordinance is hereby made a lien upon 
the corresponding lot, land, or premises served by a connection to the 
sanitary sewer system of the City and if the same is not paid within the 
period allotted for such payment, said charge shall constitute a lien on the 
property served and be inserted in the City tax roll as provided in Section 
66.076(7) of the Wisconsin Statutes in the same manner as water rates are 
taxed and collected under the provisions of Section 66.069(1) or 
66.071(1)(e) of the Wisconsin Statutes as same has been, and from time to 
time may be amended or recreated, so far as applicable. 

 
(h) Annual Audit:  An audit of the Utility’s financial standing shall be made 

annually.  This audit will be used to review the adequacy of the extra existing 
rates and said rates shall be adjusted if necessary to provide sufficient 
revenues to adequately finance the Utility’s operation in accordance with the 
original intent of the rate structure. 

 
 The annual audit and review shall also be used to insureensure that each 

recipient of sewage service (or user class) is charged in proportion to the 
cost of providing said recipient (or user class) with sewage service.  Excess 
revenues collected for Operation and Maintenance from a class of users 
shall be applied to the costs of Operation and Maintenance attributable to 
that class for the next year and the rates shall be adjusted accordingly. 

 
(i) Late Payment Charge:  All charges under this Ordinance which are not paid 

within 20 days of billing date are subject to a late payment charge of three 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

9 

percent of the net billing, such charges shall be placed in the operation, 
maintenance and replacement account. 

 
(j) Replacement Fund:  Annual income from the Wastewater Service Charges 

which constitute funds required for “Replacement” shall be separately 
accounted for and shall not be utilized for any purposes other than 
Replacement. 

 
(k) Notification:  Each billing shall identify the amount billed which is attributable 

to sewer service. 
 
(3) Use of Public Sewers Required 
 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to place, deposit, or permit to be 
deposited in any unsanitary manner on public or private property within the 
City or in any area under the jurisdiction of said City, any human or animal 
excrement, garbage or other objectionable waste. 

 
(b) It shall be unlawful to discharge to any natural outlet within the City, or in any 

area under the jurisdiction of said City, any wastewater or other polluted 
waters, except where suitable treatment has been provided in accordance 
with subsequent provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
(c) Except as hereinafter provided, it shall be unlawful to construct or maintain 

within the City any privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool, or other facility 
intended or used for the disposal of sewage. 

 
(d) The owners of all houses, buildings, or properties used for human 

occupancy, employment, recreation, or other purposes where sewerage 
facilities would be required, situated within the City and abutting on any 
street, alley, or right-of-way in which there is now located or may in the 
future be located a public sanitary sewer of the City, are hereby required at 
their expense to install suitable toilet facilities therein, and to connect such 
facilities directly with the proper public sewer in accordance with the 
provisions of this Ordinance within ninety (90) days after date of official 
notice to do so. 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

10 

(4) Private Wastewater Disposal 
 

(a) Where a public sanitary sewer is not available to structures covered by 
Section 3(d), and with a favorable recommendation of the Commission, the 
Common Council may allow such structures to be connected to a private 
wastewater disposal system complying with the provisions of this section. 

 
(b) Before commencement of the construction of a private wastewater disposal 

system or additions to an existing private wastewater disposal system within 
the City, the owner shall first obtain a written permit from the office of the 
City Building Inspector. 

 
(c) The type, capacity, location, and layout of a private wastewater disposal 

system shall comply with all requirements of the Wisconsin Department of 
Health and Social Services. 

 
(d) The owner shall operate and maintain the private wastewater disposal 

facilities in a sanitary manner at all times, at no expense to the City. 
 

(e) No statement contained in this section shall be construed to interfere with 
any additional requirements that may be imposed by the City Health Officer 
or by any other laws, ordinances or codes. 

 
(f) At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property served by a 

private wastewater disposal system the building sewer shall be connected to 
said sewer within ninety (90) days and the private wastewater disposal 
system shall be cleaned of sludge and filled with sand, gravel, or similar 
material. 

 
(5) Building Sewers and Connections 
 

(a) No unauthorized person shall uncover, make any connections with or 
opening into, use, alter or disturb any public sewer or appurtenances thereof 
without first obtaining a written permit from the City Building Inspector. 

 
(b) There shall be two (2) classes of building sewer permits:  1) for residential 

and commercial, and 2) for service to establishments producing industrial 
wastes.  In either case, the owner or the owner’s agent shall make 
application for a permit on a form furnished by the City.  The application shall 
be supplemented by any plans, specifications, or other information 
considered pertinent by the Commission.  A permit and inspection fee as 
established by the Commission shall be paid to the Utility at the time the 
application is filed. 

 
(c) All costs and expenses incident to the installation and connection of the 

building sewer shall be borne by the owner.  The owner shall indemnify the 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

11 

City and Utility from any loss or damage that may directly or indirectly be 
occasioned by the installation of the building sewer. 

 
(d) A separate and independent building sewer shall be provided for every 

building intended for human habitation or occupancy. 
 

(e) Old building sewers may be used in connection with new buildings only 
when they are found on examination and test by the Building Inspector to 
meet all requirements of this Ordinance. 

 
(f) The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of a building sewer, and 

the methods to be used in excavating, placing of the pipe, jointing, testing, 
and back filling the trench, shall all conform to the requirements of the 
building and plumbing code and other applicable rules and regulations of the 
City. 

 
(g) Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be brought to the building at an 

elevation below the basement floor.  In all buildings in which any building 
drain is too low to permit gravity flow to the public sewer, sanitary sewage 
carried by such building drain shall be lifted by an approved means and 
discharged to the building sewer at the owner’s expense. 

 
(h) Roof-leaders, swimming pool drains, surface drains, ground water drains, 

foundation footing drains, and other clear water drains shall be connected 
wherever possible with a storm sewer, but they shall not be connected to a 
building sewer which discharges into a sanitary sewer or private wastewater 
treatment plant.  All connections to a sanitary sewer or private wastewater 
treatment plant existing at the time of passage of this Ordinance shall 
thereafter be illegal.  If storm water or clear water is being discharged into a 
sanitary sewer, the Commission shall give the offending person 30 days 
notice to disconnect.  Failure to disconnect after such notice shall authorize 
the Commission to cause disconnection and assessment of the costs of 
such disconnection against the property involved.  The Commission may, in 
alternative, institute action for violation of this subsection. 

 
(i) The connection of the building sewer into the public sewer shall conform to 

the requirements of the building and plumbing code and other applicable 
rules and regulations of the City. 

 
 Further, all sewer laterals which are defective shall, upon the written 

direction of the Director of Public Works, be promptly repaired or replaced by 
the owner of the lot in which such lateral is located and if such defective 
laterals are not promptly repaired or replaced after written notice by the 
Director of Public Works that official may have such work performed and 
cost of such work shall be assessed against the property on which such 
lateral is located. 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

12 

(j) The applicant for the building sewer permit shall notify the Building Inspector 
when the building sewer is ready for inspection and connection to the public 
sewer.  The connection shall be made under the supervision of the Building 
Inspector or his representative. 

 
1. All excavations for building sewer installations shall be adequately 

guarded with barricades and lights so as to protect the public from 
hazard. 

 
2. Streets, sidewalks, parkways, and other public property disturbed in 

the course of the work shall be restored in a manner satisfactory to 
the City. 

 
(6) Use of the Public Sewers 
 

(a) No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any storm water, 
surface water, ground water, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, unpolluted 
cooling water, swimming pool water or unpolluted industrial process waters 
to any sanitary sewer. 

 
(b) Storm water and all other unpolluted drainage shall be discharged to such 

sewers as are specifically designated as storm sewers, or to a natural outlet 
approved by the Commission and other regulatory agencies.  Industrial 
cooling water or unpolluted process waters may be discharged, on approval 
of the Commission and other regulatory agencies having jurisdiction, to a 
storm sewer or natural outlet. 

 
(c) No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following 

described waters or wastes to any public sewers: 
 

1. Gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil or other flammable or explosive 
liquid, solid, or gas. 

 
2. Any waters or wastes containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, or 

gases in sufficient quantity, either singly or by interaction with other 
wastes, to injure or interfere with any wastewater treatment process, 
constitute a hazard to humans or animals, create a public nuisance, 
or create any hazard in the receiving waters of the wastewater 
treatment plant. 

 
3. Any waters or wastes having a pH lower than 5.5 or higher than 10.0 

or having any other corrosive property capable of causing damage or 
hazard to structures, equipment, and personnel of the wastewater 
works. 

 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

13 

4. Solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size capable of 
causing obstruction to the flow in sewers, or other interference with 
the proper operation of the wastewater facilities such as, but not 
limited to ashes, bones, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, 
glass, rags, feathers, tar, plastics, wood, unground garbage, whole 
blood, paunch manure, hair and fleshings, entrails, paper dishes, 
cups, milk containers, sanitary napkins, etc., either whole or ground 
by garbage grinders. 

 
(d) The following described substances, materials, waters, or waste shall be 

limited in discharges to concentrations or quantities which will not harm 
either the sewers, wastewater treatment process or equipment, will not have 
an adverse effect on the receiving stream, will not result in violation of the 
City’s WPDES permit, or will not otherwise endanger life, health, public 
property, or constitute a nuisance.  The Commission may set limitations 
lower than any limitations established in the regulations below if, in the 
Commission’s opinion, more severe limitations are necessary to meet the 
above objectives.  In making this determination, the Commission shall give 
consideration to such factors as the quantity of subject waste in relation to 
flows and velocities in the sewers, materials of construction of the sewers, 
the wastewater treatment process employed, capacity of the wastewater 
treatment plant, degree of treatability of the waste in the wastewater 
treatment plant and other pertinent factors.  The limitations or restrictions on 
materials or characteristics of waste or wastewaters discharged to the 
sanitary sewer which shall not be violated without approval of the 
Commission are as follows: 

 
1. Wastewater having a temperature higher than 150 145 degrees 

Fahrenheit (65 62 degrees Celsius). 
 

2. Wastewater containing more than 25 milligrams per liter of petroleum 
oil, non-biodegradable cutting oils, or product of mineral oil origin. 

 
3. Wastewater from industrial plants containing oils, fat, grease, wax, or 

any other similar substance which float or solidify in the wastewater 
facilities. 

 
4. Any garbage that has not been properly shredded.  Garbage grinders 

may be connected to sanitary sewers from homes, hotels, institutions, 
restaurants, hospitals, catering establishments, or similar places 
where garbage originates from the preparation of food in kitchens for 
the purpose of consumption on the premises or when served by 
caterers. 

 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

14 

5. Any waters or wastes containing aluminum, cadmium, copper, lead, 
mercury, selenium, silver, chromium, zinc, and similar objectionable 
or toxic substances. 

 
  6. Any waters or wastes containing odor-producing substances. 
 

7. Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or concentration 
as may exceed limits established by any State or Federal regulations. 

 
8. Quantities of flow, concentrations or both which constitute a “Slug” as 

defined herein. 
 

9. Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to 
treatment or reduction by the wastewater treatment processes 
employed or are amenable to treatment only to such degree that the 
wastewater treatment plant effluent cannot meet the requirements of 
other agencies having jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving 
waters. 

 
10. Any water or wastes which, by interaction with other water or wastes 

in the public sewer system, release obnoxious gases, form 
suspended solids which interfere with the collection system or create 
a condition deleterious to structures and treatment processes. 

 
(e) If any waters or wastes are discharged or are proposed to be discharged to 

the public sewers, which waters contain the substances or possess the 
characteristics enumerated in Subsection (d) of this Section, and which in 
the judgment of the Commission, may have a deleterious effect upon the 
wastewater facilities, processes, equipment, or receiving waters, or which 
otherwise create a hazard to life or constitute a public nuisance, the 
Commission may: 

 
  1. Reject the wastes, 
 

2. Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the 
public sewers, 

 
  3. Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge, and/or,  
 

4. Require payment to cover added cost of handling and treating the 
wastes not covered by existing user charges under the provisions of 
this Ordinance. 

 
 When considering the above alternatives, the Commission shall give 

consideration to the economic impact of each alternative on the discharger.  
If the Commission permits the pretreatment or equalization of waste flows, 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

15 

the design and installation of the plants and equipment shall be subject to 
the review and approval of the Commission. 

 
(f) Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of 

the Commission, they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes 
containing floatable grease or other substances specified in Subsection (d)3, 
or any flammable wastes, sand, or other harmful ingredients, except that 
such interceptors shall not be required for private living quarters or dwelling 
units.  All interceptors shall be of a type and capacity approved by the 
Commission and shall be located as to be readily and easily accessible for 
cleaning and inspection.  In maintaining these interceptors, the owner(s) 
shall be responsible for the proper removal and disposal by appropriate 
means of the captured material and shall maintain records of the dates and 
means of disposal which shall be subject to review by the Commission.  Any 
removal and hauling of the collected materials not performed by owner(s)’ 
personnel must be performed by currently licensed waste disposal firms.  
Means of disposal shall also be subject to review by the Commission. 

 
(g) Where pretreatment or flow-equalizing facilities are provided or required for 

any waters or wastes, they shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory 
and effective operation by the owner(s) at his expense. 

 
(h) When required by the Commission, the owners of any property serviced by a 

building sewer carrying industrial wastes shall install a suitable structure 
together with such necessary meters and other appurtenances in the 
building sewer to facilitate observation, sampling and measurement of the 
wastes.  Such structure, when required, shall be accessible and safely 
located and shall be constructed in accordance with plans approved by the 
Commission.  The structure shall be installed by the owner at his expense 
and shall be maintained by him so as to be safe and accessible at all times. 

 
(i) The Commission may require a user of sewer services to provide 

information needed to determine compliance with this Ordinance.  This 
information may include: 

 
1. Wastewater discharge peak rate and volume over a specified time 

period. 
 
  2. Chemical analyses of wastewaters. 
 

3. Information on raw materials, processes, and products affecting 
wastewater volume and quality. 

 
4. Quantity and disposition of specific liquid, sludge, oil, solvent, or other 

materials important to sewer use control. 
 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

16 

5. A plot plan of sewers for the user’s property showing sewer and 
pretreatment facility location. 

 
  6. Details of wastewater pretreatment facilities. 
 

7. Details of systems to prevent and control the losses of materials 
through spills to the municipal sewer. 

 
(j) All measurements, tests and analyses of the characteristics of waters and 

wastes to which reference is made in this Ordinance shall be determined in 
accordance with the latest edition of “Standard Methods for the Examination 
of Water and Wastewater”, published by the American Public Health 
Association.  Sampling methods, locations, times, durations and frequencies 
are to be determined on an individual basis subject to approval by the 
Commission. 

 
(k) No statement contained in this section shall be construed as preventing any 

special agreement or arrangement between the City and Commission and 
any industrial concern whereby an industrial waste of unusual strength or 
character may be accepted by the City for treatment subject to payment 
therefore at rates established by the Commission in this Ordinance. 

 
(l) Accidental Discharges.  The accidental discharge of any prohibited waste 

into any sewer shall be reported to the Commission by the person 
responsible for the discharge or by the owner or occupant of the premises 
where the discharge occurs immediately upon obtaining knowledge of the 
fact of such discharge so that steps may be taken to minimize its effect on 
the treatment plant. 

 
(m) Exemption Meters.  If an industrial user discharging wastes into the public 

sewers produces evidence satisfactory to the Commission that significant 
amounts of the total annual volume of water used for all purposes does not 
reach the sanitary sewer, the customer may be permitted to have an 
exemption water meter(s) installed.  Said meter(s) shall be furnished by the 
Sewer Department and installed by the Sewer Department. 

 
 All other costs shall be at the expense of the customer requiring the 

meter(s), including any piping revisions required to insureensure that only 
water not reaching the sanitary sewer is metered by the exemption meter.  
The Commission will charge for each meter at the rate of fifty (50) percent of 
the basic monthly water rate set for that size meter to compensate for 
furnishing, reading, and servicing the meter unless otherwise ordered by the 
Public Service Commission.  This charge shall be in addition to the 
wastewater service charge.  The amount of exemption water metered shall 
be subtracted from the total amount of water used by the person to 
determine the applicable wastewater service charge. 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

17 

(n) Industrial users shall be prohibited from discharging more than 450 pounds 
per day of BOD or Suspended Solids determined on a monthly average 
basis without the approval of the Commission. 

 
(7) Protection From Damage 
 
 No unauthorized person shall maliciously, willfully or negligently break, damage, 

destroy, uncover, deface or tamper with any structure, appurtenance or equipment 
which is a part of the wastewater facilities. 

 
(8) Powers and Authority of Inspectors 
 

(a) The Commission and other duly authorized employees of the City bearing 
proper credentials and identification shall be permitted to enter all properties 
at reasonable times for the purposes of inspection, observation, 
measurement, sampling and testing pertinent to discharge to the sewer 
system in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
(b) The Commission or duly authorized employees are authorized to obtain 

information concerning industrial processes which have a direct bearing on 
the kind and source of discharge to the wastewater collection system.  The 
industry may withhold information considered confidential.  The industry 
must establish that the revelation to the public of the information in question 
might result in an advantage to competitors. 

 
(c) While performing the necessary work on private properties referred to in 

Section 8(a) above, the Commission or duly authorized employees of the 
City shall observe all safety rules applicable to the premises established by 
the company. 

 
(d) The Commission and other duly authorized employees of the City bearing 

proper credentials and identification shall be permitted to enter all private 
properties through which the City holds an easement for the purposes of, but 
not limited to, inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, repair, and 
maintenance of any portion of the wastewater facilities lying within said 
easement.  All entry and subsequent work if any, on said easement, shall be 
done in full accordance with the terms of the easement. 

 
(9) Penalties 
 

(a) Any person violating any provision of this Ordinance except Section (7) shall 
be served by the Utility with written notice stating the nature of the violation 
and providing a reasonable time limit for the satisfactory correction thereof.  
The offender shall, within the period of time stated in such notice, 
permanently cease all violations. 

 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

18 

(b) Any person who shall continue any violation beyond the time limit provided 
for in Subsection (a) shall, upon conviction thereof, pay a forfeiture in the 
amount not less than $50.00100.00 and not more than $1,000.005,000.00 
for each violation.  Each day in which any such violation shall continue shall 
be deemed a separate offense.  This is in addition to any forfeiture imposed 
by other State and Federal agencies. 

 
(c) Any person violating any of the provisions of this Ordinance shall become 

liable to the City and others, as their interests may appear, for any expense, 
loss, or damage occasioned the City or others by reason of such violation, 
including any costs in connection with repairing damages to the wastewater 
facilities or any downstream user or facilities damaged as a result of a 
prohibited discharge or any other violation of this Ordinance.  Said person 
shall also be liable to the City to reimburse any  Federal or State forfeitures 
imposed upon the City for violations of Federal and State permits if the 
violation can be directly attributable to that person. 

 
(10) Validity 
 

(a) Any ordinance or parts of ordinances of the Platteville Municipal Code in 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 
(b) The invalidity of any section, clause, sentence, or provision of this Ordinance 

shall not affect the validity of any other part of this Ordinance which can be 
given effect without such invalid part or parts. 

 
SECTION 2: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after passage and 
publication and for all billings for wastewater discharge dated after September 5, 
1983.November 1, 2021 
 
Adopted by the Common Council of the City of Platteville, on the 27th day of September, 
1983.2021. 
 
 
        (Signature) 
        ___________________________ 
        Donald BraggBarbara Daus, 
Council President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
(Signature) 
______________________________ 
Dean G. WilliamsCandace Klaas, City Clerk 



CHAPTER 8     Sewer Service 

19 

No. 85-7 
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 

8(5)(i) 
OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE 
 
 

The Common Council of the City of Platteville do ordain as follows: 
 
 

Section 1. Chapter 8(5)(i) of the Municipal Code of the City of Platteville is hereby 
amended by the addition of the following: 

 
Further, all sewer laterals which are defective shall, upon the written direction of the 

Director of Public Works, be promptly repaired or replaced by the owner of the lot in which 
such lateral is located and if such defective laterals are not promptly repaired or replaced 

after written notice by the Director of Public Works that official may have such work 
performed and cost of such work shall be assessed against the property on which such 

lateral is located. 
 
 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
publication as required by law. 

 
       Richard Martens, Council President 

 
       ATTEST: 

 
       Dean G. Williams, City Clerk 

 
 

Formatted: Centered



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
ACTION 
ITEM NUMBER:  
VII.B. 

TITLE:   
Sewer Rate Changes 
 
 

DATE 
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY:  Howard B. Crofoot, P.E., Director of Public Works 

 

Description: 

The City of Platteville has been working with Ehlers and MSA to develop sewer rates commensurate with the 
actual costs and proposed CIP projects over the next few years.  The sewer rates have not increased since 
2016. 

 

The Water and Sewer Commission recommends a 5% increase in both the meter charge (fixed rate) and 
volume charges.  Once the Sewer Ordinance revisions are adopted, this will be the authority for the Common 
Council to establish rates. 
 

Budget/Fiscal Impact:  
Per Ehlers, the increase is necessary to fund the current operations and the debt service for the proposed CIP 
projects. 
 

Recommendation: 
The Water and Sewer Commission and Staff recommend approval. 
 

Sample Affirmative Motion: 
“I move to approve Resolution 21-24 and the enclosed meter charge and volume charges for sewer utility 
customers.” 
  

Attachments:   

• Resolution 21-24 2021 Sewer Rates 

• Proposed Sewer Rates 



 

 

RESOLUTION 21-24 

 

2021 Sewer Rates 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Platteville established current sewer rates in Resolution 20-19.  
  
WHEREAS, the City of Platteville Water and Sewer Commission recommends an increase of 
five percent to the current rates to the Common Council for adoption.   
  
WHEREAS, a copy of the sewer rates to include meter charges and volume charges are 
attached.   
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of 
Platteville that the attached sewer rates are established and effective as of October 15, 2021 for 
the City of Platteville Sanitary Sewer Utility.  
 

PASSED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL on the 28th day of September, 2021. 
 

          
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Barbara Daus, Council President 
    
 
 
ATTEST:              
 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
Candace Klaas, City Clerk 

 



A:  Meter Charge

Current Proposed

Meter Rate Rate % increase

5/8 15.45$           $16.22 5.00%

3/4 15.45$           $16.22 5.00%

1 20.60$           $21.63 5.00%

1 1/4 23.69$           $24.87 5.00%

1 1/2 26.78$           $28.12 5.00%

2 35.02$           $36.77 5.00%

3 54.59$           $57.32 5.00%

4 83.43$           $87.60 5.00%

6 153.47$         $161.14 5.00%

8 236.90$         $248.75 5.00%

10 349.17$         $366.63 5.00%

12 460.41$         $483.43 5.00%

B: Volume Rate

Current Proposed

Rate Rate % increase

per 100 cubic feet 4.75$            4.99$      5.00%

Proposed Sewer Rates



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
WATER/SEWER COMMISSION SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
ACTION 
ITEM NUMBER:   
VII.C. 

TITLE:  
City of Platteville Policy on Water Disconnects 
 

DATE 
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY: Adam Ruechel, City Manager 

Description: 

With the return of water disconnection of services for a customer who has not paid a bill in full or for a 
customer who has defaulted on an arranged deferred payment agreement, City Staff took it upon us to review 
and formally create a Policy on Water Disconnects for formal consideration by the Water & Sewer Commission 
and the Common Council. 

 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines that are to be followed in a uniform matter, exercised 
consistently, and in accordance with the rules of the Wisconsin Administrative Code, Chapter PSC 185. 

 

Payments are due twenty (20) calendar days from the date of billing.  For example, a billing issued on 
September 30 is due on October 20.   

 

The policy breaks out into sections what happens after ten (10) days past the due date.  Section E of the policy 
is the procedure that Council Members will want to take specific note of.  It explains the process in which after 
three (3) days a customer who has remained disconnected at a residence will be referred to the Building 
Inspector. After an investigation by the Building Inspector, it shall be determined if a residence is 
uninhabitable due to not having water and sewer service. The Building Inspector then will placard the 
residence which will prohibit occupancy until the delinquency is resolved. 

 

Budget/Fiscal Impact: 

No impact 

 

Recommendation: 
The Water & Sewer Commission at their September meeting approved a recommendation for adoption of the 
proposed policy by the Common Council. 
 
City Staff is also recommending the Common Council formally adopt the City of Platteville Policy on Water 
Disconnects. 
 
Sample Affirmative Motion: 
“I move to adopt the City of Platteville Policy on Water Disconnects” 
 
Attachments:   

• Proposed Policy on Water Disconnects. 



 

First Promulgated __.__.__ By:  Page 1 of 2 

 

     
 

Overview 
The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines that are to be followed in a uniform manner, exercised 
consistently, and in accordance with the rules of the Wisconsin Administrative Code, Chapter PSC 185.  
 

Policy 
Payments on accounts are due twenty (20) calendar days from the date of billing.  For example, a billing issued on 
September 30 is due on October 20.  

 
Procedures 
After ten (10) days past the due date, the following shall occur:  
  

Section A – Past Due Notices  
1. A past due notice, requiring a response within 10 days, will be sent to the resident, tenant, or 
landlord of the delinquent account with payment plan options provided.   

  
2. For customers unable to pay the outstanding balance in full, a payment of 30% of the 
outstanding amount will be due immediately with the balance payable under a Deferred Payment 
Agreement (DPA).   

  
3. Deferred Payment Agreements will require a monthly payment of at least 10% of the 
remaining balance and will require customers to pay future monthly bills in full by the due date.  

  
Section B – Disconnection Notice  

1. After a minimum of ten (10) days, for outstanding accounts without a valid DPA, a door 
hanger will be placed on the service address of the resident or landlord/tenant to follow up on 
the above-mentioned written notice.  Inability of the City to contact the customer, or a failure of 
the customer to respond within this period, will advance the collection into an immediate phase 
of “Disconnection”.   

  
2. Any default of a Deferred Payment Agreement on the part of the customer or responsible 
party(s) will advance any delinquent balance into the “Disconnection” phase. A 
default will also disqualify the customer from a future Deferred Payment Agreement.  

  
Section C – Disconnection  

1. Disconnections will be performed in accordance with Public Service Commission policies.  
  

2. The Accounting Specialist - Utility Billing will provide the Department of Public Works Water & 
Sewer Division (DPW WS) a listing of addresses to be disconnected on a timely basis. DPW WS 
staff will not enter negotiations with a resident, tenant, or landlord on the payment of any 
amount, nor will DPW WS staff collect any monies in full or partial settlement of a delinquent 
account.  Matters of this nature will be referred to the Finance Department.  

  
3. Once DPW WS staff arrive at a premise, the disconnection will proceed. If a customer 
disputes the disconnection due to payment made or a DPA, DPW WS staff will direct the customer 
to contact Finance staff. Finance will then confirm with DPW WS staff if the disconnect should 

Policy III-18. Water Disconnects Policy 



 

First Promulgated __.__.__ By:  Page 2 of 2 

 

proceed or be canceled based on the status of the account. A partial payment made on an 
outstanding balance without a signed DPA will result in disconnection.  

  
4. Disconnection will take place on Tuesday through Thursday of the scheduled week.    

  
 Section D – Reconnection  

1. Once a disconnection has taken place, the customer must pay a reconnection fee of $30, 
plus the outstanding balance in full, or enter into a Deferred Payment Agreement (see Section A 
for details). Payments, DPAs, and reconnections must be completed before 3:00 pm.  

  
Section E – Occupancy During a Disconnection Period  

1. Should the City of Platteville be made aware that a disconnected residence remains occupied 
for a period of three (3) days, the matter will be referred to the Building Inspector.  Should the 
Building Inspector determine that the residence is uninhabitable because it has no water and 
sewer service, the residence shall be placarded which will prohibit occupancy until the 
delinquency is resolved.  

  
2. Landlords are ultimately responsible for their rental units.  Every effort is made by the City to 
collect from the tenant and keep the landlord informed of action being taken.  Landlords are 
encouraged to protect their own interests in a manner they see fit for each situation.  It   
is not the City’s responsibility to dictate to landlords how they should deal with their tenants.  

  
3. A tenant with a balance who is vacating a premise will not be allowed utility services at 
another premise until the prior bill is paid in full.  A balance from one residence will not be 
allowed to be carried over to the next.  

  
4. Requests from landlord, realtor, etc. to have the placard removed will not be honored until 
the respective outstanding bill is paid in full, or the Building Inspector has verified compliance.  

  
5. With all the above efforts, the City’s preference is to work with customers who are having 
difficulty making payments, out of respect for their various situations. However, the City shall 
proceed with serving the best interests of the Utilities and their customers.  

  
Section F – New Connections  

1. An existing resident who will be vacating the premises must notify City Hall to request a meter 
reading for the day of moving and provide a forwarding address and telephone contact number. 
An existing resident may not make arrangements for a new incoming resident to change the name 
on the account.  

 
 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION:  
ACTION 
ITEM NUMBER:  
VII.D. 

TITLE:  
Subdivision Reimbursement Agreement 
 

DATE 
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY: Adam Ruechel, City Manager 

Description: 

Within the “Thoughtful Development and Prosperous Economy” section of the City of Platteville’s 2021-2023 
Strategic Plan lies the goal of seeking a partnership with a private developer to result in a new single family 
housing subdivision. 
 

In the past, the City of Platteville has subsidized a portion of infrastructure costs for residential subdivisions to 
spur growth. Director Carroll indicated around 2004 a Residential Subdivision Infrastructure Subsidy Plan was 
put into place by the City of Platteville. $600,000 was utilized to assist various developments with this 
initiative.  
 

Below are examples of previous developments which provided subsidized assistance from the City of 
Platteville: 

• Fox Ridge Development LLC was approved via resolution in 2005 to reimburse Developer 25% of the 
infrastructure cost incurred by Developer for improvements within the subdivision. 

• Prairie View Subdivision-Finance Agreement was approved by the Common Council in 2006 to award 
up to $104,500 under the City’s Housing Incentive Program with the understanding the developer 
could return and request up to 25% if additional funds were available. 

• Oakhaven Residential Subdivision Infrastructure Subsidy Agreement was another project where the 
developer was able to receive a total of 25% reimbursement of the infrastructure cost incurred. 

 

The Common Council directed City Staff to work with the City Attorney on the drafting of a Subdivision 
Reimbursement Agreement for consideration to be agreed upon with any developer looking to create a 
residential subdivision within the City of Platteville. 

 

The draft agreement attached to this staff note provides the following requirements: 

1. The Developer shall construct all Public Improvements in accordance with an approved Developer’s 
Agreement. 

2. The City shall reimburse the Developer for costs incurred and paid directly to the construction of the 
Public Improvements for the Development at a base amount of 25%. 

3. The City may have the option to determine if they wish for incentive increases to occur. A Developer 
could receive a 35% or 45% reimbursement on the construction of public improvements if they achieve 
a certain number of homes built within a certain timeframe. 

4. The Developer would be required to receive all official approvals for City Staff, Plan Commission, and 
the Common Council. 

5. The City will have the ability to determine what public improvements are eligible for Reimbursement to 
the Developer. Please review Page 2 of the draft agreement to see items a-d which list the various 
public improvements eligible for reimbursement based on feedback from the last council meeting. 

 



Budget/Fiscal Impact: 

The Budgetary impact of such an agreement will depend upon the nature, size and scope of the residential 
development being proposed. 

 

To provide a reference for council members to review a potential fiscal impact let us assume we are discussing 
the development of a 20-lot single family home development.  The proposal is each home will be estimated to 
have an assessed value of $275,000.  The proposed infrastructure costs for such a development are estimated 
to be $1,500,000.  Below is a table breakdown of the proposed project: 

 

Potential Homes Estimated Assessed Value 
20 Single Family Homes        $ 5,500,000  

  
City of Platteville Taxes $ 8.03 

  
Estimated Taxes Per Year  $ 44,165  

  
Infrastructure Cost  $ 1,500,000  

  
Subdivision Reimbursement Incentive % 

25% $ 375,000  7% 
35% $ 525,000  10% 
45% $ 675,000  12% 

  
Payment Structure Return on Investment  

25% 8.5 
35% 11.9 
45% 15.3 

 

 

Recommendation: 

City Staff would encourage Council Members to review the proposed finance agreement and send any 
proposed changes/alterations to the City Manager. The intention would be to have this item back on the 
agenda on Tuesday, September 28th Common Council Meeting for potential council action. 
 
 

Sample Affirmative Motion: 
“I move to adopt the Subdivision Reimbursement Agreement to be utilized by City Staff and the Common 
Council when negotiating with potential residential subdivision developers.” 
 

Attachments:   

• Draft Subdivision Reimbursement Agreement 

• 2006 Fox Ridge Subdivision Finance Agreement 

• 2005 Residential Subdivision Infrastructure Subsidy Agreement 
 
 
 
 



 
SUBDIVISION REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
Between the City of Platteville and BLANK DEVELOPER 

 
 

  
THIS AGREEMENT entered into as of the ___ day of       , 2021 

(the “Agreement”), by and between the City of Platteville, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the “City”), and 
BLANK DEVELOPER., a Wisconsin limited liability company (the “Developer”). The City and Developer are 
each referred to as a “Party”; together, they are the “Parties”. 
  

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to undertake a residential development outside of a Tax Increment 
Financing District in the City known as the BLANK Subdivision (the “Development”), which involves the 
installation of certain public infrastructure to serve the Development and which shall be dedicated to the City (the 
“Public Improvements”).   

  
WHEREAS, the Developer estimates the Public Improvements will cost approximately $_________, and 

represents to the City that the Development is not financially feasible without City assistance with the cost of the 
Public Improvements.    

  
WHEREAS, the City is agreeable to subsidizing a portion of the cost of the Public Improvements under 

the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals that are incorporated into and made a part 
of this Agreement, the promises, covenants, and agreements contained in this Agreement and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are mutually acknowledged, the Parties each promise, 
covenant and agree as follows: 

  
1. The Developer shall construct all Public Improvements in accordance with the Developer’s Agreement 

dated    , by and between City and Developer and the plans and specifications for the 
Development submitted to and approved by the City.  No reimbursement shall be made for Public 
Improvements not included in the Development Agreement between the Developer and City for the 
Development, if any, which is incorporated herein by reference (the “Development Agreement”); and 
for Public Improvements that are not constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications for the 
Development. 

  
2. The City shall reimburse the Developer for costs it incurred and paid directly related to the construction 

of the Public Improvements for the Development (the “Reimbursement”).  The Reimbursement amount 
shall be twenty five percent (25%) of the eligible costs of constructing the Public Improvements, up to a 
maximum of $                                               (the “Maximum Amount”).  The City shall not be obligated 
to reimburse Developer for infrastructure costs incurred in excess of the maximum reimbursements set 
forth above.  In order to incentivize the Developer to expedite the Development, the Reimbursement 
may be increased as follows based on the dates occupancy permits are granted for the lots within the 
Development: 

  
a. If at least __ permits are issued no later than January 1, 2030, the Reimbursement shall be 35% 

instead of 25%. 
b. If at least __ permits are issued no later than January 1, 2025, the Reimbursement shall be 45% 

instead of 25%. 
  

3. The Reimbursement shall be conditioned upon the following and no portion shall be paid until all 
conditions are satisfied: 



  
a. The Development receives final City approval as a single family residential development. 
b. The Developer has provided to the City documentation, in a form acceptable to the City, 

establishing the cost incurred and paid by the Developer for the construction of the Public 
Improvements serving the Development.  At very least the documentation shall be itemized, 
include all available third party documentation of such costs and payments, and include a 
certification from the Developer’s accountant the costs were incurred and paid. 

c. The Public Improvements have been fully constructed, and inspected and approved by the City. 
d. The Public Improvements have been dedicated to the City and accepted by the City. 
e. The Developer has provided the City with lien waivers, acceptable to the City, from all 

contractors and material suppliers performing work on, or providing materials for, the 
construction of the Public Improvements. 

  
4. The Public Improvements eligible for the Reimbursement are limited to the following and which must 

directly serve the Development: 
  

a. Water mains, valves, hydrants, service laterals to the property line, including curb stop and all 
appurtenances. 

b. Sanitary sewer mains, manholes, lift stations, siphons, service laterals to the property line and all 
appurtenances. 

c. Storm sewer mains, catch basins, manholes, detention basins and all appurtenances. 
d. Street construction, including compacted base course of breaker and gravel, geotextile fabric (if 

approved by Director of Public Works), curb and gutter, street surface, conduit for 
communication lines, traffic signals and signs. 

e. Sidewalks (if required and approved by the City). 
f. Electrical; including main line, transformers, and street lights, and appurtenances but not 

including services to the homes. 
g. Natural gas; including main line, valves and appurtenances, but not including services to homes. 
h. Communication; including basic telephone and cable TV main lines and appurtenances; but not 

including services to homes, or other high-speed communication lines including but not limited 
to fiber-optic cables, DSL, T1, Satellite receivers. 

  
5. Only the direct costs of the approved Public Improvements will be eligible for the Reimbursement.  

Marshalling costs, project management expenses, legal expenses, overhead charges, interest expenses or 
other costs, expenses or charges not directly related to the installation of Public Improvements shall not 
be reimbursed. 

  
6. The Developer shall reduce the price of each lot within the Development by an amount equal to the 

Maximum Amount of the Reimbursement to be paid by the City for the Public Improvements, divided 
by the total number of buildable lots within the Development (the “Subsidy”).  Within 10 days (about 1 
and a half weeks) of the closing of the sale of each Lot the Developer shall provide to the City a copy of 
the title insurance closing statement from such closing documenting to the satisfaction of the City that 
the price of the lot paid by the initial purchaser was reduced by the amount of the Subsidy and that the 
purchased received the full benefit of the Subsidy (i.e. it was not replaced by a fee, charge, or other 
payment).  (In talking with the City Attorney, the reason for this statement would be to ensure the 
Developer does not simple just receive an incentive and then level and additional cost to the Buyer. This 
statement provides additional safety for a buyer. If the council wishes to provide an incentive to the 
developer without a restriction, then this section can be removed. For example, if the city were 
reviewing a 20-lot subdivision and providing a $375,000 incentive on infrastructure at 25% the 
developer would be required to reduce the price of each lot by $18,750 dollars to benefit the potential 
owner.)  

  



7. The Developer shall execute and deliver to the City a mortgage on the lots benefited by the Public 
Improvements, in a form approved by the City, which shall be recorded and shall constitute a lien upon 
such lots in the Development.  The mortgage shall secure the purchase price reduction set forth in the 
preceding section.  Upon the sale of a lot subject to the City’s mortgage, the City shall record a partial 
satisfaction of the mortgage, provided, however, that the final purchase price of the lot reflects the 
Subsidy and the Developer has provided the City with the documentation required in the previous 
section. 

  
8. The Reimbursement will be paid to the Developer within 30 days after all Public Improvements are 

dedicated to the City, and accepted by the City. 
  

9. The City’s obligation to reimburse Developer for infrastructure improvements as provided here is 
contingent upon Developer complying in all respects with its obligations as set forth in the Development 
Agreement, and all plans and specifications for the Development.  Should the Developer fail to perform 
any of its obligations, in accordance with the Development Agreement and the plans and specifications 
for the Development, the City’s obligation to pay the Reimbursement shall be null and void and any 
reimbursement previously paid by the City to the Developer shall be promptly repaid.  No provision of 
this Agreement shall be construed to limit or affect in any manner City’s right to utilize Developer’s 
Letter of Credit or Bond, or to exercise any rights it may have under the Development Agreement, 
including but not limited to reimbursement for project costs incurred by the City to complete the 
Development. 

  
10. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the City and Developer and their 

representative’s successors and assigns; however, this provision shall not constitute an authorization of 
Developer to assign or transfer its rights and obligations under this Agreement.  This Agreement shall 
not be assignable by Developer without the prior written consent of the City, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld upon proper and appropriate assurance as agreed to above, except that Developer 
may make a collateral assignment of this Agreement to its lender as a part of the financing of the public 
improvements in the development, subject to all terms and conditions of this Agreement.  However, no 
assignment of this Agreement shall constitute a release of Developer from the obligations or liabilities 
under this Agreement. 

  
11. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement creates rights and obligations only for the Parties hereto 

and their permitted successors and assigns, except as stipulated in this Agreement.  This Agreement is 
not intended to and does not create any right in any third party, not expressly stated herein. 

  
12. Nothing contained in this Agreement constitutes a waiver of the City’s sovereign immunity under 

applicable law. 
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties executed this Agreement as of the date first written above. 
  
CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
  
  
By:    
      
ATTEST: 
  
  
  
BLANK DEVELOPMENT, LLC. 
  



  
By:    
  
      (Name/Title)                                                               
   
 
 
 

FOX RIDGE SUBDIVISION FINANCE AGREEMENT 
  

Whereas, the Common Council of the City of Platteville (City) desires to subsidize a portion of the 
infrastructure costs for private development of residential subdivisions within the City of Platteville. 
  
Whereas, Fox Ridge LLC (Developer) has submitted a proposal for the private development of the Fox Ridge 
Subdivision (Subdivision) with an estimated infrastructure cost of $1,089,161. 
  
Whereas, the Common Council passed a motion on September 13, 2005 to reimburse Developer 25% of the 
infrastructure costs incurred by Developer for improvements within the Subdivision property, and 66% of the 
infrastructure costs incurred by Developer for utility improvements outside the Subdivision, but required to 
connect the utilities to the Subdivision property. 
  
Now, therefore, the City and Developer hereby agree as follows: 
  

1. All infrastructure improvements shall be made in accordance with the Developer’s Agreement dated  
  , by and between City and Developer and the plans and specifications for the project 
submitted to and approved by the City.  No reimbursement shall be made for improvements not included 
in the Development Agreement and for improvements that are not constructed in accordance with the 
plans and specifications for the project. 

2. Requests for reimbursement shall be made in writing to the Director of Public Works for the cost of 
infrastructure improvements completed by Developer.  Developer may submit requests for partial 
payment before the infrastructure improvements are fully completed. 

3. Requests for reimbursement shall include copies of invoices for the infrastructure improvements to 
document the cost incurred by the Developer for such improvements.  The invoices shall be itemized 
and provide enough information for the City to determine if the costs are associated with the 
infrastructure work within the Subdivision, or are associated with costs for extending the utilities to the 
Subdivision. 

4. Only the direct costs of the approved infrastructure improvements will be eligible for reimbursement.  
Marshalling costs, project management expenses, overhead charges, interest expenses or other costs, 
expenses or charges not directly related to the installation of improvements shall not be reimbursed. 

5. City shall process the request and determine whether the improvements made are satisfactorily 
completed and eligible for reimbursement.  Requests for payment determined to be eligible for 
reimbursement shall occur at the next scheduled run of bills for payment. Special payments made “out 
of cycle” will not be permitted. 

6. The reimbursement shall be for twenty five percent (25%) of the eligible costs for installing the 
infrastructure within the Subdivision property, up to a maximum of $229,752, and for sixty six percent 
(66%) of the eligible costs for installing infrastructure necessary to connect the Subdivision to existing 
City utilities, up to a maximum of $112,302.  The City shall not be obligated to reimburse Developer for 
infrastructure costs incurred in excess of the maximum reimbursements set forth above.  Should the 
actual costs of the approved improvements be less than the estimated costs, the amount of 
reimbursement shall be reduced accordingly.  Notwithstanding the above, eligible costs that have been 
approved by the Platteville Water & Sewer Commission for increasing the size of the utility mains 
within the Subdivision and connecting to the subdivision from 8” diameter to 12” diameter are not 



subject to the maximum fees or reimbursement percentages as described above.  Reimbursement for 
these additional costs will be in a manner as approved by the Platteville Water & Sewer Commission. 

7. Developer shall provide City with documentation satisfactory to the City establishing the reduction in 
price to be paid by a purchaser of a lot in the Subdivision, the amount of such reduction to be at least 
equal to the total amount of the subsidy paid by the City for the portion of the development within the 
Subdivision (maximum $229,752), divided by the total number of buildable lots within the Subdivision 
resulting from the infrastructure improvements made by the Developer.  

8. Developer shall execute and deliver to the City a mortgage on the lots benefited by the infrastructure 
improvements, in a form approved by the City, which shall be recorded and shall constitute a lien upon 
such lots in the subdivision.  Upon the sale of a lot subject to the City’s mortgage, City shall record a 
partial satisfaction of the mortgage, provided, however, that the final purchase price of the lot reflects a 
reduction in its cost in an amount not less than the amount of the subsidy computed as set forth in 
paragraph 7. 

9. Developer shall submit with any request for reimbursement lien waivers from any and all subcontractors 
and material suppliers for the improvements made.  City shall not process any request for reimbursement 
without such lien waivers being provided. 

10. Infrastructure costs to be included are as follows: 
a. Water mains, valves, hydrants, service laterals to the property line, including curb stop and all 

appurtenances. 
b. Sanitary sewer mains, manholes, lift stations, siphons, service laterals to the property line and all 

appurtenances. 
c. Storm sewer mains, catch basins, manholes, detention basins and all appurtenances. 
d. Street construction, including compacted base course of breaker and gravel, geotextile fabric (if 

approved by Director of Public Works), curb and gutter, street surface, traffic signals and signs. 
e. Sidewalks (if required and approved by the City). 
f. Electrical; including main line, transformers, and street lights, and appurtenances but not 

including services to the homes. 
g. Natural gas; including main line, valves and appurtenances, but not including services to homes. 
h. Communication; including basic telephone and cable TV main lines and appurtenances; but not 

including services to homes, or other high-speed communication lines including but not limited 
to fiber-optic cables, DSL, T1, Satellite receivers. 

11. The City’s obligation to reimburse Developer for infrastructure improvements as provided here is 
contingent upon Developer complying in all respects with its obligations as set forth in the Development 
Agreement dated, ___________________, and all plans and specifications for the Subdivision.  Should 
Developer fail to perform its obligations, in accordance with said Agreement and the plans and 
specifications for the Subdivision, the City’s obligation to subsidize this project shall be null and void 
and any reimbursement previously paid by the City to the Developer shall be promptly repaid.  No 
provision of this Subsidy Agreement shall be construed to limit or affect in any manner City’s right to 
utilize Developer’s Letter of Credit or Bond, or to exercise any rights it may have under the 
Development Agreement dated _______________, including but not limited to reimbursement for 
project costs incurred by the City to complete the Subdivision. 

 
12. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the City and Developer and their 

representative’s successors and assigns; however, this provision shall not constitute an authorization of 
Developer to assign or transfer its rights and obligations under this Agreement.  This Agreement shall 
not be assignable by Developer without the prior written consent of the City, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld upon proper and appropriate assurance as agreed to above, except that Developer 
may make a collateral assignment of this Agreement to its lender as a part of the financing of the public 
improvements in the development, subject to all terms and conditions of this Agreement.  However, no 
assignment of this Agreement shall constitute a release of Developer from the obligations or liabilities 
under this Agreement. 

   



This agreement is entered into on the ____ day of _____________, 2006. 
  
Fox Ridge LLC     City of Platteville 
  
  
_______________________   ________________________  
  (Signature)      (Signature) 
 

Residential Subdivision Infrastructure Subsidy Agreement 
  

Whereas, the Common Council of the City of Platteville (City) desires to subsidize a portion of the 
infrastructure costs for private development of residential subdivisions within the City of Platteville. 
  
Whereas, ________________________________ (Developer) has submitted a proposal for the private 
development of the ____________________________________ Subdivision (Subdivision) with an estimated 
infrastructure cost of $____________________. 
  
The Common Council passed a motion on January 25, 2005 to reimburse Developer 25% of the infrastructure 
costs incurred by Developer for improvements to the Subdivision, up to a maximum of $__________. 
  
The City and Developer agree as follows: 
  

1. All infrastructure improvements shall be made in accordance with the Developer’s Agreement dated 
________, by and between City and Developer and the plans and specifications for the project 
submitted to and approved by the City.  No reimbursement shall be made for improvements not 
included in the Development Agreement and for improvements that are not constructed in accordance 
with the plans and specifications for the project. 

2. Requests for reimbursement shall be made in writing to the Director of Public Works for the cost of 
infrastructure improvements completed by Developer.  Developer may submit requests for partial 
payment before the infrastructure improvements are fully completed. 

3. Requests for reimbursement shall include copies of invoices for the infrastructure improvements to 
document the cost incurred by the Developer for such improvements. 

4. Only the direct costs of the approved infrastructure improvements will be eligible for reimbursement.  
Marshalling costs, project management expenses, overhead charges or other costs, expenses or 
charges not directly related to the installation of improvements shall not be reimbursed. 

5. City shall process the request and determine whether the improvements made are satisfactorily 
completed and eligible for reimbursement.  Requests for payment determined to be eligible for 
reimbursement shall occur at the next scheduled run of bills for payment. Special payments made “out 
of cycle” will not be permitted. 

6. The City shall not be obligated to reimburse Developer for infrastructure costs incurred in excess of the 
maximum reimbursement set forth above.  Should the actual costs of the approved improvements be 
less than the estimated costs, the amount of reimbursement shall be reduced accordingly. 

7. Developer shall provide City with documentation satisfactory to the City establishing the reduction in 
price to be paid by a purchaser of a lot in the Subdivision, the amount of such reduction to be at least 
equal to the total amount of the subsidy paid by the City, divided by the total number of buildable lots 
resulting from the infrastructure improvements made by the Developer.  

8. Developer shall execute and deliver to the City a mortgage on the lots benefited by the infrastructure 
improvements, in a form approved by the City, which shall be recorded and shall constitute a lien upon 
such lots in the subdivision.  Upon the sale of a lot subject to the City’s mortgage, City shall record a 



partial satisfaction of the mortgage, provided, however, that the final purchase price of the lot reflects 
a reduction in its cost in an amount not less than the amount of the subsidy computed as set forth in 
paragraph 7. 

9. Developer shall submit with any request for reimbursement lien waivers from any and all 
subcontractors and material suppliers for the improvements made.  City shall not process any request 
for reimbursement without such lien waivers being provided. 
 

10. Infrastructure costs to be included are as follows: 
a. Water mains, valves, hydrants, service laterals to the property line, including curb stop and all 

appurtenances. 
b. Sanitary sewer mains, manholes, lift stations, siphons, service laterals to the property line and 

all appurtenances. 
c. Storm sewer mains, catch basins, manholes, detention basins and all appurtenances. 
d. Street construction, including compacted base course of breaker and gravel, geotextile fabric (if 

approved by Director of Public Works), curb and gutter, street surface, traffic signals and signs. 
e. Sidewalks (if required and approved by the City). 
f. Electrical; including main line, transformers, and street lights, and appurtenances but not 

including services to the homes. 
g. Natural gas; including main line, valves and appurtenances, but not including services to homes. 
h. Communication; including basic telephone and cable TV main lines and appurtenances; but not 

including services to homes, or other high-speed communication lines including but not limited 
to fiber-optic cables, DSL, T1, Satellite receivers. 

i. Engineering costs for the design, staking and inspection of the infrastructure. 
11. The City’s obligation to reimburse Developer for infrastructure improvements as provided here is 

contingent upon Developer complying in all respects with its obligations as set forth in the 
Development Agreement dated, ___________________, and all plans and specifications for the 
Subdivision.  Should Developer fail to perform its obligations, in accordance with said Agreement and 
the plans and specifications for he Subdivision, the City’s obligation to subsidize this project shall be 
null and void and any reimbursement previously paid by the City to the Developer shall be promptly 
repaid.  No provision of this Subsidy Agreement shall be construed to limit or affect in any manner 
City’s right to utilize Developer’s Letter of Credit or Bond, or to exercise any rights it may have under 
the Development Agreement dated _______________, including but not limited to reimbursement for 
project costs incurred by the City to complete the Subdivision 

  
This agreement is entered into on the ____ day of _____________, 2005. 
  
 
 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION:  
INFORMATION & 
DISCUSSION 
ITEM NUMBER:   
VIII.!. 

TITLE:  
Commission on Aging Name and Constitution Proposed 
Changes 
 

DATE 
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY: Adam Ruechel, City Manager 

Description: 

During the May 2021 Commission on Aging meeting the membership approved amending the Commission on 
Aging Constitution and voted to change the name of the Commission from the Commission on Aging to the 
Commission on Aging and Disability. 

 

The Commission requests the name change should be posted on the City website and all City communications 
regarding the Commission should be updated.   

 

In the attached Constitution for the Commission on Aging and Disability you will find all proposed changes are 
italicized as well as providing all previously approved City Council Resolutions and Revisions. 

 

Budget/Fiscal Impact: 

None Currently 

 

Recommendation: 
The Commission on Aging recommends the City Council accept to change the name of the Commission on 
Aging to the Commission on Aging and Disability.  The Commission also recommends the Council accept the 
changes proposed to the Platteville Commission on Aging and Disability Constitution. 
 
Sample Affirmative Motion: 
“I move to approve the name change from the Commission on Aging to the Commission on Aging and 
Disability and also approve amending the Commission on Aging & Disability Constitution as presented.” 
 

Attachments:  

• Commission on Aging & Disability Constitution 



CONSTITUTION

Section 1. Name: The name of the Organization shall be known as

Platteville Commission on Aging av^ck TusflbtLtty.

Section 2. Area: The geographical area in the jurisdiction of the

Organization shall be in the City of Platteville, Grant Co, Wi.

Section 3. The principal office of the Organization shall be located at

the Senior Citizen Center ('ptattevLLLe ^^rt&hi^.eiA/tAGttvi.ty ^

l^tiA/shLp P.5.A.k.) or in such place in the area

determined by the members.

Article 11-Purposes

Section 1. Objective and Purposes

A. To determine the needs of the seniors a\A,d dt^abUd &tttzeiA.s

ofPlfltteviLLe.

B. To create a better community awareness of the needs and

desires of wv^v^u.^ttn rest^eiAts.



C. To develop resources, both public and private to meet

needs.

D. To coordinate the work of agencies and facilities in

programming and serving the c.ov^v^u.vu.t^.

E. To develop services for the isolated, handicapped,

T>t^bied, homebound citizens of the community.

F. To interpret the problems and capabilities of the older,

Av^d/or dts,abied adult to industry, labor, churches, and

community groups.

G. To provide assistance and information to enable older

or disabled people to help themselves.

H. To plan and sponsor training programs for those
WorfetiA.0 with sei/aor otttzeiA.s/ ^i-sflble^ c.tti.zeiA.s/ aiA/pi

The ebierly.

Article III - Membership

Section 1. Members of the Organization shall be appointed by the
City Manager and approved by the Common Council.
Member must be a resident of the city, at least one half.



(&hfl^0^/ Mfly 2§'/ 2002 ^)2-1: ati i^e^tbers oftMe

Coi^tmtsstoiA. oiA.A^tiA/g shall be C.L.ti^ rest-pte^ts.)

The size of the Committee {c,V\a^ed Mflr&hj)/ 2004
6>4-^2: The Coi^ti^tssLoiA. OIA/ AgtiA.g wtlL coiA.sL.st o-f iA.[.iA<e

Members ov^t ofwhoi^t wtlL bfi the city C-oi^&t.t

R-e-preseiAtfltiA/e).

Members are appointed for staggered terms of one,
two, three, years for continuity. The first Chairman
shall be approved by the City Manager with approval
of the Common Council.

Article IV. - Officers

Section 1. Officers - The officers of the Organization shall consist
of a chairperson, Vice Chairperson and a Secretary
who serve for one year or until their successors have
been elected.
T^evLstoiA. oct 17, 20^3, March J/ 206)4 04-02: offt&ers

wUL t^c.iu.de Chflm/Kei/v/ vtc-g (^hfltri^-fl^ av^d <se&r£tflry.

^LeottoiA. o-f o-f-fUers, shfllL be ^eid yeflrly flttheji^.iA.e

m.eetLiA.g.

R^soLi^tioi/v No ±°)-±± dat&djui^^ 20±^: Now therefore/ be it

R-gsoLve^ th^tthe c-ot^tku.oiA. c.o^iA.Gtl o-fPLattgvtllg does here

av^e^d the R-esoli/dzoiA. regan^L.^0 si^c'&esst.ve fl'ppotiA.t-

m-eiA/te OIA/ 'Boards o-f C.oi^.i^ti-ssLoiA/ dated Ai^g^st is/i^i/

to -provide that i/vo mei^tber o-f Coi^mLssi.oiA/ OIA/ Agi.iA.g/ L^-poiA/

c-oi^t-pLettoiA/ o-f hts or her sec.oiA.pi teri^i shfllt be eLt0tbl& -for re-

^-p-potiA-ti^t^iA.t KiA/ttL at least a period o-foiA/e Ljeflr sh^ll l^flve

LiA.ten/giA.ed between s. aid teri/us as fl c-oi^.i^ttssL.oiA/ member.



Article V. - Advisory Board

Section 1. There shall be an advisory Board whose members will
come from any organization, agency or club offering
a program or service to citizens. It shall be the duty
of the Advisory Board to act in an advisory capacity
on matters pertaining to the implementation of new
programs.

Article V1. - Meetings
Section 1. Meetings of the Commission on Aging and Usablttttes

shall be held monthly or called at the discretion of the
Chairperson. Any member who misses three meetings
without just cause, shall resign from the Commission
or be requested to resign by the Chairperson.
T^vLsLoiA/ v^ev^otr 04-02, ciated Mflr&hJ), 20^)4:

Fori/u-flt wtLL be I-IA. ^cc.cirdfliA/Ge wtth T^oberb's ri/Ues oforcier/

MeetliA.0s wU.l be held ku^oiA.thLy or c-flLLepi flt the ciL-sc-rettoiA.

o-fthe i/ws^bers. AIA/LJ mei^iberofthe c.oku.mtsstoiA/who

i/vasses three c-oiA.sec-KtL.vg i^ieettiA.gs MA.flLj be re^esteot to

res i0 i/v.

Article V11 - Amendments
Section 1. This constitution may be amended by majority vote

under a quorum of the membership.



BY-LAWS

Article 1: officers: officers are listed and duties specified

Article 11: Committees: special and subcommittees are listed

Their responsibilities spelled out.

Five year Committee:

Book Club Committee:

Picnic committee:

Activities Committee:

School volunteer Committee:

Article 111: amendments: The By-Laws may be amended by
majority vote under a quorum of the membership.



' fiesolu-bion to create a Coiamittee on Aging

WffiREASr There is a contlntrijig iacrease in tte nHniber of aged each year,
the majority ui the lowest income groups, ±n need of help la their
ccanmon problems, and,

WHEBEASs The acti-dLties of senior citizens upon retirement are a matter of
significance because of the need for their continuing interest in
ccanmuoity life, and,,

/

WHEREAS; Increasingly' there is urgent need for coordinating various activities
to which senior citizens can dedicate their efforts, and,

WHEREAS? The matter of proTn-dtng suitable ci-vic, social and welfare opporfcmuAies
-bo s.enior citizens is recei'viog •fche attexib-ion of our na'bional

govemmen-b, state govenment.-and our o'wn conmauu.t.y^ and,

WHEREAS; I-b is tmpro-tanb to make retiremen-b years enriched and productive.-'for
the benefit of the entire ctinnnnnit.y, as well as the -retired senior

citizens, a-nd,

WEREAS; The City as a municipal 'govermenfc is keenly aware of -bhe need for
a program, of cammuni'fcy progress which wLU pexmit the ad.vaucement of
ideas, plans, and activities of profit to ow senior citizens in the
cj.'vic, economic, social and welfare aspects of comanuri.ty life, there-

fore , be it

EESOL'VEDs By the Common Council of the City that a Committee on Aglng be created,
wM-ch shall be composed of a chairman and six members appointed by the
City Manager and cofifirmed by the Gomnon Council to serve for a term
of three years, -with the excepbion of •the firs'b seven appointees '•wtio
shaU. serve as foFLowss one for a period of four' years, two for three

years, two for two years and two for one year, and be it

FUKTHBR HESOL17BD; That such Committee, followLng appointments, shall selec-b
its own co-chairman and secretary, shall be authorized to
establish sub-coimuAtees in keeping -with the pmzposes and
objecti-Tressof tl&.s resoluiion, and shall be authorized to
set, up rates of procedure for t-he purpose of conducting
the business of such Gossssittee as shall be determined and
enacted ±n this resolution, and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED!! That the functions of the Gommi-fc-bee on Aging shaU. bes

(a) to study -the economic, ciTic, so6ial and welfare aspectis
of communi-fcy life as perbatnlng to the i&®ort^cpiti- ^^&^-fe_pf
our population represented by the senior citize&s',".i.n3'"¥ecoBB&enEl

needed improvement. s§



I

; (b) TO conduct a continual re'vlew of the seope'aad
effectiveness of city-sponsored programs and activl-

ties relative to the needs of our aging popula-fcion,

(c) $0 jwopos-e, activate and iBiplemoit additional acti-vi-
ties and'programs for the aged on "the local levelj

(d) to encourage and promote the establishment o±' programs
for the aged within, civic j fraternal, service and
philajibhropic groups?

(0) Io gather and disseminate information regarding ser-vlces,
activities and faciJLities available -fco senior citizensj

(f) To conduct a confcinous program designed -bo stiimulate
public awamess and unders-ban.dtog of the character-

isticsj potentials and needs of the agingj

(g) To report -bo the council a-b least every six months
rdgarding progress of studies, and programs,

(h) To coordinate, wherever possible, programs of the
Gommi-fctee -with those offered on state arid national
levels and by otter local groups with a -view to
avoidance of duplication of effort aud m-bh greatest
efficiency and effectiveness possible, and be it

FUETHER RESOL1?ED; That in the event assistance is required on the parb of
municipal government, the Ghainoan of said Conmu"fct>ee upon
appsoval of -bhe majority of committee members is hereby
authorized to request such assist&nce-'in such manner as

may be appropriate, 3 and the Common Gouncil pledge its
support to the Commit'bee ±n achieving" the objectives and
purposes o.f this resolution..

Passed by a (Unanimous) (fiiagrnTby) vote of the CoBmion council of the City
of Pla-fcte-uUle at; its regular meeting on June 6, 1976,,

S€an WmderH!!, uouncil President)

Attests / ••,../W&^^/^
Dean Ge MlTUams, City Clerk"



RESOLUTION OF THE CITX OF PLATTEVILLE
REGARDING SUCCESSIVE APPOINIBENTS ON

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

WHEREAS, on June 25, 1991, the Common Council of the City of Platteville,
approved a Successive Appointments Policy for the City of Platteville's Boards
and Commissions; and

WHEREAS, said policy restricts re-appointments to all Boards and
Commissions by requiring a one year lapse of service between re-appointments.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, no member of the Commission on Aging,
Housing Authority Board/ Police and Fire Commission/ Youth Commission and Refuse
and Recycling Committee, on completion of his or her term shall be eligible for
reappointment thereon until at least a period of one year shall have intervened
between said terms as such Board or Commission member, but this provision shall
not apply to a Board or Commission member who fills the unexpired term of a
previous member.

^OW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of
Platteville does hereby approve the Successive Appointments Policy for all Boards
and Commissions of the City of Platteville.

Passed by unanimous vote of the Common Council of the City of Platteville
at their regular meeting held on August 13, 1991.

W^u.^ W^^t^L^
Patricia Plourde
Council President

ATTEST:

^•^•-X/teAAJ
Annette M. Dutcher
City Clerk



Resolution No. 04-02

COMMISSION ON A&IW
Ci+y of PlQ+teville, Grant Coun+y, Wisconsin

Resolution to Create Commission on Aging, Revision

The C'ity of Pla+teville is owcire of the unique needs of our senior citizens. A

senior citizens center has been established order to address these needs. The

Commission on Aging was established +o oversee this center.

Purpose of the Commission on Aging:

A. To determine and create awareness of the needs of the senior citizens.

B. To develop resources, bo+h public and private, +o meet these needs.

C. To coordinate the work of agencies and other communi+y organiza+ions

providing service to the elderly.

b. To provide assis+once and informa+ipn that enables senior citizens +o help

themselves.

E. To support the direc+or of the senior center.

F. To oversee the policies of the Senior Center.

Membership

Members must be residents of the Ci+y of Pta++eville. In+eres+ed citizens

must fill out applicQ+ion form and submit this +o ci+y hall. Commission

members will be appointed by the ci+y council president. A+ least half of .

the members should be active par+icipan+s in the senior center. The

commission will consist of nine members, one of whom will be the ci+y council

representative. AAembers will be appointed for staggered terms of three '

years. Currently the commission has fifteen members. The Commission wilt

attain a membership of nine members on July 1, 2004 through a+tri+ion.

October 17, 2003



COMMISSION ON AGWG
Ci+y of Pla+tevilte, Grant Coun+y, Wisconsin

Resolution to Create Commission on Aging, Revision

Officers

Officers will include chairman, vice chairman and secretary. Election of

officers shall be held yearly a+ the June mee+in9.

Meetings

Format will be in accordance wi+h Roberts Rules of Order. Meetings will be

held monthly or called a+ the discretion of the members. Any member of

the commission who misses three consecutive meetings may be requested to

resign.

Commi+tees

C'ommi+tees shall be appointed by the chcurman +o work on selected +Qsks.

The commit+ees shall report their progress +o the Commission at the regular

meetings.

Passed by a majority vote of the Common Council of the Ci+y of Pfa++eville Q+ i+s

regular meeting on March 9, 2004.

JLtL
~<m^

boro+hy Ge^he, Council President

^^..^AQ^L^J
Anne+te bu+cher, Ci+y Clerk

October 17, 2003



Resolution No. 02-01

A Resolution Requiring That All Members of the Commission on Aging Be City Residents

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the Platteville Common Council that all members of City boards,
commissions and committees be City residents, unless specifically ordained or resolved
otherwise;, and : .-•• • . ...•••..

WBEREAS, the resolution establishing the Commission on Aging did not speak to the residency

of Commission on Aging members,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that all members of the Commission on Aging shall
be City residents.

Approved and adopted by the Common Council of the City ofPlatteville on the 28th day of May,
2002.

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE,

^&^j-/iuC//jL^
Eileen Nickels, Covncil President

Attest:

.A/X/ft^W
Annette M. Dutcher, City Clerk



RESOLUTION NO. 19-11

RESOLUTION REGARDING SUCCESSIVE APPOINTMENTS TO THE
COMMISSION ON AGING

WHEREAS, on August 13, 1991, the Common Council of the City ofPlatteville, approved a resolution

restricting successive appointments on certain boards and commissions; and

WHEREAS, said resolution provided that no member of the listed boards and commissions, to include

the Commission on Aging, on completion of his or her term shall be eligible for reappointment thereon until at

least a period of one year shall have intervened between said terms; and

WHEREAS, the resolution makes it difficult for the Commission on Aging to retain qualified members

on its commission.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City ofPlatteville does hereby
amend the Resolution Regarding Successive Appointments on Boards and Commissions dated August 13, 1991,

to provide that no member of Commission on Aging, upon completion of his or her second term shall be eligible

for reappointment until at least a period of one year shall have intervened between said terms as a Commission

member.

Adopted by the Common Council of the City ofPlattevilIe on this 9th day of July, 2019.

CIT^F PLATTEVILL]^"

./L/L^Mdit^
—-E^y: Barbara Daus, Council President

Attest:

Ca.Vt^a.ce Klaas, City Clerk



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION:  
INFORMATION & 
DISCUSSION 
ITEM NUMBER:   
VIII... 

TITLE:  
Council Rules 
 

DATE 
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY: Adam Ruechel, City Manager 

Description: 
Within the City of Platteville’s municipal code is Chapter 2 which references the Common Council.  The 
Chapter is broken out into 4 sections: 
 
Section 2.01 Aldermanic Districts 
Section 2.03 Polling Places 
Section 2.04 Council Rules 
Section 2.05 Council Salaries 
 
The last review and update of most of these sections are referenced to have occurred in November of 2016.  
Due to having new appointed or elected Council members as well as a new City Manager it has been 
recommended for all parties to review Chapter 2 for potential changes or alterations. 
 
The key section the Common Council is being asked to review in detail is Section 2.04 Council Rules.  As the 
Common Council returns to in person meetings following the expiration of the City of Platteville’s Declaration 
of Emergency consideration will need to be made regarding some of the temporary policies and procedures 
which were put into place to combat COVID-19 such as the utilization of zoom for meetings. 
 
Section 2.04 currently states the following rules of order and procedure shall govern the deliberation and 
meetings of the Common Council and the committees thereof.  This is another area Council members will 
want to consider as this discussion moves forward.  The rules established by the Common Council are those 
which are to be followed by the various committees, commissions, boards, and taskforces.  Potentially the 
Council may want to consider providing language which references the ability for committees, commissions, 
boards, and taskforces to be able to create their own rules or regulations.  Otherwise, the Council could look 
to continue under the current model with the ability to provide adjustments to certain rules for various 
committees, commissions, boards, and taskforces. 
 
The Council has provided feedback on Rules #1-11. During this meeting the focus will be to review Rules # 12-
16. 
 
Rule # 1 currently states the following: 
Following a regular City election, the Council shall meet on the third Tuesday in April for the purpose of 
organization. Regular meetings of the Council shall be held on the second Tuesday and fourth Tuesday of each 
calendar month at the hour of 7:00 p.m. Any regular meeting falling upon a legal holiday shall be held on the 
next following secular day at the same hour and place unless changed by a majority vote of the members elect 
of the Common Council. All meetings of the Council, including special and adjourned meetings, shall be held in 
the Municipal Building unless changed by a majority vote of the members elect of the Common Council for any 
specific meeting. 
 



Potential changes to consider for Rule # 1 

• Council members provided feedback of openness to having a 6 pm or 6:30 pm meeting start time.   

• Council members provided feedback to express that all meetings should occur within a City facility. 

• Council members provided feedback to have Staff gather feedback from committees, boards, and 
taskforces about preference for in person or virtual meetings.  Council members expressed they would 
prefer to have Council meetings and Plan commission meetings occur in person but would be open to 
allowing virtual options for members to attend virtual twice per year if necessary. 

 
Rule # 2 currently states the following: 
Special meetings may be called by the Council President or by any two Alderpersons or by the City Manager 
upon written notice of the time and purpose thereof to each member of the Council, delivered to each 
personally or left at the Alderperson’s usual place of abode at least six hours before the meeting. The Clerk 
shall cause an affidavit of service of each notice to be filed in the Clerk’s office prior to the time fixed for such 
special meeting. A special meeting may be held without such notice when all members of the Council are 
present in person or consent in writing to the holding of such a meeting. If written consent is obtained, it shall 
be filed with the Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting. Attendance by any council member shall be 
deemed a waiver on the person’s part of any defective notice. Any special meeting attended by all 
Alderpersons shall be a regular meeting for the transaction of any business that may come before such 
meeting. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 2 

• Council members provided feedback to include the delivery of a meeting and or special meeting notice 
to be done electronically. 

 
Rule # 3 currently states the following: 
(a) The Council may, by a majority vote of those present, adjourn from time to time to a specific date and hour.  
(b) No action shall be taken unless a quorum is present.  
(c) As provided by Section 64.07(3) of the Wisconsin Statutes, a majority of the members of the Council shall 
constitute a quorum, and a majority vote of all the members of the Council shall be necessary to adopt any 
ordinance or resolution. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 3 

• Council members provided feedback to indicate they would define a quorum as 4 members physically 
present within the Council Chambers or assigned meeting room. 

• Council members provided feedback that Council members would be allowed to attend 2 meetings per 
year either via zoom or conference call in the event they are unable to be physically in attendance. 

 
Rule # 4 currently states the following: 
The business of the Council shall be conducted in the following order:  
1. Call to order by Presiding Officer.  
2. Roll Call. If a quorum is not present, the meeting shall thereupon adjourn, which may be to a specific date 
pursuant to rule 3(a).  
3. Public Hearings, if any.  
4. Special Presentations, in any.  
5. Consideration of the minutes of the preceding meeting or meetings which have been furnished by the Clerk 
to each Alderperson and approving the same if correct and rectifying mistakes, if any exist, and other routine 
business.  



Consideration of the minutes and other routine business of the City Council may be combined into a Consent 
Calendar. Any member may request the Council President to remove an item from the Consent Calendar for a 
separate vote. This request shall be granted as a courtesy and is not subject to debate or vote. Items removed 
from the Consent Calendar will be considered directly following action on the Consent Calendar.  
6. Citizens’ Comments, Observations and Petitions, if any.  
7. Reports of committees, if any, and reports of City officials and department heads as directed or requested by 
the City Manager or the Common Council.  
8. Action Items.  
9. Information and Discussion Items.  
10. Adjournment  
In the absence of the Clerk, the Presiding Officer shall appoint a Clerk pro tempore. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 4 

• Council members provided consensus on the addition of closed session added between 9 & 10. 

• Council members provided consensus on the addition of work session to be added between 9 & 10. 

• Council members were indifferent to the verbiage change from Consent Calendar to Consent Agenda. 
 
Rule # 5 currently states the following: 
The presiding Officer at the stated hour shall call the meeting to order. The Presiding Officer shall preserve 
order and decorum, decide all questions of order and conduct the proceedings of the meeting in accordance 
with the parliamentary rules contained in Robert’s Rules of Order Revised unless otherwise provided by statute 
or by these rules. Any member shall have the right of appeal from a decision of the Officer. The appeal may be 
sustained by a majority of the members present, exclusive of the Presiding Officer. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 5 

• Council members provided consensus to follow the most up to date version of Robert’s Rules of Order. 
 
Rule # 6 currently states the following: 
If the Council President is absent at the designated time of any meeting, the Council President Pro-tempore 
shall preside and during the absence or inability of the Council President to attend shall have the powers and 
duties of the Council President. The Council President shall be selected by a majority vote of all members of the 
Council at the annual meeting on the third Tuesday of April in each year. The Council President shall designate 
and appoint the Council President Pro-tempore at or before the first regular meeting in May of each year and 
such appointment shall be until the next annual meeting of the Council on the third Tuesday of April of each 
year. The Council President Pro Tempore shall act in the absence of the Council President. In the absence of 
both the Council President and the Council President Pro-tempore, the Clerk shall call the meeting to order and 
shall preside until the Council shall, by motion, select an acting Council President for that meeting. In such a 
case, the selection of an acting Council President shall be the first order of business. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 6 

• None Currently 
 
Rule # 7 currently states the following: 
Whenever the Council President desires to speak upon any question, or to make any motion, the Council 
President shall not be required to vacate the chair to do so, but may, if he desires, vacate the chair for such 
portion of the proceedings as the Council President shall designate and shall designate the Council President 
pro tempore, if present and if not, any Alderperson, to preside temporarily. 
 



Potential changes to consider for Rule # 7 

• None Currently 
 
Rule # 8 currently states the following:  
(a) The number and designation of Council committees and the number of members on each shall be as 
directed by the Council President at the regular meeting in May of each year and the chairperson of each 
committee shall be as designated by the Council President.  
(b) The Council President may declare the entire Council a committee of the whole for informal discussion at 
any meeting or for any other purpose and shall be ex-officio chairperson of same; provided there is no 
objection by anyone of the Alderpersons present at the meeting.  
(c) The Council President may, from time to time, appoint such special committees as may be deemed 
advisable or as provided for by motion or resolution, stating the number of members and object thereof, to 
perform such duties as may be assigned to them. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 8 

• None Currently 
 
Rule # 9 currently states the following: 
(a) Any Alderperson may require the reading of any ordinance, resolution or communication at any time it is 
before the Council.  
(b) All bills and other financial claims against the City shall be itemized and upon receipt thereof shall be 
examined by the City Manager and the Finance Director and then referred by the Finance Director to the 
Claims Committee for report thereon at the ensuing meeting of the Council, provided that payment of regular 
wages and salaries of officials and employees according to schedules adopted by the Council shall be made by 
the Finance Director without submission to the Council after verification by the department head submitting 
the same and after approval of the Finance Director. As to officials or employees not within any specific 
department of the City, the above required verification by the department head may be omitted.  
(c) Each committee shall at the next regular meeting submit either a written or an oral report on all matters 
referred to it, unless a longer time is granted by vote of the Council, and such report shall be entered in the 
proceedings. Such report shall make a recommendation to the Council on each item, shall, if in writing, be 
signed by the chairperson of the committee and shall be filed with the Clerk prior to each meeting. Minority 
reports may be submitted.  
(d) Any committee may require any City employee to confer with it and supply information needed in 
connection with any matter pending before the committee. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 9 

• Council members agreed to change Finance Director to Comptroller as position title has changed. 

• Council members agreed to change the Claims Committee in item (b) to an appropriate committee, 
board, or commission. 

 
Rule # 11 currently states the following: 
No ordinance or resolution shall be considered by the Council unless presented in writing by the Council 
President or any other Alderperson. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 11 

• Council members agreed to add City Manager and City Staff to the potential list of presenters. 
 
 



Rule # 12 currently states the following: 
The deliberation of the Council shall be conducted in the following matter:  
1. No Alderperson shall address the Council until recognized by the Presiding Officer. The Alderperson shall 
thereupon address all remarks to the chairperson and confine all remarks to the question under discussion and 
avoid all personalities.  
2. When two or more members simultaneously seek recognition the Presiding Officer shall name the member 
who is to speak first.  
3. No person other than a member shall address the Council except that with the permission of the Presiding 
Officer. Citizens may address the Council as to matters which are being considered at the time and further 
excepting that citizens may be allowed to address the Council otherwise upon a majority vote of all members 
present.  
4. No notice shall be discussed or acted upon unless and until it has been seconded. No motion shall be 
withdrawn or amended without the consent of the person making the same and the person seconding it.  
5. When a question is under discussion no action shall be in order, except (1) to adjourn, (2) to recess, (3) to lay 
on the table, (4) to move the previous question, (5) to postpone to a certain day, (6) to refer to a committee, (7) 
to amend, (8) to postpone indefinitely. These motions shall have precedence in the order listed.  
6. Any member wishing to terminate the debate may move the previous question, in which event the Presiding 
Officer shall announce the question as, “Shall the main question now be put?” If two-thirds of the members 
present vote in the affirmative, the main question shall be taken without further debate, its effect being to put 
an end to all debate and to bring the Council to a direct vote, first upon any pending amendments, and then 
upon the main question.  
7. All votes of the Common Council shall be by voice, with a roll call by the clerk, using aye and nay, and all aye 
and nay votes shall be recorded by the clerk. Every Alderperson shall vote when a question is put unless the 
Council, by a majority vote of those present, shall excuse a member for special cause. No Alderperson may 
change his or her vote on any question after the result has been announced. Except as otherwise provided by 
the Wisconsin Statutes or by ordinance, a majority of those present shall prevail in all cases.  
8. A motion to adjourn shall always be in order, and a motion to adjourn, to recess, to lay on the table, and a 
call for the previous question shall be decided without debate. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 12 

• None currently. 
 
Rule # 13 currently states the following: 
All ordinances, motions or resolutions appropriating money or creating any charge against the City other than 
payment of claims for purchases or work previously authorized by the Council shall be acted upon by the 
Council at the next regular meeting, except that this provision may be suspended by recorded vote of three-
fourths of all members of the Council. This rule does not pertain to items contained within the “consent 
calendar”. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 13 

• None Currently. 
 
Rule # 14 currently states the following: 
It shall be in order for any member voting in the majority to move for a reconsideration of the vote of any 
question except confirmation of the appointment of City officials at that meeting or at the next succeeding 
regular meeting. A motion to reconsider being put and lost shall not be renewed. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 14 

• Consider reworking rule as can be confusing for interpretation. 



 
Rule # 15 currently states the following: 
After each meeting of the Common Council and prior to the next regular meeting of the Common Council, the 
Clerk shall supply to each Alderperson at his or her residence a typewritten copy of the proceedings thereof. By 
majority action of those present the Council may dispense with the reading of the minutes at the ensuing 
meeting. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 15 

• Add email dissemination of minutes as option. 
 
Rule # 16 currently states the following: 
These rules or any part thereof may be temporarily suspended in connection with any matter under 
consideration by a recorded vote of two-thirds of the members present. 
 
Potential changes to consider for Rule # 16 

• None currently. 
 
Budget/Fiscal Impact: 
Currently, the only anticipated cost associated with these proposed changes will be the zoom software 
charges which will be incorporated into future budgets. 
 
Recommendation: 
City Staff recommends Council members review the current verbiage of the council rules over subsequent 
Council meetings.  The recommended timeline will be to review these rules for the remainder of the year and 
look to officially establish changes to go into effect starting January 2022.  In future meetings, City Staff will be 
providing examples of other municipalities' rules to garner if Council members would like to incorporate any 
changes. 
 
Sample Affirmative Motion: 
None currently. 
 
Attachments:   
Council Rules Municipal Ordinance Chapter 2 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION:  
INFORMATION & 
DISCUSSION 
ITEM NUMBER:   
VIII./. 

TITLE:  
Flag Raising Policy 
 

DATE 
September 28, 2021 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY: Adam Ruechel, City Manager 

Description: 
The Common Council requested a proposed City of Platteville Flag Raising Policy be reviewed by the newly 
created Taskforce for Inclusion, Diversity, and Equity (TIDE) for their recommendation. To remind Council 
Members about how this policy came about, City Staff was asked whether the City of Platteville has an official 
flag-raising policy. In reviewing history, it appears the City does not have an official policy regarding the 
authorization of requests for community organizations and special event flag raisings.  
 

Historically they have occurred by a resolution authorized by the Common Council like the approval granted 
last year under Resolution 20-17 where Council Members authorized the flying of the LGBTQ+ flag to be flown 
above City Hall during June 2020. (Or Resolution 20-24 authorizing the UN flag to be flown above City Hall 
during October 2020). 
 

The TIDE Taskforce reviewed a proposed flag-raising policy during their May, June, and July committee 
meetings. The members agreed they felt it appropriate to designate City Hall to be the place to fly a flag 
outside of the U.S and Wisconsin State flags. Members reached a consensus that the raising of a flag should be 
in conjunction with the recognition of a community event, and the organization requesting the raising of a flag 
should be either an endorsed group or a group with an endorsement from a 501c3 organization. The members 
also expressed the understanding this policy will continue to be reviewed and refined as it evolves. Much 
discussion occurred regarding how the City draws the line on what flags will not be permitted and the criteria 
which will be utilized to come to that conclusion. 
 

In efforts to move the conversation towards the adoption of a flag-raising policy after reviewing with the TIDE 
Taskforce the attached policy has been crafted for Council Members and Staff to review and provide 
additional edits and alterations 
 

Budget/Fiscal Impact: 

No impact. Potential conversation can be had about whether it is prudent to require an application fee or 
administrative fee. 
 

Recommendation: 
The TIDE Taskforce during their July committee meeting recommended the Common Council adopt a Flag 
Raising Policy. City Staff agrees the attached policy provides guidance for community members and staff on 
the necessary steps to request the raising of a flag. 
 
Sample Affirmative Motion: 
“I move for the City of Platteville to officially adopt the City of Platteville Flag Raising Policy.” 
 



Attachments:  

• Proposed Flag Raising Policy 

• Adopted Banner Permit Policy and Application 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



      
 PPolicy I-12. Flag Raising Policy 

 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
        
Overview: 

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines and regulations for: 
• The authorization of requests for community organizations and special event flag raisings. 
• National and municipal flag standards. 

 
This policy governs the circumstances under which flags will be flown on the municipal flagpole located at City 
Hall. All other municipal properties will fly only the American flag.  All flags flown by the City of Platteville 
will be in accordance with Title 4-Flag and Seal, Seat of Government, and The States of the United States Code. 
 
Policy: 

The following guidelines shall be satisfied to approve the raising of a community organization or special event 
flag: 

A. The organization requesting to use the municipal flagpole will: 
a. Be an endorsed group or a group with an endorsement of a recognized 501c3 organization. 
b. Official flag creation must be approved by endorsed group or recognized 501c3 organization. 
c. Be associated with a community event that benefits the residents of the city. 
d. Be an organization that endorses civic pride. 
e. Submit the request for a flag-raising a minimum of four weeks in advance. 
f. Requests for flags to be raised cannot exceed 30 days in length. 
g. Be responsible for the cost of providing the City of Platteville with their flag. 

 
The City will not permit flags in recognition of: 

• political parties 
• religious affiliations 
• other international or national flags unless authorized by the Common Council. 

 
The City Clerk and Director of Public Works have the authority to determine the eligibility of each 
organization. 
 

B. The raising of an organization/group's flag will not violate any previously established City of Platteville 
ordinance or policy. 

C. The City has the right to reject an organization/group’s flag which: 
a. Promotes any form of discrimination, including that based upon race, national origin, religion, 

sex, gender, sexual orientation, or age. 
b. Degrades/slanders any individual, group, City service, event, or program. 
c. Promotes unlawful behavior including violence or hate. 

D. Requests for flag raisings will be permitted once per calendar year, for a maximum of one month. 
E. The City reserves the right to schedule a flag-raising based on the availability of flag poles. 

 
The United States of America Flag will always be flown first followed by the Wisconsin State Flag and then 
any flags authorized by this policy. 
 
 
The City of Platteville will fly all flags at half-mast in accordance with dates and occurrences established by the 
President or Governor. Other circumstances resulting in half-masting will be at the discretion of the Common 
Council, TIDE Taskforce and/or City Manager. 



 
 
Responsibilities: 

The Director of Public Works and the City Clerk are responsible for the administration of this policy. Public 
Works, The Fire Inspector and Police officers/CSOs are responsible for the physical raising and lowering of 
flags.  
 
The Common Council, TIDE Taskforce, City Manager, Director of Public Works, and Clerk have the authority 
to accept or deny applications. The City Manager will be responsible for the authorization of any revisions to 
this policy. 
 
 
Appeals Process: 

An individual wishing to appeal approval or denial of a flag raising request can submit in writing their request 
to City of Platteville 75 N. Bonson Street, Platteville, WI 53818 Attention: City Manager or submit their request 
via email at citymanager@platteville.org. 
 
The TIDE Taskforce on behalf of the Common Council will be responsible for initially reviewing all submitted 
appeal requests. The TIDE Taskforce, after reviewing the information presented by the appeal requestor, will 
make a formal recommendation to the Common Council for their consideration at a future Common Council 
meeting. 
 
Policy Review: 

This policy will be periodically reviewed and updated as required. This policy must be reviewed by the stated 
review date and approved by the department responsible. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:citymanager@platteville.org


 
 
 
 
      CITY OF PLATTEVILLE FLAG RAISING APPLICATION 

 
 
Note: Applications must be received at least 4 weeks in advance of the requested date.  Requests will be 
acknowledged, but not approved earlier than 3 months prior to the flag-raising date. 
 
(Please read the City of Platteville Flag Raising Policy carefully before completing the application to determine 
if your request for a flag-raising will qualify.) 
 
(   ) I have read the criteria and believe that my application will qualify. 
 
 
First Name (required) 
 
 
Last Name (required) 
 
 
Email (required) 
 
 
Phone (required) 
 
Name of Organization (required) 
 
 
Name of Endorsing Organization (required) 
 
 
Flag requesting to be raised. (required) 
 
 
Significance or occasion of flag-raising (required) 
 
 
Date of flag-raising (required) 
 
Will there be a ceremony on the day of the flag-raising? (required) (  ) Yes     (  ) No   (  ) Unsure 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
I-5. BANNERS ACROSS STREETS 
First Promulgated: Common Council Resolution, 9/25/01 
Revision: January 1, 2013, May 19, 2014 City Manager Larry Bierke 
________________________________________________________________ 
1. For purposes of this policy, a banner is defined as a piece of cloth, plastic or other material erected across a 
street between two poles. 
2. Any person or organization wishing to erect a banner shall obtain permission from the Platteville Common 
Council. The City Clerk has on file the City’s banner permit application (copy attached). 
3. The location designated by the City of Platteville for erection of banners is South Water Street between two 
poles on that street that have been placed specifically for that purpose. The Common Council may elect to 
allow other locations for banners, on a case-by-case basis. 
4. An organization permitted by the Common Council to erect a banner shall work with the City staff to have 
the banner erected. For safety reasons and to ensure appropriate traffic control, only City personnel shall be 
allowed to put up and take down banners. 
5. Banners shall be 4 feet by 30 feet. Banners shall have air holes cut into them to allow wind to pass through. 
There shall be 30 air holes cut into the banner in a half moon shape, 8 inches in diameter. Banners shall be 
made of sufficiently strong materials to allow proper tensioning. Staff has the authority to reject any banner 
that, in their opinion, cannot be property tensioned or has insufficient air holes to allow the wind to pass 
through without damaging the supporting poles. 
6. In recognition that the City incurs labor and equipment costs when staff participates in erecting banners, a 
fee, set Common Council, shall be charged to organizations permitted to erect a banner. The fee may be 
waived by the Common Council. 
 
CITY OF PLATTEVILLE 
BANNER PERMIT 
Date Permit Requested___________________________________________________ 
Name of Organization Requesting Permit ____________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Address_______________________________________________________________ 
Contact Person_________________________________________________________ 
Phone Number__________________________________________________________ 
Dates for Banner to be Displayed___________________________________________ 
Text of Message to be Displayed___________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Signature of Person Requesting Permit______________________________________ 
___ $125.00 Fee Accompanies This Application* 
___ Request $125.00 Fee to Be Waived* 
Date Approved by Common Council__________ 
Issued By ______________________________ City Clerk 
Fee (if charged) $________________________ 
Receipt #_______________________________ 
*Note Regarding City Banner Permit Fee: The City has determined that the actual cost to the City to erect and 
take down banners, in terms of the cost of personnel in wages/benefits and the cost of operating City 
equipment, is approximately $225.00. The Common Council has decided to charge a lesser fee to 
organizations requesting this permission. 
 
 



THE CITY OF PLATTEVILLE, WISCONSIN 
COUNCIL SUMMARY SHEET 

COUNCIL SECTION: 
INFORMATION & 
DISCUSSION 
ITEM NUMBER:  
VIII.5. 

TITLE:   
Review of Historic Preservation Commission 
Approval Process 
 

DATE:   
September 28, 2021 
 
VOTE REQUIRED: 
Majority 

PREPARED BY:  Joe Carroll, Community Development Director 

 
Description:   
At the August 10th meeting, the Council tabled a request from the owners of the property at 130 Market 
Street to alter the historic designation of the property until a review of the Historic Preservation Commission 
approval process could be completed.  There were also questions raised regarding the standards and 
guidelines that are used by the Commission during their review of projects.  Attached is a memo that provides 
some information on the standards and guidelines that are available for the Commission to use, and some 
suggested modifications to their approval process. 
 
Budget/Fiscal Impact:   
None 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the modifications to the Commission approval policy. 

Sample Affirmative Motion: 
“Motion to approve the modifications to the Maintenance and Repair Approval Policy.” 
 
Attachments:   

• Memo 

• Maintenance and Repair Approval Policy with amendments. 



1 
 

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE 
Community Planning & Development Department 

75 North Bonson Street, Platteville, WI 53818   (608)348-9741 
 

MEMO 

To: Common Council 

From: Joe Carroll, Community Development Director 

Date: September 8, 2021 

Re: Historic Preservation Commission  

 

At the August 10th meeting, the Council tabled a request from the owners of the property at 130 Market 

Street to alter the historic designation of the property until a review of the Historic Preservation 

Commission approval process could be completed.  There were also questions raised regarding the 

standards and guidelines that are used by the Commission during their review of projects. 

 

Below is a list of standards and guidelines that are available for use by the Commission when reviewing 

projects in the district.  All of these are available on the City’s website at this link. 

https://www.platteville.org/cd/page/historic-rehabilitation-guidelines-and-laws.  Additional information 

regarding the approval process is available at https://www.platteville.org/cd/page/certificate-

appropriateness 

• Standards for Rehabilitation & Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings 

• Platteville Downtown Design Standards 

• Design Guidelines for the Commercial Historic District 

• Commercial Historic District Signage and Awning Guidelines 

• Dumpster Enclosure Guidelines 

• The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation 

 

Regarding the approval process that is followed, Staff developed the below list of suggested changes to 

the Commission review process and structure. 

1. The Historic Preservation Commission previously adopted a Maintenance and Repair Approval Policy 

that allows Staff to approve building maintenance items and minor modifications to buildings in the 

district without requiring Commission approval.  Below are some suggested changes to this policy 

that will streamline the approval process and reduce the burden on the property owners.   

a) Allow Staff to approve the use of materials that are similar in design, color, scale, 

architectural appearance, and other visual qualities.  (this language follows a recent State 

law change) 

https://www.platteville.org/cd/page/historic-rehabilitation-guidelines-and-laws
https://www.platteville.org/cd/page/certificate-appropriateness
https://www.platteville.org/cd/page/certificate-appropriateness


2 
 

b) Do not require Commission approval of signage.  Staff can approve following the already 

approved sign guidelines. 

c) Do not require Commission approval of awnings.  Staff can approve following the already 

approved design guidelines. 

d) Do not require approval of paint colors.  The only required Commission approval would be 

for the painting of previously unpainted surfaces, i.e., unpainted brick. 

e) Do not require approval of dumpster enclosures.  Staff can approve following the already 

approved design guidelines. 

 

2. Potential changes to Chapter 27 – Historic Preservation 

a) Section 27.03.  Modify the composition of the Historic Preservation Commission to include 

members that own property located within the historic district.  This can either be done by 

requiring some of the current 5 members to own property in the district, or by adding 

additional members and increase the composition to 7 members. 

b) Section 27.06.  Include evaluation criteria and further define the process to be used for 

potential amendments to historic designation or changes to the district boundaries. 

 



Draft: September 1, 2021   

 1 

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR APPROVAL POLICY  

Adopted by the Historic Preservation Commission on February 23, 2010  

According to Section 27.04(B)(5) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance, the Building Inspector or Community 

Planning & Development Director, as designees of the Commission, may issue a Certificate of Appropriateness 

for the following types of work to historic structures without Commission approval.  When reviewing the projects 

listed below, the designees shall use the Standards for Rehabilitation & Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic 

Buildings as a guide to determine appropriate methods and materials to complete the work.  Any time there is a 

question regarding interpretation of this policy, or interpretation of the standards and guidelines, the proposed 

work shall be submitted to the Commission for approval.  

Exterior Masonry:  

1.  Cleaning of masonry according to approved methods.  

2.  Repointing mortar joints using mortar that is similar to the original in strength, composition, color, texture 

and hardness.  The width and profile of the mortar joints are maintained.  

3.  Limited replacement of bricks or other masonry features if the same kind of material, or a compatible 

material, is used.  

4.  Repainting of historically painted surfaces does not require Commission approval if the appropriate colors 

are chosen, as described in the Painting section of this document.  

5.  Brick shall not be painted or coated with other materials such as stucco when such masonry has 

historically been unpainted or uncoated.  

6.  Replacement of veneer concrete foundation coating with veneer stone.  

7. Use approved methods to prevent water damage to masonry.  

8.  Concrete shall not be used as a substitute for mortar in rock foundations.  

Building Exterior-Wood:  

1.  Retain and preserve wood features that are important to the historic character of the building.  

2.  Materials used in exterior repairs shall duplicate original wood in texture and appearance.  

3.  Use approved methods to prevent water damage to wood.  

Building Exterior-Metal:  

1.  Retain and preserve metal features that are important to the historic character of the building.  

2.  Cleaning of metal surfaces according to approved methods.  

3. Use approved methods to prevent water damage to metal.  



Draft: September 1, 2021   

 2 

Building Exterior-Roofs:  

1.  Re-roofing that maintains or restores the historic character of the building's roof.  

2.  Re-roofing that does not change roof shape, or remove or cover any decorative features of the roof or 

cover any portions of the building facade.  

3.  Chimneys not visible from the street or other public use area may be removed.  Metal chimneys are 

prohibited.  

4.  Use the appropriate roofing material, such as slate, wood, clay tile or metal, according to the original 

historic character of the building.  

5.  Re-roofing may be done with asphalt, fiberglass or other rectangular composition shingles similar in 

appearance to 3-in-l-tab asphalt shingles when such materials do not affect the historic character of the 

building.  

6.  Re-roofing that does not involve the addition of features such as air conditioning, skylights, decks, 

terraces, dormers, solar collectors or other items readily visible.  

7.  Rubberized membranes, rolled roofing, tar-and-gravel, and other similar roofing materials may be used on 

flat or slightly sloped roofs.  

Building Exterior-Windows:  

1.  Use methods acceptable for rehabilitation of existing historic windows.  

2.  Repairs to existing historic window frames, sashes and surrounding trim, such as caulking, 

weatherstripping, patching and splicing, reglazing, and replacement of broken glass.  

3.  Replacement windows that fill the masonry or rough-framed opening and the features of the new window 

match those originally installed in the building.   

4.  If the window is being proposed as a replacement for a non-original window, then the appropriate style 

for the window shall be based on the style of other original windows on the building, or on historic photos 

of the building, if available.  When neither of these options are available for comparison, the replacement 

window should be based on the style of original windows used in other similar buildings in Platteville.  

5.  The addition of storm windows where none existed originally is allowed as part of a replacement window 

unit.  Storm windows must be painted or stained.  Raw aluminum shall require Commission approval.  

Building Exterior-Entrances and Porches:  

1.  Rehabilitation of entrances and porches using acceptable methods that maintain or restore original 

features.  

2.  Storm door designs of wood and glass to match the original design on the building are encouraged.  Storm 

doors of simple design with no stylistic reference may also be used.  Storm doors with metal grills may be 

approved if they blend with the style of the building.  



Draft: September 1, 2021   

 3 

3.  Storm doors must be painted or stained.  Raw aluminum shall require Commission approval.   

Building Site:  

1.  Use approved methods to prevent water damage to rock foundation walls.  Examples are the maintenance 

or addition of gutters and downspouts, installation of drain tile along the building foundation and 

providing adequate site drainage.  

2.  Rehabilitation of features that are not missing such as walks, paths, roads, driveways and parking areas.  

3. Dumpster enclosures may be installed without Commission approval as long as they are in conformance 

with the Dumpster Enclosure Guidelines for the Downtown Historic District, as approved on October 

2014 or subsequently amended.   

Re-siding:  

Re-siding that replaces or covers clapboards or non-original siding on historic buildings originally sided with 

clapboards is allowed provided that the new siding imitates the width of the original clapboard siding to 

within one (1) inch and that all architectural details including, but not limited to, window trim, wood cornices, 

and ornament either remain uncovered or are duplicated exactly in appearance.  If more than one layer of 

siding exists on the building, all layers except the first must be removed before the new siding is applied.  If 

insulation is applied under the new siding, all trim must be built up so that it projects from the new siding to 

the same extent it did with the original siding.  

Painting:  

Painting a building or a building component within the Main Street Commercial Historic District does not 

require approval or the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness, except for if the paint color is chosen 

from a historic color palette.  Painting using other colors, and the painting of a building or portion of a 

building that has never previously been painted, requires Commission approval.  For example, a request to 

paint a brick building that has never previously been painted requires approval of the Commission and the 

issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness.  

Painting a building or a building component on other locally-designated properties outside the Main Street 

Commercial Historic District does not require Commission approval if the building or building component is 

being repainted the same color, or if the paint color is chosen from a historic color palette.  Painting using 

other colors requires Commission approval.   

Signage and Awnings: 

Signage and awnings may be installed without Commission approval as long as they are in conformance with 

the Commercial Historic District Signage & Awning Guidelines, as approved on August 2014 or subsequently 

amended.   

General Repair and Replacement:  

Repairs to, or limited replacement of, building materials and building components if the work uses the same 

materials, or compatible substitute materials, and provided that the work does not substantially change the 

exterior appearance of the structure or site.  Repair and replacement work does not require Commission 

approval if the materials are similar in design, color, scale, architectural appearance, and other visual 



Draft: September 1, 2021   

 4 

qualities.   

Record Keeping and Reporting by Staff:  

1.  Develop and maintain a file for each historic building/project as to items requested and approved. Where 

appropriate, before and after-completion photographs are to be included in the file. Written comments 

should also be provided to complement the photographs.  

2.  At a minimum staff shall provide a final report to the Historic Preservation Commission as to items 

requested, approved and completed for a historic building/project.  

3.  Monthly status reports are recommended.  


	Agenda 09-28-21
	III.A. PP Southwest Health Summary Sheet Sep 2021
	III.B. Rezone 860 Mason St Summary Sheet Sep 2021
	IV.  CONSENT
	IV.A. Minutes
	IV.B. Schedule of Bills
	IV.C. B&C
	IV.D. Proposed License 9-28-21
	IV.D.1. Temp Class B - Main St Program
	IV.E.1. Banner Permit 2021
	IV.E.2. Platteville High School Parade
	IV.E.3. Run-Walk Permit - Monster Dash
	IV.F. RES 21-23 Designating October 2021 United Nations Month
	IV.G. Trick or Treating Hours-9-28-21
	VI.A.  REPORTS-Minutes
	VI.A. 06-16-2021 Commission on Aging
	VI.A. 06-16-2021a. 07-21-2021 Commission on Aging
	VI.A. 06-16-2021b. 08-17-2021 Commission on Aging
	VI.A. 07-14-2021_water_and_sewer_minutes
	VI.A. 07-14-2021a 08-10-21_water_and_sewer_minutes
	VI.A. 08-16-2021 Airport Commission
	VII.A. Chapter 8  Revisions 2021
	VII.B. Sewer Proposed Rates 2021
	VII.C. Policy on Water Disconnects
	VII.D. Subdivision Reimbursement Agreement
	VIII.A. Residential Development Potential Finance Agreement
	VIII.B. Commission On Aging Name & Constitution Changes
	VIII.C. Council Rules
	VIII.D. Flag Raising Policy
	VII.A.a Chapter 8  Revisions 2021.pdf
	Blank Page


	Button2: 


